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“You cannot overtake 15
cars in sunny weather....
but you can when its
raining.” Ayrton Senna.

At Singer, we embrace the belief that

our greatest challenges are our greatest
opportunities, to learn,grow and venture
forth steadily. Having battled tumultuous
circumstances in the past years, Singer
has remained steadfast by striding ahead
positively and responsibly.

As we persevere, we remain dedicated to
exploring our connections, enriching lives
through the implementation of innovative
solutions while securing and protecting
our people who are the corner stone of our
business.

We know our future is bright because
we have learnt the art of looking for
opportunities in every challenge we face.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

ARGEN 1

About this report

I This is the Integrated Annual report of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC for the financial
II year ended 31st March 2023 which provides a balanced and concise overview of
the Group’s performance using financial, environmental, social and governance

] information. This is the second report using the <IR> Framework and seeks to

Financial statements Narrative report

and information

stakeholders.

Sustainability Reporting

provide a fair account of how its resources were allocated to create value for its key

©

Gender Reporting

Corporate Governance

Integrated Reporting
Framework of the
International Integrated

Sri Lanka Financial
Reporting Standards
and external assurance
provided by Messrs.

Reporting Council (IIRC).

Report has been
prepared in accordance
with the: GRI Standards
2021, with external

Gender Parity Reporting
Framework issued

by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants

Listing Requirements
of the Colombo Stock
Exchange and Code
of Best Practice on

KPMG External assurance on assurance obtained from of Sri Lanka Corporate Governance
Integrated Reporting Messrs. Ernst & Young. issued by CA Sri Lanka
provided by Messrs. We have also adopted
Ernst & Young the Sustainability

Accounting Standards

Board Standard for

Multiline and Specialty

Retailers & Distributors
e

Report profile

Reporting period for
financial and sustainability
reporting:

Financial year ended 31st
March 2023

Frequency

Annual

Reporting concepts

Strategic focus

Demonstrates how our
activities are guided
by clearly defined
strategic priorities.

Connectivity

Interrelatedness
and dependencies
shown through

navigation icons
and signposting

Stakeholder
relationships

Chapter on stakeholder .
engagement, concerns N
Consistency and
comparability

and responses

Comparable
information for

. the previous year !
. provided wherever /

’

\ relevant .

Systematic materiality Q

assessment process \

.

Materiality
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Reporting boundary Connectivity of information
The financial reporting included in this Report represents the Singer Group (comprising Navigation icons

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC or the “Company”) and 7 subsidiaries as illustrated below. The @
boundary for sustainability reporting is limited to the Company and 4 key subsidiaries, % Governance Srg Risk

which collectively account for 99% of consolidated assets. The reporting boundary

remains unchanged compared to the previous year and there are no major restatements The Capitals

of information provided in previous reports. The Group’s operations are solely in Sri Lanka.

Integrated reporting boundary
Financial reporting boundary

Financial Capital

Human Capital

Intellectual Capital

Social & Relationship Capital

SINGER

Manufactured Capital

SINGER (SRI LANKA) PLC
Natural Capital

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Regnis (Lanka) PLC Stakeholders

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited =
Customers
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

Employees

Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited (Amalgamated
with Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC on 30th January 2023)
Reality Lanka Limited

Business Partners

Government & Regulators
Singer Business School (Private) Limited

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited

@

Communities

Investors

Customers Employees Investors Business Communities Unparalleled Customer
partners Centricity
Materiality Above Industry Growth and

Profitability

The leadership team have identified the issues that could have the most significant
impact on the Group’s ability to create value. In determining these issues, we have
considered the industry landscape, the concerns of our stakeholders and our strategic
aspirations. The process used to determine material issues and the list of topics for the
year are given on page 38 to 41 of this Report.

Loved Employer Brand

Manufacturing and Supply
Chain Excellence

~
Statement of Responsibility Feedback

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC’s Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for We are committed to consistently improving the
ensuring the accuracy of this Report. We hereby confirm that the 2022/23 quality and readability of our corporate reporting

and welcome your feedback and suggestions on
our Annual Report. Please direct your feedback to,

Report addresses all relevant material matters and fairly represents the Group’s
integrated performance. We also confirm that the Report has been prepared in
line with the guidance provided in the Integrated Reporting Framework of the

) : . Finance Director,
International Integrated Reporting Council.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC,

Signed on behalf of the Board, 112, Havelock Road,
. Colombo 5
Mahesh Wijewardene Email: shalinkas@singersl.com
Group Chief Executive Officer
\_ J
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 2022/23

For the year ended 31st March Group Company
2023 2022 Increased/ 2023 2022 Increased/
(Decreased) (Decreased)
Rs.’000 Rs.’000 % Rs.’000 Rs.’000 %
Revenue - Net 54767234 76,847,842 (28.7%) 47950,386 68,652,290 (30.2%)
Gross Profit 18,872,257 22,191,504 (15.0%) 16,215,934 18,561,891 (12.6%)
Operating Profit 6,687,768 8,237,352 (18.8%) 6,272,838 7,131,998 (12.0%)
Net Finance Cost 6,118,864 2,320,221 163.7% 6,263,475 1,994,123 214.1%
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 174,192 5,535,560 (96.9%) (68,636) 5,043,875 (101.4%)
Profit for the Year 95,931 409,791 (97.7%) 220,599 3,908,641 (94.4%)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the Year (Net (136,459) 4,554,012 (103.0%) 201,872 4,001,150 (95.0%)
of Tax)
Stated Capital 626,048 626,048 0.0% 626,048 626,048 0.0%
Revenue Reserves 7,916,760 9,080,204 (12.8%) 4,818,730 5,919,944 (18.6%)
Capital Reserves 1,350,892 1,635,092 (17.4%) 199,234 1,291,762 (7.2%)
Statutory Reserves 244,215 223,763 9.1% - - -
Non-Controlling Interest 1,946,904 1,971,082 1.2%) - - -
Total Equity 12,089,984 13,540,625 (10.7%) 6,647,515 7,842,191 (15.2%)
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 7,652,258 7,521,444 1.7% 3,852,273 3,807,243 1.2%
Other Investments 23,645 22,890 3.3% 21,524 22,858 (5.8%)
Net-Current Assets 14,015,396 9,399,654 491% 715,250 7,501,792 (5.2%)
Gross Dividends N/A N/A - 225,377 1,239,575 (81.8%)
Dividend per Share - Rs. N/A N/A - 0.20* 110 (81.8%)
Dividend Payout Ratio - % N/A N/A - 102.17* 31.70 222.3%
Dividend Yield - % N/A N/A - 0.36 7.90 (95.5%)
Earnings per Share - Rs. 0.01 3.51 (99.8%) 0.20 3.47 (94.4%)
Price Earnings Ratio - times N/A N/A - 75.00 4.03 1,761.0%
Net Assets per Share - Rs. 9.00 10.27 (12.3%) 5.90 6.96 (15.2%)
Market Price per Share - Rs. N/A N/A 15.00 14.00 71%
Gross Profit Margin - % 34.46 28.88 19.3% 33.82 27.04 251%
Operating Profit Margin - % 12.21 10.72 13.9% 13.08 10.39 25.9%
Net Profit Margin - % 018 5.35 (96.7%) 0.46 5.69 (91.9%)
Return on Average Net Assets/Equity - % 0.75 3457 (97.8%) 3.04 60.49 (95.0%)
Return On Capital Employed -% 0.48 12.73 (96.2%) -0.34 21.56 (101.6%)
Equity Assets Ratio - % 15.34 1515 1.3% 14.95 14.49 3.2%
Debt Ratio - % 84.66 84.85 (0.2%) 85.05 85.51 (0.5%)
Debt to Equity - Times 4.88 3.56 37.2% 4.46 3.00 48.6%
Gearing Ratio - Times 0.82 0.78 5.0% 0.81 0.75 7.6%
Interest Cover - Times 1.03 3.39 (69.6%) 0.99 3.53 (72.0%)
Dividend Cover - Times N/A N/A - 0.98 315 (68.9%)
Current Ratio - Times 133 118 12.9% 1.29 1.22 57%
Quick Assets Ratio - Times 0.86 0.75 14.7% 0.55 0.61 (9.3%)
*2021/22 Final Dividend paid on 13th May 2022
Revenue Operating Profit Profit Before Tax
Rs.54,767Mn 20023 Rs.6,687Mn 253 Rs.1/4Mn 2(33
Rs. 76,848 Mn Rs. 8,237 Mn Rs. 5,536 Mn
2022 2022 2022
Revenue Operating Profit Profit Before Tax
>
5 Rs.47,950Mn 20023 Rs.6,272Mn 2(33 Rs.(68)Mn 20023
3
8] Rs. 68,652 Mn Rs. 7,132 Mn Rs. 5,044 Mn
2022 2022 2022



NON-FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

432

Customer touch points across 25
districts in the country

4

Manufacturing facilities in Sri Lanka
producing goods which generate 30%
to the Group Revenue

Rs. 77 Bn

Property, plant and equipment with
Rs. 889 Mn investment in 2022/23

Responsible employer

2,986

Employees

18%

Female representation rate

Rs. 40 Bn

Payments to employees

People Brand of the

Year 2023
at SLIM-KANTAR People Awards for the
17th consecutive year

Top 10 Strongest Sri
Lankan Brands

Brand Finance

Top 40 Business Today

TOp 50 Hall of Fame LMD
>2 Mn

Loyalty customer base

42,223+

Training hours

14.14

Average training hours/employee

84«

Retention Rate
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Environmental impact

Adoption of Hayleys
Lifecode

Group’s comprehensive ESG Roadmap

1%

GHG emissions reduced

17.9 Mt

E-waste collected

9 refrigerator models under the Sisil brand
received Minimum Energy Performance
(MEP) label by the Sri Lanka Sustainable
Energy Authority (SLSEA)

Government & Society
Rs. 75 Bn

Total direct and Indirect taxes paid to
the Government

2500+

Indirect employment through
entrepreneurial branch model

Social and Relationship Capital

5.8Mn

Customers

86%

Net Promoter Score

16

Service Centres

416

Singer Showrooms

669

Suppliers

Rs. 34.98n

Payments to suppliers

1,250+

Dealers

Rs. 6.2Mn

CSR Investment

6,000+

Beneficiaries

2,424

Employment outside western
province
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YEAR AT A GLANCE

REVIEW OF
2022/23

The year 2022/23 was unparalleled in Sri Lankan history,
putting the resilience, adaptability, and perseverance of
employees of every level to the test. Singer managed to
overcome the multitude of obstacles by employing pertinent
strategies and seizing market opportunities in order to
safeguard the interests of stakeholders.

Group resilience strategies

Continued strategic focus to make Singer a world class
brand, by re-focusing the 8 Must Win Battles to 4 core
focus areas through the Singer SMART plan.

Focus on technology growth by emphasizing
e-commerce, digital marketing initiatives, and ERP
optimization for internal process developments.

Ensuring relevancy of product portfolio according to

global and regional trends by bringing in new products
and brands

Enhancement of Singer’s customer loyalty program with

the introduction of Singer Red Points and an associated
website

Strengthening service centres to provide unparalleled
service through Singer Care App

People strategy focusing on creating a performance-
oriented culture through engagement and collaboration

Macro-economic headwinds

The temporary suspension of ‘non-essential imports’
impacting key product categories

Shortages in foreign currency resulting in import
limitations

Interruptions to energy supply and difficulties sourcing
fuel impacting the manufacturing process

Escalation in interest rates leading to high borrowing
cost

Disruptions to supply chain and distribution channels

Tightening of monetary and fiscal policy discouraging
consumption

Cost escalations leading to sharp inflation of products
impacting affordability

M
|

OUTLOOK FOR

2023/24

Continue our journey towards world-class status by

ensuring robust structures and procedures are in
place.

Maintain the relevance of our brand and products in
response to rapidly changing consumer demand

Foster a performance-driven and collaborative work
culture in order to be a well-loved employer brand
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AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

Singer won the coveted SLIM-KANTAR

‘People Brand of the year’ award for the v SLIM KANTAR
_— 1 ; | E YEAR AT2¥

17th year in a row, reaffirming its dominance
in the Consumer Durables industry. Singer
also won the ‘People Durable Brand

of the year award at the same award
ceremony. These accolades fortify Singer’s
commitment to driving its brand purpose
and showcases the widespread brand
recognition and relevance even during
volatile market conditions.

‘il!!!!iiiiiiiii!!!nh.

|
SLIM Kantar people SLIM Kantar people
durable brand of the brand of the year -
year - Singer Singer Honouring Retailer of the Distributor of the
10 years of year - consumer year - consumer
SLIM KANTAR people SLIM KANTAR people partnership
awards 2023 awards 2023 Dell Business Dell Business
. . Huawei partner meet 2022 partner meet 2022
Winner Winner
Winner Winner

PURSUE

B |

Tl ReANES 2037

Best Integrated Best Integrated Trading sector - Business today Best Presented Annual Report
Report - Trade & Report - Trade & Gold award top 40 Awards, Integrated Reporting
Commerce Sector Commerce Sector CA Sri Lanka TAGS Awards and
CMA Excellence CMA Excellence Awards 2022 SAARC Anniversary Awards for
in Intergrated in Intergrated Winner Corporate Governance Disclosures
Reporting Awards Reporting Awards 2021
Winner Merit Gold Award

Winner
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CHAIRMAN'S
MESSAGE

Mohan Pandithage

Chairman




Dear Shareholder,

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC weathered a storm
in 2022 and | am pleased to say that we
are more agile and more determined to
forge a path to profitability. The choices
we make today shape the future and that
is what we continued to focus on as we
steered through the most difficult year in
living memory.

Creating value for Sri Lankans

Singer has been shaping lives of Sri
Lankans for 146 years from the first sewing
machines introduced to the country, which
now powers the country’s largest export
sector. Our role has always been that of a
catalyst, introducing technology for the
home and the office that enriched lives
and created more time for the things that
truly mattered. Our products have reached
every household, taking the toil out of
daily chores and creating more time for
families. They have powered the careers
of thousands of micro entrepreneurs who
rely on these carefully selected products
for their livelihoods. More recently our
products have connected Sri Lankans as
we became the largest mobile retailer,
changing lifestyles of estate workers

and professionals alike. Singer has been
Sri Lankans’ link to technology in their
homes which is now more important

than ever as we seek to increase the
female participation in the labour force to
accelerate economic growth. As the world
moves into the 5th industrial revolution,
we continue to play an important role in
ensuring that Sri Lankans have access

to the wide range of products that will
facilitate integration with an increasingly
technology driven era. An islandwide
network connects us to the people,
enabling us to create value across the
country.

The Manufacturing companies within
the Group, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC and Regnis
Appliances (Private) Limited play a vital
role in import substitution with its own

range of branded products made to
worldclass standards. Collectively, this
group has created 338 jobs and create
considerable value to the economy
through resource transformation and
innovation.

The Singer Fashion Academy which has
always been popular is aligned to creating
talent pools in the country for the Apparel
manufacturing sector. The Academy is
now aligning to create talent pools to
support the increase in value addition
within Sri Lanka through its partnership
with Lovely Professional University of
India.

More recently, the Group has looked

to support local manufacturers and
innovators through the gradual increase of
local sourcing. This has greater potential
to be explored further.

Context to performance

There was little in the economy that

was supportive to the Singer Group or
retailers of consumer durables. The sharp
devaluation of the rupee, soaring inflation,
rising interest rates and increased direct
and indirect taxation reduced household
budgets and disposable income. The
devaluation and inflation had a dual
impact as these increased our costs of
purchases which resulted in increased
prices for budgets that had already shrunk
due to the same. Demand for electronics
and home appliances plummeted as a
result.

The import restrictions also had a multi-
dimensional impact on the Group with the
obvious one being the limitations in the
types of products which we could import.
The more insidious but less visible one

is the growth of the grey market which

is inevitable whenever restrictions are
imposed. As a result, competing products
were entering the market with a complete
absence of the governance standards that
we uphold as a responsible corporate.
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Additionally, the avoidance of import
duties not only results in loss of revenue to
the government but also makes it difficult
for businesses that do pay their dues to
compete effectively on price.

The paucity of foreign exchange was a
challenge as we were unable to procure
inputs required for manufacturing which
had a significant impact on the factories.
We were also unable to import even items
off the restricted list due to the same
reason.

With extreme pressure on the top line
there was no headroom for cost increases.
As inflation surged, operating costs also
trended upwards exerting pressure on
margins. Additionally, the impact of the
economic pressures on our teams were
keenly felt as many citizens decided to
migrate to other countries. Diminishing
talent pools in the country made it difficult
to replace these people with others of a
similar calibre. Planned power cuts which
continued for 9 months and a significant
tariff hike further dampened consumer
interest in appliances while also increasing
operating costs across an islandwide
network of 416 showrooms.

The sharp rise in interest rates had a
significant impact on Singer Finance
operations as well as the rest of the Group,
deterring consumers purchases while
eroding the profitability.

A determined performance

Singer Group recorded turnover of
Rs.54.77 Bn for the year ended 3lst
March 2023, 29% below the previous year
reflecting the impact of the challenges
discussed above. However, dynamic
pricing and close monitoring of costs
enabled the Group to improve its gross
margins and operating profit margins.
Accordingly, the Group delivered an
operating profit of Rs.6.69 Bn for the
year. Finance costs increased by 173%
as interest rates took a toll on profits
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Singer has been
shaping lives of

Sri Lankans for 146
years from the first
sewing machines
introduced to the
country, which now
powers the country’s
largest export
sector. Our role has
always been that of a
catalyst, introducing
technology for the
home and the office
that enriched lives
and created more
time for the things
that truly mattered.

resulting in profit before tax declining
sharply from Rs.5.54 Bn to Rs.174.19 Mn.
Profit after tax followed suit moving from
Rs.4.11 Bn to Rs.95.93 Mn reflecting the
sharp movement of critical variables.

Working capital management was a
priority as movement of inventory needed
to be managed with borrowings. Total
assets and net assets decreased as
inventory levels and receivables declined,
right sizing the balance sheet to manage
exposures. The balance sheet remains
healthy as borrowings were carefully
managed at the same level as the previous
year to reduce the impact of high interest
rates.

Leadership matters

The Board priority was to guide
management through its most difficult
year, keeping stakeholder concerns
balanced while maintaining liquidity and
managing exposures. Increased oversight
of performance and risk management
supported agile strategy and resource
allocation to seize the few opportunities
for growth in a market with negative
consumer sentiments. Working capital
management was carefully monitored to
balance liquidity and profitability. Singer
Finance and the Group’s Hire purchase
portfolio were key closely monitored as
credit risk levels increased during the
year. Getting fundamentals right was key
and this enabled the Group to reduce its
impairments compared to the previous
year. It also enabled the Group to curtail
expansion of borrowings as interest rates
continued upward till the end of the 3rd
quarter, with a marginal easing in the
fourth quarter. The steady guidance of the
Board reflects the skills and experience
of the members of the Board as we
maintained a conservative approach to
risk management, given the uncharted
terrain we were navigating.

The Group used this year to look inward
and do the necessary transformations
that would enable them to emerge as a
future ready organisation that is ready to
shape the Sri Lankan lifestyles for another
generation. Technology and Al play a key
role in our future enabling us to target

our marketing efforts. Consequently, the
Board has enhanced its digital governance
to ensure that data privacy is upheld and
our systems are secured against increased
cybersecurity threats.

Mainstreaming ESG

The Singer Group embraced the Hayleys
Lifecode in the previous year and the
focus of this year was to institutionalise
the policies and commitments articulated
in this document which seeks to shape

the future with the right choices today. As
a B2C business, Singer can play a critical
role in helping consumers manage their
carbon footprint and this is now getting
factored into the sourcing strategies
supported by high levels of awareness

on the need for reducing energy. It also
influenced the range of solutions offered
and as a result, we saw rooftop solar
installations recording noticeable growth
during the year as more customers sought
to reduce their energy costs with long
term solutions.

The framework and the Hayleys concern
for people ensured that we supported our
employees through this difficult time as
their purchasing power was also affected.
Accordingly, Singer Group’s remuneration
committee approved upward adjustments
to salaries and a bonus to ease the
inflationary and taxation pressures on the
employees.

There is clearly an urgency to
mainstreaming the ESG Framework to
green our supply chains and the products
that move through us as climate change
is now a priority as we observe its
devastating impacts around the world.
The year ahead will see the commitments
being institutionalized to move the needle
on climate change.

Outlook

2022 saw seismic shocks as key variables
moved up sharply with little time for
people or entities to brace for the shocks,
particularly as they came soon after the
pandemic years. Encouragingly, stability
has been restored to a large extent and
we have now witnessed 7 consecutive
months of inflation trending downwards
with policy interventions. The approval
of the Extended Fund Facility by the IMF
was encouraging and the disbursement
of the first tranche helped to stabilize
the rupee. Downside risks remain as the
recovery is yet to be consolidated with



improved performance. The government
debt restructuring to restore the debt
sustainability to desired level is yet to be
finalized.

The private sector has been the strength
of the economy, providing the necessary
buffers with increased taxation,
maintaining employment and driving
economic growth in the country. It is

vital that its views are considered by the
government in its policy decisions and
we urge policymakers to engage the
corporate sector as a key stakeholder

in consultations on policy. It is in the
government’s interest to facilitate the
conduct of business, encouraging private
sector investment and foreign investment
through an enabling policy framework.
Representations made by industry bodies
must be considered in drafting policy

to ensure that stakeholder concerns are
balanced.

The import restrictions in place are

quite wide-ranging and a necessary

part of a contemporary lifestyle. While
understanding the concerns, we believe it
is necessary to review this list with a view
to a judicious easing in discussion with key
stakeholders.

We are excited about the internal
transformations, some of which were
rolled out during the year and others
which will come in over the next. The
year under review tested our mettle and
ingenuity and we believe it has opened

our mind to new possibilities that we are
eager to explore.
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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A continuous hire
purchase customer
base and a loyalty
customer base are
testament to the fact
that our relationships
have moved beyond
transactional
relationships to
relationships that are
trusted toadd value
to their lives. We
have strengthened
these relationships
with technology
enhancements

to increase

our reach and
enhance customer
convenience through
digital marketing,
ecommerce and
payment gateways.

2022 was undoubtedly a year in which
we needed to be agile, performing a high
wire balancing act to steer the company
through one of the toughest years known
in history. This required ingenuity, resolve
and resilience and support from our
parent company, Hayleys PLC, proved
invaluable in navigating the year as Group-
wide initiatives to manage specific issues
and knowledge sharing cleared numerous
potential blockages.

It was difficult to find a macroeconomic
factor that supported our business

or consumers. Tightening fiscal and
monetary policy was targeted at reducing
consumption which resulted in declining
purchasing power of our consumers.
Additionally, the devaluation of the
rupee led to higher prices of goods,
exacerbating consumer challenges.

The energy crisis followed by sharp
increases in electricity tariffs dampened
consumer sentiments. Increased taxation
and tariffs impacted both the costs of
sourcing and the disposable income of
consumers. Inflation had the highest
impact on consumer disposable income
as the CCPI soared during the year. These
factors combined to put many essential
white goods beyond the reach of a large
proportion of consumers, affecting their
quality of life.

The foreign exchange liquidity crisis led

to many products being classified as
non-essential and placed on a temporary
restricted list which was a monumental
challenge that could not be overcome
through agile strategy. The sharp decline
in disposable income exerted pressure on
salaries and wages while also diminishing
talent pools in the country as professionals
at all levels sought routes for economic
migration. Despite the overwhelming
odds, Singer Group was able to record an
operating profit of Rs.6.69 Bn, reflecting
the hard work done to recalibrate strategy
to volatile factors. However, the sharp
spike in Interest rates to over 30% was a
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body blow to profitability, resulting in

a post tax profit of Rs.95.93 Mn,
compared to Rs.4.11 Bn post tax profit in
the previous year.

The gradual decline in inflation and the
even more gradual easing of interest rates
and exchange rates are encouraging.
However, many essential white goods

still remain on the restricted list which
continues to be a concern as it gives

rise to a gray market with all the evils of
tax and tariff avoidance schemes and
more that will be difficult to control once
established.

While navigating through obstacles in
2022/23, we also used this time to look
inward to strengthen our business and
value propositions for stakeholders. We
strategised and are readying for our next
wave of growth at the opportune moment.

Relevant

Operating in Sri Lanka for 146 years,
Singer touches the lives of almost

every Sri Lankan. This is affirmed by the
Group’s winning the People Brand of

the Year Award at the SLIM- KANTAR
People awards organised by the Sri

Lanka Institute of Marketing for the 17th
consecutive year. In words borrowed from
the Marketing Director, it reflects the share
of heart’ that our brand holds within our
customers.

We are valued as we transform lives of

Sri Lankans with technology, creating
time and enriching experiences every

day through a comprehensive portfolio

of products. A continuous hire purchase
customer base and a loyalty customer
base are testament to the fact that

our relationships have moved beyond
transactional relationships to relationships
that are trusted to add value to their lives.
We have strengthened these relationships
with technology enhancements to
increase our reach and enhance customer
convenience through digital marketing,
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The Group is
committed to
creating a place
where people love to
come and contribute,
performance is
recognised and
competencies are
developed creating
happy employees.
We will also drive
manufacturing

and supply chain
excellence through
lean manufacturing
processes,
responsible sourcing
and streamlined
logistics. Our values
remain unchanged
as we will not
compromise on these
as these are what
binds us together,
shaping our culture.

ecommerce and payment gateways. The
Singer Loyalty program was simplified
and enhanced. Singer is prominent in
digital marketing as we extend our reach,
ensuring we increase our relevance to the
lives of people.

Adroit & Agile Strategy

We evolved our strategy from the Must
win battles implemented over the past
two years, paving the way to align our
business to the new strategy - A world
class brand. We articulated the three
dimensions to it which are a respected
corporate brand, a trusted consumer
brand and a loved employer brand.
Unparalleled customer centricity is a
core theme focusing on creating positive
customer experiences that strengthen
relationships through an unparalleled
product and service offering. We will
drive growth and profitability outpacing
the industry by instilling a strong

profit orientation in our businesses

and developing new channels and
business while growing current ones.
The Group is committed to creating a
place where people love to come and
contribute, performance is recognised
and competencies are developed
creating happy employees. We will also
drive manufacturing and supply chain
excellence through lean manufacturing
processes, responsible sourcing and
streamlined logistics. Our values remain
unchanged as we will not compromise on
these as these are what binds us together,
shaping our culture.

There were quick fixes that were
implemented immediately pending the

roll out of a state of the art CRM system.
Accordingly, our loyalty programme

was activated fast enabling us to reach
out to our customers with Singer Red
Points which has been a success. After
sales service was another priority area as
customers were more reliant on after sales
as affordability and availability became

key issues and people wanted to use
their appliances much longer. Training

of staff was key to driving success and

a comprehensive programme was rolled
for the Retail staff. Progress on strategy is
monitored monthly.

Opportunities seized

We kept looking for opportunities as

we were trying to grow in a policy
environment that promoted reducing
consumption. Disposable income was a
key issue and we decided to promote hire
purchase as a tool to be used cautiously
to address this. Education is an area where
people were still spending money and

we continued to maintain supply. Agri
business revived as the last harvest was
positive. Customers were also interested
in solutions to manage their energy bills.
This included a replacement market

for energy efficient products such as
refrigerators which enable customers to
realise savings fast. Customers were also
seeking solutions to generate renewable
energy in the solar category which was
also a growth category during the year.
There was increased interest in security
and surveillance solutions as well. The
Apartment and Construction industry are
recommencing activity and there is room
to provide total solutions for this segment.
Demand for furniture also increased and
the category’s gross sales crossed the
Rs.5 Bn mark which witnessed accelerated
growth.

We added new brands to our portfolio,
Honour and Panasonic. Our focus
turned to local manufacturing and
expanding the furniture business which
is a thrust category supported by a large
manufacturing facility. Customer interest
was maintained by adding new items on
the omnichannel platform on a regular
basis. As with every crisis, there are
opportunities to be seized and we are
focusing on identifying and addressing
them.



Driving performance
by seeking out
opportunities will be
the main priority in
the year ahead as we
look to restore our
top line and returns
to stakeholders.
Retaining critical
talent and developing
talent will be a key
strategy to drive our
aspirations.

We also took this opportunity to take

time to get things right. Productivity and
cost structures are being reviewed and
realigned to our goals so we can take

off as things pick up. We are optimising
and restructuring legacy systems and
processes to integrating technology in a
more meaningful manner. The organisation
structure will be leaner and more efficient.
Our branch network will also be reviewed
to rationalize. The ERP system is being
rolled out supporting growth with
business intelligence and Al. The system
will cover manufacturing segments as well.
We will continue to invest to drive lean.
These initiatives prepare us for a new era
of retail in consumer durables.

A loved employee brand

The Singer Team numbers around 3,000
permanent employees and a further
3,500 in geographically spread out

416 showrooms, factories, warehouses
and offices. Retaining, inspiring, and
motivating them amidst the economic
downturn was a challenge in 2022.
Accordingly, we engaged with the staff to

explain the situation, and the challenges
we faced. There were no salary cuts,
additional allowances were given regularly
and a bonus was paid although we

made losses to help employees tide over.
Economic migration of skilled employees
was a critical factor and our retention rate
declined as a result.

Our focus will be on professionalism in
everything we do and ensuring that we
have the right person for the right job,
from divisional heads to the shop floor
employee. This is a challenge, but we are
committed to developing and building
quality talent as it is fundamental to
running any successful organization.

Against the tide

From the beginning of the financial
year, the deck was stacked against retail
businesses simply because the need of
the hour was to reduce consumption
and all economic and fiscal policy was
designed to achieve this purpose. As a
result the Group’s top line declined by 29%
to Rs.54.77 Bn reflecting both negative
consumer sentiments and the impact of
tightening monetary and fiscal policies.
Financial services and Furniture were
the bright spots recording 18% and 12%
growth during the year while all other
categories recorded a decline.

Managing operation was the main focus.
When the top line comes down, we
needed to trim the costs which proved to
be a significant challenge. With factories,
we needed to curtail production. We

also needed to look at costs in a very
disciplined manner to identify potential
savings which was a Group-wide exercise.
Demand for after sales services increased
and we needed to redeploy resources to
this area as customers held onto products
longer. Gross margins also came under
pressure as disposable income declined
resulting in gross profit declining by 15% to
Rs.18.8 Bn.
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Costs were also managed to a large
extent. It is also commendable that we
were able to reduce the impairment
charge by 126%, reflecting prudent credit
controls. Operating profit of Rs.6.69 Bn
reflects the pain points and efforts to trim
costs as discussed above. The biggest
hurdle during the year was finance cost
as interest rates soared to over 30%.

As a result, Finance costs increased by
173% to Rs.5.25 Bn although borrowings
remained virtually unchanged. Profit
before tax was Rs.174.19 Mn compared to
Rs.5.54 Bn in the previous year reflecting
the severity of impact of external factors
on the performance of the Singer Group
despite our rigorous efforts to manage its
impacts. The impact of increased tax rates
on deferred taxes chipped away at the
profit after tax, reducing profit after tax to
a mere Rs.95.93 Mn for the reporting year
compared to Rs.4.11 Bn in the previous
year, a meagre but hard earned profit.

Total assets declined by 11.8% to Rs.78.79
Bn as we zealously guarded liquidity.
Working capital management was critical
to managing liquidity, borrowings and
finance costs. Our efforts are reflected

in the improvement of the current ratio
from 118 to 1.33 and the quick asset ratio
from 0.75 to 0.85. Debt equity declined
from 3.56 to 4.88 as revenue reserves
dipped with the payment of dividends for
the previous year. Borrowings remained
largely unchanged due to our focus

on working capital management and
liguidation of inventory.

ESG at Singer

Singer is aligned to the Hayleys ESG
Framework-Hayleys Lifecode and
greening our operations is a key part of

it. This year there was a strong focus on
greening our customer journey as energy
efficiency has also been a key concern of
our customers. Refrigerators in particular
have come a long way in improved energy
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efficiency which is key to managing
energy consumption in households and
businesses. Our rooftop solar was a
growth area as stated above. Similarly,
water efficiency is a key consideration
with appliances such as washing machines
and dishwashers. As our business is in
consumer durables, we are conscious of
the difference in the carbon and water
footprints of customers and the country
as a whole by ensuring that the products
we source and sell are environmentally
CONSCious.

We have increased our local sourcing this
year which supports local businesses as
well as reduces the length of our supply
chain for these products. Currently, we
have over 300 local businesses working
with us. Additionally, we have increased
local manufacture as well supporting

jobs in the country. The Singer Fashion
Academy continues to provide training
for over 6,500 people through a network
of 54 branches, supporting the apparel
industry with talent pools and creating
microentrepreneurs. Its recent partnership
with Lovely Professional University in India
expands the curriculum to degree level,
paving the way for Sri Lankans to get a
recognised qualification in this field.

Our ranking at #16 of the Most Respected
Entities is a reflection of the high
standards of conduct that we uphold.
Conduct and governance shape our
reputation and is the bedrock that has
sustained our existence of 146 years.

Future Outlook

There are signs of easing pressures

which is encouraging but we are aware
that it needs to be consolidated with the
finalization of the debt restructuring and
structural reforms that will put our country
on a path to recovery. Our activities
continue to be hampered by import
restrictions which still include essential
white goods including washing machines,
televisions, refrigerators, air conditioners
and kitchen appliances. As more women
seek to contribute to household budgets,
many of these items are not luxuries but
necessities that allow them to find time to
work.

The rise of the grey market with
undeclared goods smuggled into the
country is a hindrance to the progress

of the industry and depriving a larger
portion of tax revenue to the government.
The government must act fast to control
this effectively as they did with worker
remittances.

Driving performance by seeking out
opportunities will be the main priority
in the year ahead as we look to restore
our top line and returns to stakeholders.
Retaining critical talent and developing
talent will be a key strategy to drive our
aspirations.

The way we work and live are being
transformed by technology at a mind
blowing pace. Singer seeks to be a
catalyst that supports Sri Lanka’s pace of
development by putting technology into
the hands of Sri Lankans, supporting their
integration to a new era of digitalisation.
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WHO WE ARE

A Glance at Singer

Singer is a renowned household brand

in Sri Lanka with an established track
record of over 146 years. Its brand
heritage stems from the trust built over
generations and a vision to enrich and
elevate the lives of Sri Lankans across

the country. Singer has a formidable
market presence with an island wide reach
through 416 retail outlets, 1,250+ dealer

Purpose

Elevating and enriching
lives of people.

comforts, services and convenience at great value

Mission

points, 300+ service points and a state-
of-the-art e-commerce channel. Singer is
the market leader in Sri Lanka’s consumer
durables industry, with a portfolio of over
52 international brands and a dominant
presence in numerous product segments.
Singer’s local manufacturing presence is
considerable through the contributions

of its subsidiaries Regnis (Lanka) PLC,
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Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited,
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC and Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC-Furniture Factory which
produce a wide variety of high-quality
home appliances, sewing machines,
furniture and other components. The
Group is a subsidiary of Hayleys PLC, one
of Sri Lanka’s largest and most prestigious
conglomerates.

Improving quality of life, creating lifelong
partnerships with our customers by providing

Values

Lead with Respect

Demonstrate
responsibility and
integrity.

Improve and innovate
passionately.

Collaborate for success.
Respond with agility.

Drive sustainability

/

61 Mn USD

Brand value (by Brand Finance)

Singer is one of Sri Lanka’s best loved brands, having been
ranked as the People Brand of the Year at the SLIM-Kantar
People Choice Awards for 17 consecutive years.

penetration

Customer
Reach

Strength Of
Our Brand

The Group operates an extensive network of customer touch
points across multiple channels which have aided increased

416

Singer showrooms

16

5 Singer Care App

Social Media Platforms

Service Centres and

V4

Array of electronic products, home
appliances and furniture offered across
varying price points

600+

Electronic items

1,250+

kHome appliances

50+

International brands

Local

Extensive
Product
Portfolio

Manufacturing
Capabilities

The Group’s manufacturing capabilities
comprise of 4 factories.

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited
Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC - Furniture Factory

AN

/




20 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

PORTFOLIO

\

CONSUMER ELECTRONICS

Entertainment and audio-visual equipment

including televisions, DVDs, home theatres Rs. 4,358Mn

and audio solutions
Revenue

2022/23 —

Focus on local
procurement

660

N\
II
S

HOME APPLIANCES
Refrigerators, washing machines, kitchen
items and a comprehensive array of other Rs. 1 8,226 Mn

appliances Revenue

 Highlights of
2022/23 -

Focus on locally manufactured — =
products

AN

DIGITAL PRODUCTS
Computers, mobile phones and Rs. 12,728Mn

headphones
Revenue

 Highlights of
2022/23

Focus on new Brand

acquisition

AN

SEWING MACHINES
'J_. =

> Rs. 2,453Mn

@ Revenue

= |
2022/23

Partnering with Lovely
Professional University of India

Domestic and industrial sewing machines




Rs. 4,147Mn

Revenue

Rs. 9,653Mn

Revenue

Rs. 682Mn

Revenue

Rs. 2,520Mn

Revenue

g

a
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FURNITURE

Range of solid and modular, living room,
bedroom and office furniture

Lrighiigns of )
2022/23

Introduced 83 number of models
to the Furniture category

N (7

FINANCIAL SERVICES

Leasing, hire purchases, loans, provision
of a range of financial services such as
acceptance of utility bill payments and
insurance premiums

 Highlights of ____J
2022/23

Introduced 7 new
branches

AN

N

SOLAR

Solar powered solutions

Lrignignts of )
2022/23

Focus on domestic demand for solar
powered solutions

AN

N (7

OTHER

Tractors, Water pumps, agricultural
equipment, other personal and household
appliances

 Highlights of
2022/23

Operating profit
recorded Rs. 347 Mn

AN
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MILESTONES

Singer commenced
operations in Sri
Lanka with the
introduction of
sewing machines

1974

Listed in the
Colombo Stock
Exchange

1988

Commenced
manufacturing
of furniture
and
agricultural
products at
the furniture
factory

1998

Acquired
the local
brand,
SISIL

Incorporated as
a limited liability
company

1877

Isaac Merritt !

\

Singer founds .M. .

\
Singer & Company \\
and commences \
production of \
sewing machinesin

the United States \

1981

Commenced
manufacturing
of refrigerators
in

Sri Lanka
through Regnis
(Lanka) PLC

First Singer

1992

Mega Shop
opened in Sri
Lanka

2000




Introduced a range
of refrigerators
with R600a

refrigerant
technology for the

first time in South
Asia

Opened 400th
shop at Kundasale

2004
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2016

Conducted a group

Hayleys PLC
acquired a
controlling stake of

Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC

2017

Launch a new
e-commerce
website and

Singer
rebranding
initiative

2021

2023

Amalgamation

of Singer Digital
Media (Private)

Limited with

2013

Established
Singer Finance
(Lanka) PLC

restructuring and
acquired majority
stake of Regnis
(Lanka) PLC and
Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC

Singer Care
App

Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC

/—\/—\mﬁﬁ
O—=T

o O
Oh——
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GROUP STRUCTURE

S

The World Of

Hayleys

Since 1878

]

INGER

SINGER (SRI LANKA) PLC

I

L

(R IANIANRNARNARNNNNARN]

M

I

I

TS S S

s

SINGER
FINANCE

79.9%

Leasing, hire
purchasing, lending
and accepting
deposits financing,
gold loan, financing
of consumer durables
under loan scheme
and granting loans,
factoring, authorised
foreign currency
dealer and mobilising
fixed deposits and
savings

©

REGNIS

REGNIS (LANKA) PLC
58.3%
Manufacturing of
Refrigerators

©
REGNIS

REGNIS APPLIANCES (PRIVATE) LIMITED

58.3%

Manufacturing
Washing Machines

-0

SINGER
INDUSTRIES(CEYLON) PLC o
87.7% SINGER
M a n u fa Ct u rl n g Digital Media (Private) Limited
Assembling sewing 100%
machines Marketing
mobile phones.
(v (Amalgamated

with Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC

and continue

as Singer (Sri

Lanka) PLC
with effect from

30th January

2023)

REALITY LANKA
LIMITED
92.2%

Investment on
properties

©

| Busslness School

100%

Providing of
educational services.

o
DOMUS LANKA
(PRIVATE) LIMITED
100%
Designing,
manufacturing and
trading furniture.

(No Commercial
operations have been
commenced as of the

reporting period)
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SOCIO-EGONOMIC IMPACT

Integrating ESG at Singer

As part of the Hayleys Group, Singer adopted the Hayleys Lifecode launched in January 2022 to harmonise ESG integration across
all entities in the Hayleys Group. The Lifecode sets out the ESG policy framework for the Group and governance mechanisms, clearly
outlining the need for a holistic approach to decision making.

Financial
Stability &
Sustainability

Efficient
Resource

Integrated
thinking

Allocation

ESG Approach

- . jrge—
Biodiversity Water Utilisation g
Enhance 50% sustainable co
biodiversity by 5 water sourcing by
times, in the area 2030
occupied by the
Group

Energy and Environment Materials & Waste Structure and
Emissions Minimise our Zero landfill waste Oversight
30% reduction in footprint while by 2030 100% compliance

seizing opportunities
to shape a greener
future

Scope 1&2 GHG
emissions by 2030

to relevant laws
and regulations

Governance
Hayleys Responsible and
Lifecode Purpose responsive corporate
citizenry
Social Stakeholder Transparency
Striving and thriving LR ar:?d Acctt.lrate
together for a better Meaningful s
tomorrow and impactful Internal and
stakeholder external reporting
relationships on ESG factors
Enterprise Risk Ethics and Culture
Management

Full compliance to
Holistic process to the Hayleys Way
identify, measure
and mitigate ESG

risks
£
fdit

These aspirations represent the Group’s goals in pre-COVID operating conditions
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SOCIO-ECONOMIC IMPACT

Strengthening oversight of ESG Implementation

A full-time, dedicated sustainability executive supports the CEO and the Board in implementing ESG across Singer’s islandwide
network. The Group tracks performance against commitments set out in the Lifecode on a quarterly basis facilitating progress. As ESG
reporting continues to evolve at a rapid pace, we are preparing to enhance our own implementation, ensuring that areas relevant to the
business of Singer are given sufficient weightage.

Improving Alignhment in 2023/24

Singer is following the developments in sustainability reporting and is looking to improve its integration of ESG as follows:

[Improve alignment with IFRS Hayleys Lifecode j

Governance

Support management of consumer footprints through energy, water and
resource efficient products

Manage our own materials, energy and water consumption
Risk
Management Support circularity of products

Metrics & Managing Climate Risk and opportunities
Targets
Review our metrics to align to the Lifecode and ensure our priorities are
included
Statement of Value added - Group
Twelve Months Twelve Months
ended 31 st March ended 31 st March
2023 2022
CATEGORY Rs.’000 % Rs.’000 %
Group Revenue - Gross 58,625,516 80,039,226
Other Income 248,027 262,197
Less: Cost of Material and Services 40,539,488 57,778,805
Value Added 18,334,054 100.0 22,522,618 100.0
Distribution of value Added to Employees and Dealers
Salaries, Commissions and Other Benefits 4,032,322 22.0 4,302,685 191
To Government
Income taxes, Turnover Taxes, Value Added Taxes and Other Taxes 7,501,070 40.9 9,786,117 43.4
To Banks, Deposit Holders and other Lenders
Interest and Bank Charges on Borrowings and Customer Deposits 6,118,864 33.4 2,320,221 10.3
To Suppliers of Capital
Dividends to Shareholders - - 1,239,575 5.5
Retained for Reinvestment and future Growth
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 818,257 4.4 784,674 3.5
Retained Profits (136,459) 0.7 4,089,346 18.2
Value Distributed 18,334,054 100.0 22,522,618 100.0
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Our Impacts

The Group’s socio-economic impact is significant given its extensive geographical footprint and operating model. As a consequence
of its supply and distribution channels, the Company promotes the economic empowerment of around 10,000 households across the
island.

Social

Rs. 4.0 Bn

Payments to employees

6,510

Students enrolled in Singer Fashion
Academy Extensive product portfolio
offering better quality of life

Economic

Rs. 7.5 Bn

Total direct and indirect
taxes paid to the
Government of Sri Lanka

2500+

Indirect employees through entrepreneurial

branch model

Environment

A range of next-generation
technologies and solutions with
environmental engineering for a
better tomorrow

9 refrigerator models under the Sisil brand
received Minimum Energy Performance (MEP)
label by the Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy
Authority (SLSEA)
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VALUE CREATION MODEL

The Group’s operations involve the procurement, manufacture and retailing of a range of consumer durables through multiple
distribution channels. In executing this business model, the Group relies on several key resources and relationships which are

transformed through implementation of a holistic strategy across different business activities and processes. This transformation results

in the creation of value for the Group’s stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customers, supplier and other business partners.

Capital Inputs Capital transformation

Financial Capital

Funding and financial resources
available to the Group (Pg. 48-57)
Shareholders’ funds: Rs. 12,089 Mn
Borrowings: Rs. 30,221 Mn

Physical infrastructure and
manufacturing capabilities (Pg. 74-75)
4 manufacturing facilities

Total Capital Expenditure - Rs. 889 Mn
Shop Rebranded - 49

Shop Renovated - 15

Human Capital

Capabilities, skills and industry
knowledge of our 2,986 - strong
employees (Pg. 58-65)

Organisational capital, brands,
systems and processes (Pg. 76-79)

Social and Relationship Capital

Relationships which facilitate
continuity of operations (Pg. 66-71)
5.8 Mn customers

650+ Suppliers

1,250+ Dealers

Cognisant of our responsibility in
mitigating adverse environmental
impacts (pg. 80-85)

11% reduction in emission

Corporate Governance (Pg. 97)

Purpose / “"Mission
Improving quality of
life, creating lifelong
partnerships with our
customers by providing

comforts, services and

Elevating and
enriching lives of
people

convenience at great

UNDERSTAND
- CUSTOMER
TRENDS

MARKETING AND
DISTRIBUTION

RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT

WAREHOUSING

AND
DISTRIBUTION
<{
MANUFACTURING

D
/;)’

PROCUREMENT

Risk management (Pg. 110) Planning and budgeting




Our values )
Lead with Respect

Demonstrate
responsibility and
integrity.

Improve and innovate
passionately.

Collaborate for success.
Respond with agility.
Drive sustainability

Unparalleled customer
centricity

Above industry growth and
profitability

A place where people love to come
and contribute

Manufacturing and supply
chain excellence

Rs. 54,767 Mn

Revenue generated

Rs. 6,688 Mn

Operating Profit

46,530

Refrigerators manufactured

31,190

Washing machines manufactured

7,272

Sewing machines manufactured

4,148 Mn

Revenue from Furniture

548

New product Models

1,604

Employees over 5 years service

6%

energy Increase

11%

emission reduction

Information technology

Supply chain management
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Financial Capital
+ Gross Profit Margin : 34.5%

+ Operating Profit : Rs. 6,688 Mn
+ Total Assets : Rs. 78,798 Mn

+ Net assets per share: Rs 9.00

+Capital expenditure : Rs. 889 Mn
+Enhancing manufacturing
technology

Stores rebranded : 49

Stores renovated : 15

Human Capital

+Rs. 4,032 Mn Payments to employees
+Rs. 21 Mn investment in training

+18% Female representation

+Increased digitization of processes

+ Investment in brand building
initiatives

Social and Relationship Capital

+ Loyalty points redemption rate : 15%
+ Net promoter score : 86%
+ Investment in CSR : 6.2 Mn

+ Payments to suppliers: Rs 35 Bn

Natural Capital

+ Energy consumption: 70,515 GJ
+Water consumption: 120 Mn Litres

+ Renewable input material used: 40%
+ e-waste collected: 17,994 kg
+Carbon footprint: 13,932 tco2
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STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIPS

We recognize the significance of strong stakeholder relationships for long-term value generation and place a strategic emphasis on
identifying and addressing the issues of key stakeholders via open and consistent discussions. The Group has established a range of
formal engagement platforms to interact with its stakeholders. The group identifies stakeholders based on their impact. Persisting
macroeconomic uncertainty prompted additional strengthening of stakeholder involvement throughout the year. The Group’s stakeholder
engagement during the year is summarised below:

Customers

Shareholders

Employees

*  Product availability

e Affordability of products
*  Customer service

e Quality and reliability

. Financing options

*  After-sales service

. Return commensurate with
risk undertaken

e Implications of macro-
economic conditions on
performance and stability

e Transparency of
communication

o Corporate governance and
risk management practices

e Preservation of the brand

e Safety and wellbeing

e Attractive remuneration and
benefits

e Effective performance
management schemes

* Job security

e Opportunities for training
and development

e Career progression

e Launched Red Points
customer loyalty program

. Focus on customer service
center

. Customer centricity

. Hire purchase and easy
payment programs

. Extended warranty scheme

o Maintained ongoing and
transparent relationships with
our shareholders

o Focused implementation
of Singer SMART plan
with medium-to-long term
strategy

o Deliver operational excellence

. Focus on performance-based
culture

e Capability enhancement
through training and
development

e Creating the climate for o
success through engagement
and collaboration

OUR
RESPONSE [}

Strong

Net promoter score: 86%

Strong
Return on equity: 0.75%

Good

Employees retention rate 84%

STRENGTH OF
RELATIONSHIP

e Digital platforms including
website, 5 social media
platforms and Singer Care
App

e Advertising and promotions

e Branch Network

*  Service Centres

e Call Centre

¢ Annual General Meeting
¢ Annual Report

o Publication of quarterly
results

. One-to-one engagement
(when required)

o Board participation of
majority shareholder
(ongoing)

. Multi-level staff meetings
(ongoing)

. Satisfaction surveys
(periodic)

. Performance appraisals
(annual)

. Engagement via digital
platforms (ongoing)

e Open door policy (ongoing)




Suppliers/Principals

¢  Timely settlement of dues given
the country’s foreign currency
shortage

o Opportunities for mutual growth

o Sharing market insights

Dealers/Distributors

. Disruptions to distribution
channels

. Flexible repayment and credit
terms

e Opportunities for mutual growth

. Long-term contracts
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Government/Regulators

o Compliance to all relevant
regulations and guidelines,
particularly given restrictions in
importing products

e Job creation and economic value
creation

e Timely payment of taxes

o Responsible corporate citizenry

o Enhanced engagement with
international suppliers
o Expansion of local procurement

e Strengthened support to ensure
survival of dealers and distributors
. Elevate customer care

. Maintain compliance to all relevant
regulations and guidelines
. Proactive engagement with relevant

o Manufacturing and supply chain authorities
excellence
Good Good Good

Introduction of new product
models : 500+

Streamlining distribution channel to
optimize resources

Fully compliant to all relevant regulations,
laws and guidelines

o Supplier visits (periodic)

o Consultations and workshops
(periodic)

o Ongoing engagement through
procurement team

¢ Ongoing engagement through the
wholesale channel

. Regular meetings

. Engagement through industry
associations and forums (ongoing)

. Direct engagement with relevant
regulatory authorities (ongoing)
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OPERATING LANDSCAPE

Being a particularly volatile year, close monitoring of changing dynamics and managing risks was imperative to the Group’s

performance. The numerous socio-economic and environmental factors that are of significance to the Group and its ability to create
value is discussed through the PESTEL analysis presented below:

Technology

Changes in technology leading to
transformations in the way organizations
operate and providing new opportunities
for growth and innovation.

e Artificial Intelligence (Al) : Al is being
adopted in organizations to automate
processes, enhance decision-making,
and improve consumer experiences.

. Big Data: With the prevalence of data,
businesses are employing big data
analytics tools to gain insights into
customer behaviour, market trends,
and other crucial business metrics.

. Mobile Technology: Mobile devices
and applications are gaining
importance in the workplace, allowing
employees to work remotely while
remaining connected to the office.

. Cybersecurity: As organizations
become increasingly dependent on
technology, investment in robust
security measures become important

to protect sensitive data

Singer has been a catalyst for change in
the country, bringing in new technologies
and driving digital enablement.

¢ Importing appliances and devices
with the most recent technological
advances and manufacturing
products of world-class quality to
facilitate a convenient and modern
lifestyle.

o Increased connectivity through
smartphones, laptops and tablets
contributing towards digital
enablement of the country

¢  Driving reductions in customer’s
carbon footprint through offering
energy efficient products

-

S

Implications for Singer

Utilizing emerging technologies
to improve decision-making
and enhancing the customer
experience

Increased flexibility and efficiency
through new technology

Opportunities for cost
rationalization through
automation

Transforming engagement with
internal and external customers

Market opportunities created to
introduce the latest technological
advancements through imported
and manufactured product
portfolio.

-

Strategic response

Enhance focus on increasing
customer engagement through
digital platforms

Drive efficiencies through
digitalization and automation

Agile response to changing
customer demand




Political/Legal

Political instability

Shortages of essential items, accompanied
by power blackouts across the country

led to an unprecedented political crisis
through the first half of 2022. Widespread
anti-government protests led to a change
in political leadership and the revival in
supply of essential items, restoring political
stability in the second half of the year.

Taxation

VAT, corporate and personal taxes were
increased in September and October 2022
to bridge the growing budget deficits as
demonstrated below.

Social

Income Inequality

In the first half of 2022, economic
uncertainty caused widespread social
unrest across the country. Although it has
mostly steadied with the revival of supply
of essential items, persisting inflation has
exerted pressure on inequality, poverty,
and food security.

Taxation

(%)
40

35
30
25

20
15
10

5

0

2021/22 2022/23

B VAT

B SSCL

B Corporate Tax
B Personal Tax

Migration

The country’s prolonged economic

crisis has resulted in a large surge in
migration, with young professionals
pursuing employment prospects outside
the country. The brain drain will have

a negative impact on the country and
organizations in the short-to-medium
term.
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-

Implications for Singer

Disruption to supply chain and
challenges to ensure continued
supply of imported products

Increased price and margin
volatility

Slowdown in domestic demand
and weakened consumer
sentiments

Increased focus on local
manufacturing

N

Strategic response

Strategic focus on preserving
liquidity
Expand local manufacturing and

reliance on local input material

Focus on product portfolio with
varying price points

Vs

Implications for Singer

Increased price sensitivity of
customers

Limited opportunity for product
prices increases impacting
margins

Shift in consumer demand
towards low-cost products

Reduced loyalty towards branded
products

Strategic response

Pursued increase growth through
targeted marketing

Introduction of products at
various price points to drive value-
for-money portfolio
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OPERATING LANDSCAPE

Economic

onl]

(oo

Economic Environment

Macro-economic instability, power
shortages, import restrictions and FOREX
regulations resulted in Sri Lanka’s economy
contracting by 7.8% while industries shrank
by 16%. Outstanding domestic and foreign
debt swelled up to Rs. 25 trillion in July
2022 leading to a suspension of external
debt servicing. The country’s inability to
service its debt commitments and the
weak economic development prospects led
to Sri Lanka’s sovereign credit rating being
downgraded to Selected Default (S&P) in
the second quarter of 2022.

Import restrictions

The temporary suspension of ‘non-essential
imports’ issued by the Department of
Import and Export Control was relaxed

for several items including Refrigerators
and Washing machines in November 2022.
Restrictions for other import goods are
expected to be lifted gradually as the
economy begins to stabilize following the
approval of the Extended Fund Facility
(EFF) by the International Monetary Fund
(IMP).

Reforms

Successful debt restructuring negotiations
with the IMF has led to the approval

of an Extended Fund Facility (EFF) of
approximately US$ 2.9 Bn to support Sri
Lanka’s economic policies and reforms
while Sri Lanka continued to progress in
the macroeconomic policy adjustment
programs.

Exchange Rate

The free float of the exchange rate from
March 2022 resulted in the Sri Lankan
Rupee to depreciate by 46% against the
US Dollar and the interbank forex market
posed severe foreign currency shortages.
Policy measures implemented including
import restrictions and tariffs resulted in
the rupee beginning to appreciate by the
4th quarter.

Movement in Exchange Rate

(Rs./USD)
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Implications for Singer

. Product price escalations for
import products and increased
input cost for manufactured
products

. Increase in borrowing cost due to
increases in interest rates

. Impact on consumer’s disposable
income and sentiments

. Increased opportunities in the
value-for-money segment

- J

( A

Strategic response

e Strategic priority given to
optimizing inventories and
available resources

. Right pricing of product to
preserve margins while protecting
demand

. Focus on operational excellence

and productivity improvements
N J

Inflation

Inflation (NCPI) peaked at 73.7% y-o-y in
September 2022 leading to worsening

of household and corporate balance
sheets. Tight monetary policy stance by
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) was
adopted to contain runaway inflation,
coupled with tax adjustments, bringing
inflation down to 59.2% in December 2022

Inflation
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Environmental

Climate change

Climate change may have significant
implications on global value chains,
agricultural outputs, communities, and
businesses.

. Natural disasters leading to
infrastructure damages, disruptions to
supply chain and operations.

. New regulations, policies and taxes
imposed by governments to address
climate change

. Increased concern of consumers
and investors on organization’s
contribution and commitment
towards the environment

. Innovation opportunities to develop
new products and services that
reduce greenhouse gas emissions,

adapt to changing weather patterns
and support sustainable development.

1 1
DD ===
11

Greening the customer journey

Singer is aptly positioned to drive
reductions in customers’ environmental

impacts.

Sustainable supply chain management
by evaluating the entire life cycle of
the product from design to disposal

Sourcing from reputed industry
leaders who are at the forefront
of driving innovative solutions for
sustainability

Local manufacturing of products
featuring energy and water efficient
technology
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Implications for Singer

. Development of strategies to
build long term business resilience
through assessing risks and
opportunities associated with
climate change

¢ Opportunity to advocate
reductions in customers’ carbon
footprint by offering energy-
efficient products

-

Strategic response

¢ Adoptation of the Hayley’s
Lifecode with the aim of
managing socio-economic and
environmental impacts and
building resilience

. Focus on life cycle management
of sourced products
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DETERMINING MATERIALITY

The Group has adopted the comprehensive 7-part materiality test formulated by the Hayleys Group to determine the materiality
assessment process. This test has been designed in line with the definitions of materiality provided by the <IR> Framework and the
GRI Standards and represent the topics that could potentially have the most significant impact on the Group’s value creation over
the short, medium and long-term. The assessment includes evaluation of the potential impact on the organisation, which is analysed
using 6 filters as well as analysis of impacts on stakeholder decisions. We have also enhanced the list of material topics beyond those
prescribed by the GRI guidelines to include topics that are specific to our value creation model, industry and strategy.

Establish Evaluate .
[ process importance of D.etermlne
i parameters relevant matters disclosures

o T—— -

P < 4
e Group’s business | e Disclosures
model Setting the determined based
¢ Strategic Filteration reporting on,
aspirations | .. : boundary A& e (O IR Framework
* Discussions with * (2) GRI Standards
Heads of divisions « (3) Performance

¢ Reporting ° é ° Management/KPI
frameworks (GRI . - - ] framework
and IR) ¢ Organisational impact e Each factor is scored e Group’s operations
(refer below) from 1 (low impact) « Industry dynamics,
e Stakeholder impact to 3 (high impact) risks and
and aggregated to opportunities

obtain a consolidated
e External stakeholders
score

The following filters are used in determining the organisational and stakeholder impacts

(- o i N . ) 1. Financial impact: Potential impact on Group’s short, medium
Ol e et Stakeholder impact and long-term financial performance, cash flow generation and
(v] (v] financial stability
. Financial Impact o Customers 2. Innovation opportunity: Opportunity for new product or process

development arising from the relevant material issue that could

¢ Innovation Opportunity * Employees
lead to a sharpening of the Company’s competitive edge

¢ Reputation e Shareholders

. Externalitios . Suppliers 3.  Reputation: Potential impacts on the organisation’s reputation

. Strategic link o Business partners 4. Externalities: Potential impacts from external variables including
Rick G ; (but not limited to) exchange rates, interest rates, commodity

. is . overnmen

prices, climate change etc.

e C iti
ernmunities 5. Strategic link: Matters related to value creation which form the

N J J basis of boardroom discussions

6. Risk: The magnitude and likelihood of exposure to both external
and internal risk factors

7. Importance to stakeholders: Level of impact on stakeholder
decisions
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Material topics for 2022/23

The operating landscape changed significantly during the year, reflecting macro-economic stress and supply chain disruptions. The
material topics for the year and the corresponding GRI disclosures and SASB disclosures are presented in the table below.

Materiality Map 2022/23
Macro-economic vulnerabilities

100%

S AN > - N \ X Brand equity and corporate
B A reputation

Good governance, |

ethics and compliance [ Customer centricity

Manufacturing capabilities 1\ Managing our people

——————— / Pandemic-led disruptions

Product quality and responsibility
Embracing technology e - - Route to market
Innovation and portfolio evolution

— QOrganisational impact Stakeholder impact

Material topic and why it is material to us Corresponding GRI topic Topic boundary Strategic response

Macro-economic vulnerabilities All Group’s operations in
Shortage in foreign currency, rising inflation SriLanka

and decline in disposable incomes have a

direct impact on our supply and demand

dynamics
Government policy All Group’s operations in
Import restrictions as well as monetary and Sri Lanka

fiscal policy developments have a significant
impact on our operations, growth and profit

margins
Financial performance and stability All Group’s operations in M
Maintaining good profitability and a healthy Sri Lanka @]ﬂﬂﬂ

balance sheet is essential in delivering long-
term shareholder value and enhancing
business resilience
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DETERMINING MATERIALITY

Material topic and why it is material to us Corresponding GRI topic Topic boundary Strategic response

Brand equity and corporate reputation

The Group’s established track record and
strong brand name is a key source of
competitive edge

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

e

Customer centricity

Customer centricity is critical in preserving our
competitive edge given rapidly evolving and
increasingly sophisticated customer needs

GRI 418: Customer Privacy

Relates to the Group’s
extensive customer base
across all products/
services

E

Managing our people

Attracting, developing and retaining the right
talent is an essential pre-requisite in driving our
strategic aspirations

GRI 401 Employment

GRI 402: Labour management
relations

GRI 403: Occupational health and
safety

GRI 404: Training and education

GRI 405: Diversity and equal
opportunity

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

R

Product quality and responsibility
Offering good quality products and engaging
in responsible business practices is critical in
preserving our brand and market share

GRI 416: Customer health and
safety

GRI 417: Marketing and labelling

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Route to market

Efficient and effective distribution channels is
essential in increasing the availability of our
products

Topic boundary extends
to our distribution and
dealer networks

Innovation and portfolio evolution

We continue to evolve and innovate our
portfolio to be in line with the dynamic
customer needs

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Embracing technology

Technology offers significant advantages in
driving process efficiencies, transforming the
customer experience and providing better
information for decision making.

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Managing the supply chains

Disruptions to supply chains due to global
and domestic factors impacted the cost and
uninterrupted supply of input materials and
finished goods

GRI 204: Procurement practices
GRI 407: Freedom of Association
and Collective Bargaining

GRI 408: Child Labour

GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory
Labour

GRI 414: Supplier Social
Assessment

Boundary includes our
local and international
supply chain partners




Material topic and why it is material to us

Corresponding GRI topic
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Topic boundary Strategic response

Principal relationships

Singer represents over 50+ international
brands, which is a key source of the Group’s
competitive edge

GRI 409: Forced or Compulsory
Labour

GRI 414: Supplier Social
Assessment

Boundary extends to all
international brands we
represent in Sri Lanka

Manufacturing capabilities

The Group’s local manufacturing footprint
contributes to approximately 30% of
consolidated revenue

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Good governance, ethics and compliance

Essential for the continued creation of shared
value while preserving our social license to
operate

GRI 205: Anti Corruption

GRI 206: Anti-competitive
Behaviour

GRI 406: Non-discrimination

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Economic contribution

The Group’s extensive footprint and
relationships along its value chain, places it
in a strong position to drive economic value
creation

GRI 201 Economic performance

GRI 203: Indirect economic
impacts

GRI 207: Tax

Extends beyond our
operations to our supply/
distribution chain and
communities

Environmental consciousness

We are cognisant of the role we can play in
driving down the environmental footprint of
our operations as well as that of our customers

GRI 301: Materials

GRI 302: Energy

GRI 303: Water and effluents
GRI 305: Emissions

GRI 306: Waste

All Group’s operations in
Sri Lanka

Community empowerment

Maintaining healthy relationships within
the communities we operate, is essential in
supporting our social sustainability aspirations

GRI 413: Local communities

Extends to the
communities in which we ii
operate

Unparalleled
Customer Centricity

%

61

Above Industry Growth
and Profitability

Loved Employer Brand
® L J

Manufacturing and
Supply Chain Excellence
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OUR STRATEGY

Singer's focus on the 8 Must-Win Battles over the last two years paved the way for the business to be aligned holistically, making
significant progress to demonstrate outstanding performance. During the current fiscal year, the Group further refined its strategic
goals for transforming Singer into a world-class brand by developing a respected corporate Brand, a trusted consumer brand, and a
loved employer brand.

The Singer SMART plan was launched encapsulating the 4 pillars of focus and areas of efficiency for each pillar.

SINGER

SINGER (SRI LANKA) PLC

A WORLD CLASS BRAND

Respected Corporate Brand — Trusted Consumer Brand — Loved Employer Brand
Unparalleled customer Above industry growth A place where people love Manufacturing and
centricity and profitability to come and contribute supply chain excellence
e Customer Experience ¢ Profit Orientation ¢ Performance Driven Culture | ¢ Local Manufacture
e Customer Loyalty & CRM * New Channels /Business ¢ Competency Development e Sourcing
¢ Product & Service Offering e Growth In Current Channels ¢ Happy Employees e |ogistics
( - N
% /..;‘ @ % - %
Lead With Demonstrate Improve & Innovate Collaborate For Respond With Drive
Respect Responsibility Passionately Success Agility Sustainability
And Integrity
N\ J

Progress against strategy in 2022/23

Unparalleled customer centricity \

Developments and Highlights Measuring progress
¢ New loyalty program themed Singer Red Points 88% Customer satisfaction rate in after
launched with new website sales service

. Focus on enhanced after sales service with dedicated 86% Net promoters score

team to follow up on service requests and resolve

problems 49 showrooms rebranded

. Use of Business Intelligence platforms including 15 Shops renovated
operational dashboards to optimize customer
statistics

. Recognition programs to reward best service centre,
franchise agents and technicians

. Implementation of SOPs to enhance customer care
at dealer points
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Above industry growth and profitability

.

Developments and Highlights

Proactive measures to activate customer base
through the relaunch of the loyalty program.

On going engagement with suppliers and timely
increase in inventory to minimize impact of import
restrictions

Continued focus on expanding product portfolio with
9 new brand partnerships

Increased penetration into solar power segment with
additional sales of Rs. 400 Mn

Focus on Hire purchase sales and improve number of
accounts to 250,000

Stringent focus on cost management through lean
operations and focus on reducing stagnant and slow-
moving inventory

~

Measuring progress

Sales from Solar business increased by
240% to Rs. 682 Mn

Introduced 9 new brands including 2
international brands

Inventory reduced by Rs, 2,795 Mn

A place where people love to come and contribute

Developments and Highlights

.

Launch of new Group values in line with Singer’s
SMART plan to align employee focus and
contribution.

Launch of the Singer Life App to encourage
employees to demonstrate values and provide
feedback

Focus on enhancing employee capabilities and
strengthening the performance management system

Comprehensive talent development agenda to
mitigate impact of talent migration from the country

Measuring progress

Implemented SMART goals for all
management employees aligned with
business outcome

Investment in training - Rs. 21 Mn

Re launch of holiday plans for employees

o

Manufacturing and Supply chain excellence

i Developments and Highlights

Focus on local manufacturing amidst constraints
faced in sustaining imported supplies

Proactive engagement with local and international
suppliers to minimize supply disruptions

Initiatives to drive operational efficiency and optimize
resources

Continued innovation to broad the product portfolio
through local manufacturing

/

Measuring progress

56% capacity utilization
Introduced 15 new suppliers
47% local purchases

Rs. 35 Bn payments to suppliers
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING AT SINGER

Our approach to Sustainability

The Singer Group’s sustainability commitments are clearly set out in ‘Singer-Paramaarthayen Perata’ (Progress through purpose),

a holistic sustainability vision, which is aligned to the Hayleys Lifecode and has been refined to suit Singer’s business model and

operating context. We are also committed to nurturing a socially and environmentally conscious culture across the organization, as

reflected in the inclusion of ‘Sustainability” to the Group’s recently launched Core Values. The Framework is centered on 4 pillars and

defines social and environmental targets in line with the aspirations of the Hayleys Group. Each of these pillars are also linked to the
United Nations Sustainability Development Goals (SDG) as illustrated below:

e

Energy and Water management
Targets for 2030

Energy reduction: 25%
Water reduction: 25%

4

Emission
management

Targets for 2030
Emission reduction: 25%
Life cycle assessment for products

\

Engaged, diverse and capable team

Female representation in
executive and above: 25%

“ | J’|
Q
Enhance livelihoods
through CSR projects

\ Sustainability Reporting at Singer

The Group has sought to evolve its

Targets for 2030 sustainability reporting practices in Ifne with
global developments and best practices

in corporate reporting. This has been
complemented by the implementation

of a tailor-made Sustainability Reporting
Information System (the CUBE) which
facilitates the collection and analysis of
accurate, real-time information providing
better insights for decision making. The
system features multi-level users, flagging of

data variances, comparative analysis and in-

built calculations and monthly/quarterly and

Community annual dashboards among others.

commitment through
education, health and
youth development

The narrative report has been structured to
demonstrate the value created, preserved and
eroded for the six capitals as defined by the
IR Framework while the GRI disclosures have
been included wherever relevant within these
chapters. Disclosures required under the
SASB guidelines for Multiline and Specialty
Retailers & Distributors (2018) are presented
in the table below:

Targets for 2030

Multi-line and Specialty Retailers & Distributors - Sustainability Disclosure topics and accounting metrics

Topic Accounting metric Unit of Disclosure Page
measure
Energy Management in  Total energy consumed GJ 60,101 GJ 80
Retail & Distribution % grid electricity % 100%
% renewable % N/A
Data Security Description and approach to n/a Robust policies and standards are in 100

identifying and addressing data
security risks

place to identify cyber security risks.

A monthly meeting is held to identify,
mitigate exposure to and share knowledge
between departments on cybersecurity
risks
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Topic Accounting metric Unit of Disclosure Page
measure
Number of data breaches No. Nil 100
% involved personally identifiable % Nil
information
Number of customers affected No. Nil
Labour practices (HAverage hourly wage No. Rs.164/- (Non-Executive) 58
(2)% of in-store employees earning % 100%
minimum wage by region
(MWVoluntary turnover rate for in- % 16% 58
store employees
(2)Involuntary turnover rate for in- % Nil
store employees
Total amount of monetary losses Rs.million  Nil 58
as a result of legal proceedings
associated with labour law violations
Workforce diversity & Percentage of gender and racial/ 58
inclusion ethnic group representation for
(1) management % Male 86%/Female 14%
(2) all other employees % Male 81%/Female 19%
Total amount of monetary losses Rs.million  Nil 58
as a result of legal proceedings
associated with employment
discrimination
Product sourcing, Revenue from products third-party Rs.million  N/A 80
packaging and certified to environmental and/or
marketing social sustainability standards
Discussion of processes to assess We manufacture all of our refrigerators 80
and manage risks and/or hazards with R600a refrigerant, which minimize
associated with chemicals in the harm to O3 and energy is efficient.
products
Discussion of strategies to reduce In refrigerator packaging the Group has 80

the environmental impact of
packaging

replaced Styrofoam packaging with paper
pulp packaging for top and side panels




MAKING A
POSITIVE
IMPACT




The Capitals Report

Financial Capital . . wesmeeresesaneees 48
Human Capital ... . . wesmeenenannnees 58
Social And Relationship Capital.......cccoccvvrrercrnnncne 66
Manufactured Capital . - rereneenenans 72
Intellectual Capital ....... . eimeeeesneessnnes 76

Natural Capital.... . . wesmeereeesaneees 80
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Rs. 54,767Mn

Revenue

Rs. 12,090Mn

Total Equity

-

Rs. 6,688Mn

Operating Profit

Rs. 78,798Mn

Total Assets

Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements presented
herein represent Consolidated Financial
Statements of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

for the year ended 3l1st March 2023. The
Consolidated statements include the
Company, Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC along
with its subsidiaries, Singer Finance
(Lanka) PLC, Singer Industries (Ceylon)
PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Singer Business
School (Private) Limited as well as indirect
subsidiaries Regnis Appliances (Private)
Limited and Reality Lanka Limited.

Overview

The Group’s performance in 2022/23
should be set out in the context of the
operating landscape that prevailed during
the year. The country’s weakened macro-

economic climate led to considerable
challenges for businesses. For the Singer
Group these difficulties were compounded
due its reliance on imported goods, as

the severe shortage in foreign exchange
liquidity, resultant restrictions on imports
had a sharp adverse impact on supply and
sluggish market conditions persisted as a
result of the significant rise in inflation and
high interest rates, which had an impact
on disposable income and consumer
sentiment.

Nevertheless, periodic price increases
implemented early in the financial

year partially offset the impact of
unprecedented exchange losses and
interest expenses. Amidst supply chain
difficulties, the Group was able to continue
operations due to timely decisions to
increase inventory levels and capitalizing

Highlights 2022/23

EBIT margin widened to
12.2% from 10.7%

Net Finance cost increased
by 173%

on its local manufacturing capabilities.
Despite these obstacles, the Group
delivered a resilient performance, as
detailed in the following pages.

Revenue

Due to the decline in volumes caused

by category-wide import restrictions,
consolidated Revenue decreased by 29%
to Rs. 54.8 billion during the year, while
at Company level, revenue decreased

by 30% to Rs. 48 billion. Inflationary
pressures necessitated price increases,
which contributed substantially to
top-line growth despite industry-wide
volume declines. Strategic focus on local
manufacturing resulted in the Furniture
Segment reaching its highest sale of Rs.
41 billion. Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC
contributed Rs. 6.4 billion to Group top
line with a 25% increase in revenue. All
other segments were impacted by the
temporary suspension of ‘'non-essential
imports’, although market leadership was
maintained for key product categories as
a result of timely and relevant marketing
strategy.



Income
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Charges and Expenses

Revenue

Rs. 54,767.2 Mn

Net Revenue Analysis

(Rs. Mn)
80,000

70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000

10,000

2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23

Impairment costs

The weakened macro-economic
conditions had an adverse impact

on collections of trade debtors, hire
purchases and lease receivables of the
Company. During the fourth quarter of
the fiscal year 2022/23, the most recent
macroeconomic forecast data was
incorporated into the impairment model
to ensure more prudent provisions for
bad debts in accordance with SLFRS 9.
Consequently, the group and company’s
bad debt provisions decreased by

Rs. 884.6 million and Rs. 421.3 million,
respectively, compared to the prior year.

Net Finance Cost

Group and Company finance costs on
loans and borrowings increased by Rs
3,323.2 million and Rs 3,723.8 million,
respectively, during the period under
review, as a result of increased borrowing
levels and higher interest rates from a
tightening of monetary policy. Due to
the significant devaluation of the rupee
in March and April 2022, the group’s
net exchange losses increased from Rs.
393.9 million to Rs. 869.3 million. Group
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m Other

and Company interest costs comprise
interest on Lease liabilities of Rs. 540.5
million and Rs. 543.2 million, respectively.

The interest income gained from
investments in treasury bonds and Repos
raised Group and Company Finance
Income by Rs. 1127 million and Rs. 198
million, respectively

Gross Profit

Given the market’s lacklustre conditions,

we were compelled to compromise profit
margins to maintain the sales momentum.
The company focused on sustaining its
revenue lines through a careful mix of price,
profits, and customer affordability. This
brought about a 15% decline in consolidated
gross profit to Rs. 18,872 million and a 12.6%
decline in company gross profit to Rs. 16,216
million. During Q4 margins were impacted
by promotions to induce customers in light
of slow market conditions and to clear out
slow-moving inventory. Despite operating
environment challenges, the Group’s gross

margin percentage rose from 28.9% to 34.5%

and the company’s gross profit margin rose
from 27% to 33.8% during FY 2022/23.

m Digital Products

Operating Profit

Despite the contraction in sales Singer
Group and the Company operating profit
margins were 12.2% (PY-10.7%) and 131%
(PY-10.4%) respectively. During the period
under review, the operating profits for
Group and Company were Rs. 6,688 million
and Rs. 6,273 million, respectively. The
group’s selling and administrative expenses
for the period decreased by Rs. 899 million
to Rs. 12,614 million, primarily due to the
decline in revenue-driven variable and semi-
variable expenses. Group and Company’s
fixed overhead decreased by Rs. 89 and Rs.
216 million, respectively.

Pre and Post Tax Profits

During the year, pre-tax profit decreased
by 96.9% to Rs. 1741 million due to a
decline in sales and an increase in finance
costs. The change in income tax rate
from 24% to 30% led to an increase in the
Group’s deferred tax asset, which resulted
in a deferred tax credit of Rs. 291.6 million
for the year ended 31 March 2023 and had
a positive effect on the PAT. Singer Group
and Company recorded a PAT of Rs. 96.9
million and Rs. 220.6 million, respectively,
as a result of high finance costs and
exchange losses that eroded profitability.
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Profits Assets
Operating Profit Interest Cost Profit Before Tax
Rs. 6,687.8 Mn Rs. 5,249.5 Mn Rs. 174.1 Mn
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Financial Position

The company’s total assets decreased by
Rs. 10.5 billion against 31st March 2022
as a result of the reduction of current
assets by Rs. 6.1 billion due to the net
change of inventory and the significant
reduction in receivables/advances due
to the contraction in demand compared
to March 2022. The asset composition

is skewed towards current assets, which
comprised 72.2% of total assets as of the
end of March 2023.

Tax Expenses

The Group’s total liabilities consisted of
35.8% long-term liabilities and 64.2% current
liabilities. Current liabilities decreased from
Rs. 53.5 billion to Rs. 42.8 billion due to a
contraction in demand, while long-term
liabilities increased from Rs. 22.3 billion to
Rs. 23.9 billion due to the increase of other
financial Liabilities of Subsidiary Company
Singer (Finance) Lanka PLC. Restrictions on
importing via letters of credit compelled the
company to import products via telegraphic
transfer, resulting in an increase in interest-
bearing borrowings as of 31 March 2023.

Profit after Tax

2018/19
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23

The Group’s funding position remained
relatively healthy, with 15.3% of total
assets funded by equity. The Group’s
total equity declined by 10.7% to Rs. 12.1
billion, primarily due to the surcharge tax
of Rs. 804.8 million and the payment of
a dividend of Rs. 225.4 million which was
partially offset by the increase in total
comprehensive income.

Earnings per Share
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Liabilities Equity Cashflow
Dividend Per Share Dividends Paid Return On Equity
Rs. 0.20 Rs. 257.8 Mn 0.75%
(Rs.) (Rs. Mn) (%)
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Financial Position Structure Assets
%

During the year, the Group’s cash flow Net Assets per Share Vs. Market
and liquidity position increased, reflecting Price per Share

an overall improvement in operational 100
activities. Net Cash Inflow from Operating (Rs. Mn) (Rs)
Activities was Rs. 958.8 billion, an increase 12 25 80
over the previous year. Singer Finance’s
investments in bank deposits and other 10 60
marketable securities during the financial \
year resulted in a net cash outflow of Rs. 8 20
1,623.4 million, compared to Rs. 1,591.2 40
million the previous year. The rise in 6
customer deposits, repayment of interest- 20
bearing loans and borrowings, and final 4 15 - -
dividend payments resulted in a net cash 0
inflow of Rs. 1,676.8 million from financing 2 2021/22 2022/23
activities.
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Business Line Review

Consumer Electronics

The Group is a prominent supplier of Consumer Electronics to the Sri Lankan market,
offering an assortment of products at varying price points. The Group's customer reach
is supported by its extensive retail and wholesale channels.

Sector Performance

Consumer Electronics
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Contribution to the Group
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Product Map

Televisions

Audio solutions

Speakers

Home theatres

Operating Environment

Foreign currency shortages and the temporary suspension of ‘non-essential’ imports
had a significant impact on providing continuous inventory to this segment. Weakened
consumer sentiments, dwindling disposable income and the sharp rise in inflation had
negative conseguences on market demand. The grey market formed as a result of high
import barriers also disrupted the market by making low-cost products available.

Performance in 2023

Import restrictions had the most detrimental effect on the consumer electronics industry,
resulting in a 45.9% decline in revenue to Rs. 4,357.7 Mn. Anticipating disruptions in the
supply chain, inventory levels were increased through opportune product purchases,
allowing for uninterrupted product supply in certain categories. However, import
restrictions negatively impacted the key product category of television, resulting in

a 74% decline in television sales volume, while cost inflation led to a 27% increase in
television prices.

Segment Strategy

Singer continued to promote consumer electronics by venturing into the market via
personal selling and door-to-door sales canvassing. Customers were further enticed
to exchange their used televisions to newer ones with exchange discounts offered at
all Singer branches. The affordability concerns of customers were also addressed by
offering easy payment schemes and flexible payment terms.

Way Forward

With import restrictions for ‘non-essential items’ starting to ease we anticipate inventory
levels to be built up towards the 2nd quarter of the next financial year. The appreciation
of the rupee will also have a positive impact on import costs, allowing us to pass on the
price benefits to consumers. Once availability and affordability of this segment begin

to normalize, we are optimistic that robust demand for these product categories will
resume.




Home Appliances

Despite the adverse market conditions, Singer continued to hold a dominant market
position in the home appliances category, through the contribution of its local
manufacturing strength and timely marketing approach.

Er—

ector Performance

Home Appliances
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Operating Environment

Slowdown in economic activity and inflationary pressure had an effect on consumer
demand and sentiment, resulting in a decline in sales for this segment. Continuous price
increases were necessitated by the severe depreciation of the rupee and the rising cost of
inputs. The kitchen appliances category was significantly impacted with 95% of products
facing temporary import suspension.

Performance in 2023

The operating context impacted on the Segment’s performance with revenue decreasing
by 33.2% to Rs. 18,225.9 Mn. While the temporary suspension of imports of these item
categories hampered continuous supply of inventory, the Group benefited from its local
manufacturing capabilities in the production of Refrigerators and Washing Machines. The
high increase in input materials necessitated the increase in prices of Refrigerators and
Washing machines by 28% and 37% respectively.

Segment Strategy

Singer navigated the adverse conditions in the market with opportune strategies

to maintain the market leadership in key product categories. Singer implemented
continuous marketing campaigns, two of which received recognition at the SLIM Digis 2.2
ceremony. To address customers’ affordability concerns, competitive pricing strategies
were adopted, and flexible payment options were made available. In order to mitigate
the effects of import restrictions, Singer has also strengthened its partnerships with local
suppliers and improved after sales services to extend the useful life of products.

Way Forward

With the gradual easing of import restrictions and the rupee beginning to appreciate in
the 4th quarter, we anticipate a rise in demand for this market segment. We will continue
to prioritize the domestic production of refrigerators and washing machines and pursue
the advantages of the zero-import-duty structure for certain product categories. We
have also partnered with the Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority to identify less
energy-efficient refrigerators in homes and convert them to more energy-efficient
models.
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Furniture

The Group adds significant local value by producing a variety of home furnishings at
our own manufacturing location. With sales exceeding Rs. 4.1 Bn in the current year, the
Group continues to expand its production footprint in this market.

Growth and profitability

The Segment recorded the revenue growth of 12.2% and profit of Rs. 373.7 Mn supported
by strategic focus on increasing its local manufacturing contribution. With restrictions

Sector Performance

Furniture in imported goods impacting the market, demand conditions for locally manufactured
(Rs .Mn) (Rs.Mn) items were favourable during the year. We are also in the process of obtaining the FSC
5,000 500 accreditation in order to access the export market for furniture sales.
4,000 400
3,000
300 Manufacturing Capabilities
2,000
1000 200 The Segment operates in a factory that produces modular and solid furniture. The
' modular factory is outfitted with innovative machinery and has a low labour component,
0 o = ~ o 100 whereas the solid factory is more labour-intensive. Throughout the year, the Segment
N
g S § N concentrated on increasing efficiency through enhanced automation. While capital
— N N N
Q Q Q Q expenditure was kept to a minimum, we continued new product development projects

B Revenue by hiring several key machineries.
- Operating profit

Contribution to the Group

Innovation and new product development

Furniture Through innovative technology, quality, and aesthetics, we have continued to harness our
. design and production capabilities to cater to the increasingly sophisticated Sri Lankan
w market. Emerging client needs for more technologically advanced, user-friendly, and

eco-friendly products compel us to diversify our portfolio with timely and new product

2022/23 offers. During the year we introduced 83 models to the furniture category.

Revenue
\) Way Forward
Operating profit \)

We are optimistic about the development potential of Sri Lanka’s furniture industry and
are eager to expand our product offering, capacity in the medium to long term. Due to

the restrictions on furniture imports into the country, we see significant upside potential
for local manufacturers and will seek to capitalize on this while also pursuing the export
market.

Product Map

Solid furniture
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Digital Products

Singer is one of Sri Lanka’s prominent providers of computers and mobile phones,
offering a selection of world-renowned brands such as Dell, Asus, TCL, ZTE and
Huawei. The Segment operates multiple distribution channels that serve the retail and
commercial markets, allowing it to expand its consumer base.

Sector Performance

Digital Products
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Computers

While there was a boom in computers during the pandemic period, notably with the
increase in work/study from home arrangements, demand has subsequently normalized.
Singer has managed to maintain its market leadership in computers for the last 2 to 3 years,
with its exclusive partnership with DELL and extensive market reach through its consumer
and commercial distribution. As digital adoption continues, we expect growth opportunities
to continue in this sector.

Mobile Phones

Singer distributes world-renowned mobile phone brands, including Samsung, and is

the exclusive partner for Huawei, TCL mobile, and ZTE. Singer distinguishes itself from
competitors by providing affordable, high-quality products along with superior customer
service and after-sales support. The introduction of new smartphone brands in Sri Lanka
is a challenging endeavour given the dominance of established brands. Nonetheless,
Singer’s brand strength and customer loyalty have enabled the company to leverage its
position to introduce a range of new brands.

Security Surveillance Systems

As the need for security in Sri Lanka increases, there is a rising demand for high quality
surveillance systems that can provide dependable monitoring and protection. Within a
two-year time frame, the category was able to generate Rs. 816 Mn in sales revenue and
hold a 25% market share, propelling the industry to the next level. To distinguish itself
from competitors, Singer offers superior products, customized solutions, and value-
added services such as remote monitoring and consumer education and training.

Way Forward
Demand for this segment is anticipated to be moderate in the near future, given the
price-sensitivity of the market. With the rupee’s appreciation and the relaxation of import
regulations, we are optimistic that demand will start to increase in the second half of the

year. We hope to keep strengthening our partnerships with renowned brands in order to
expand our product portfolio with the latest technology.
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Sewing machines being the Group’s pioneering product, Singer dominates the sewing o -
machine market with an estimated 70% market share. Both domestic and industrial N~
sewing machines are assembled in Sri Lanka by the segment’s subsidiary, Singer -
Industries (Ceylon) PLC. - - 2
B s

Sector Performance

Sewing Machines
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Growth and profitability

The unfavourable market conditions caused due to inflationary pressure and negative
consumer sentiments resulted in a 38% decrease in revenue for domestic sewing machines
compared to the previous financial year. However domestic sewing machines have retained
a strong market presence with 93% market share. During the financial year, Singer Fashion
academy achieved its highest-ever revenue of Rs.115.8 million, a 63% increase over the
previous year, while enrolling 6,510 new students.

Marketing strategy

In recent decades, the increased preference for ready-made garments has led to a
progressive decline in demand for conventional sewing machines. In response, the
Segment has sought to increase demand for portable sewing machines by emphasizing
their recreational value, focusing primarily on a younger demographic that could
pursue sewing as a hobby and creative expression. This strategy has been effective, as
the market share of portable sewing machines has steadily increased in recent years.
With the introduction of non-traditional and efficient models, 54% of domestic sewing
machine sales were comprised of portable and computerized sewing machines.

Singer Fashion Academy

Singer Fashion Academy, which has more than 60 years of experience in the industry,
has produced innumerable entrepreneurs in sewing and fashion design. Additionally, the
academy is the only institution in the country to receive course validation status from the
Chartered Society of Designers (CSD) in the United Kingdom. Realizing the industry’s
market trends and the need for specialized knowledge, Singer Fashion Academy initiated
a partnership with Lovely Professional University in India to provide students with the
opportunity to earn a degree.

Way Forward

While price increases and weak consumer sentiment have dampened demand for this
segment, we anticipate the market to recover as the economy gradually improves. The
Segment will continue to focus on enhancing its value proposition and market share in
the portable machines segment, where we see substantial growth potential.




Financial Services

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, a subsidiary of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC, providing leasing,
hire purchase, and loan facilities. It is a finance and leasing institution licensed and
regulated by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, and it offers services through a network of

50 branches across the island.

r—

ector Performance

Financial Services
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Growth and profitability

The company’s top-line performance was significantly impacted by the rapid increase in
interest rates, which swiftly surpassed the 30% mark during the year. However, the segment
generated a net revenue of Rs. 9.7 Bn, an increase of 18% from the previous year. Prudent
pricing and proactive management of recoveries also enabled the segment to reverse
impairment charges.

Portfolio shifts

The Segment strategically shifted focus from leasing facilities to gold loans, thereby
capitalizing on the opportunity presented by the present market conditions. The lease
base was decelerated rapidly by 31%, the impact of which was offset by the steady
growth of gold loans. The gold loans portfolio yielded a substantial profit, which grew
by 127% to Rs. 8.2 Bn by end March 2023.

Customer service and reach

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC has sought to differentiate itself in the highly competitive
financial services industry by continuing its branch expansion program to increase
customer reach. During the year, 7 branches were opened, while 9 branches started
offering gold loan services. The branch network attained a major milestone with the
opening of the 50th branch in Jaffna. In order to achieve our growth ambitions, we also
continued to invest in marketing and sales personnel to maintain close relationships with
customers.

Way Forward

We are mindful of the ongoing market volatility resulting from the macroeconomic
challenges and will place a strategic emphasis on preserving portfolio quality through
ongoing customer engagement and proactive monitoring. We will continue to invest
in employee training as we strive to enhance our competitive edge by providing a
distinctive customer experience.
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367

promotions during

18«

Female

20.9Mn

Investment in

training the year representation

Management Approach

The Singer Group is a preferred employer in Sri Lanka due to the recognition it has
received for its employer brand and the distinctive value propositions it offers its
employees. The Group's comprehensive HR policy framework was developed in
accordance with industry best practices in human resource management and applicable
labour laws and regulations. The policies are reviewed by the Board and updated

every three years. The Code of Conduct outlines the expectations Singer has for the
professional and ethical conduct of its employees. There were no changes to the policies
during the year.

SINGE R 1E0WCE AWASDS 300

Singer Retail Mind Masters - Winners

Annual Service Award

- J

Highlights 2022/23

Re invention of group values
towards a purpose-driven
culture

Increased employee

engagement to drive retention

Capability enhancement to
deliver business excellence

Key HR Policies

e Health and Safety Policy

¢ Whistle Blower Policy

. Recruitment and Selection Policy
*  Remuneration Policy

e Sexual Harassment Policy

& /

Team Profile

The diverse team of 2,986 employees
consists of members from various
backgrounds and cultures, each of
whom contributes unique insights and a
variety of perspectives, experiences, and
abilities. All employees are engaged on a
full-time basis, while 94% of employees
are in the permanent cadre. Over 1,604
employees have served the Group for

at least five years, while 66% are under



the age of 40, rendering the team well-
rounded and future ready. The Group
promotes economic empowerment in
the communities in which it operates by
recruiting members of local communities
and currently employs 45% of workers
from outside the Western Province.

Total Employees by Gender and Region

Region Singer Group

Male Female
Western 1,303 329
Central 271 57
Southern 238 53
North Central 106 16
North Western 154 31
Eastern 62 8
Sabaragamuwa 136 17
Uva 104 n
Northern 72 18
Total 2,446 540

Singer Medical Camp

Movements in Team Profile
Recruitment:

While recruitment was kept to a minimal,
338 employees were hired externally to
fulfill vacancies, while 367 employees
were promoted internally to facilitate
career advancement. 41% of employees
were recruited from outside the Western
Province while 125 female employees
joined the Group. The Group orients

all new recruits through an induction
program designed to familiarize them

with their job roles and company policies.

The group has a total of 332 outsourced
employees.

Talent Retention:

The Group has maintained relatively
healthy levels of employee retention as a
result of its human resource strategies to

Recruitment and Turnover by Gender
%
25

37

Recruitment O

Turnover O

B Male
W Female

Employees by type of Contract, Gender and Region
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create a positive work environment and
provide opportunities for personal and
professional development. The overall
retention rate for the year amounted

to 84% with 506 employees leaving
employment mainly due to talent
migration out of the country.

-
New recruits

338

Retention rate

84%

Promotions

367

Female Promotions

72

&

Recruitment and Turnover by Age
%
8
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Recruitment and Turnover by Region
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Region Permanent Contract

Male Female Male Female
Western 1,237 297 66 32
Central 257 52 14 5
Southern 225 51 13 2
North Central 97 16 9 0]
North Western 146 29 8 2
Eastern 56 8 6 0
Sabaragamuwa 130 15 6 2
Uva 93 9 n 2
Northern 68 14 4 4

Recruitment O

Turnover O

Western
Central
Southern

North Central B Sabaragamuwa
North Westernm Uva
Eastern
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HR strategy for 2022/23

. HRIS enablement for business partnering

. Digitalizatio

. Governance
Getting the
Basics Right

Talent °
Management o
Performance
HR strategy for Management
2022/23
Capability
Enhancement D

Creating the

n of HR process

Talent strategy for increased EVP
Succession planning
Cultivating the learning culture

¢ 100% alignment to Singer
Smart Plan

. KPI focus

. Performance driven
rewards

Customer centric culture
Leadership development
Sales capability focus

Climate for
Success
. Reintroduce values
- . Purpose driven culture
. Fostering collaboration
Employee Health and Safety e

The Group’s Health and Safety
Framework is guided by a comprehensive
Occupational Health & Safety Policy in °
compliance with all legal regulations.
The policy outlines the company’s
commitment to providing a safe working
environment covering all its employees
and the procedures and protocols in
place to maintain it. The health and

Health and Safety trainings

First aid training

Emergency response training
Fire Drill training 454 participants
Fire Awareness 30 participants

First Aid 49 participants

safety initiatives are driven by the \
central H&S Committee and factory H&S
Committees that meet on a regular basis
to evaluate potential hazards and risks in
the workplace and implement measures
to mitigate them. Systematic internal
audits are conducted to assess the health
and safety management system and
strengthen the internal processes.

Blood Donation Campaign

Health and safety related benefits
provided to employees include:

e Accident cover for field-based
employees who face accidents at the
workplace or on official travel

*  Flexible Medical Scheme, 50% of
additional hospitalization and surgery
cost covered by the company with
no ceiling on the amount (additional
costs after entitlement)

¢ Annual Health camp where basic tests
are administered

. Wellness programs

The Company’s health and safety record
for the year under review is given below.

~
Singer Group

Injuries- First Aid Cases

Total Man Days of Work

12

Injuries and first aid case occurred
during the year

Employee Engagement and well-
being

The Group centered its employee
engagement efforts on fostering a positive
work environment by enhancing internal
communication, providing opportunities
for development, and promoting
community and fellowship through
recreational activities.

During the course of the year, the Singer
Values App was introduced to offer
employees the opportunity to enhance
their interactions and express gratitude
for their co-workers. Based on the newly-
introduced Group values, the App enables
employees to assign points in recognition
of behaviour consistent with Group values.



Donation to Anuradhapura Cancer Hospital

The Singer Wellbeing program was

Industrial Relations

The Group has in place a structured
process for proactive engagement with
trade union representatives to create

a fair and equitable workplace that
ensures employees are treated with
respect and dignity. Approximately
40% of the Group’s employees are
covered by Collective Agreements and
a minimum weeks’ notice period is given
for operational changes as specified in
the collective bargaining agreements.
During the year under review, there
were no industrial disputes or material
issues involving the right to freedom of
association and collective bargaining.

implemented in order to highlight the

sustainability of the people pillar. It is crucial
that our employees, who are the company’s
driving force, have a balanced and healthy

lifestyle so that they can contribute their all

at work.

The Singer Wellbeing program consisted of
four pillars: physical well-being, mental well-
being, financial well-being, and social well-
being. Programs conducted throughout the
year are described as follows:

Employment covered by collective
bargaining agreements

Regnis Lanka PLC
Singer Industries

Singer Sri Lanka Factory

Singer Sri Lanka

=
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Begin the day with an invigorated mindset: Motivational Mondays- Each
Monday, a series of leaflets with motivational messages were designed and
distributed to all Singer group employees.

DRChI

Physical Wellness Management: A series of awareness-raising flyers was
created and sent to all employees, with a focus on significant health-related
days such as National Wellness Month, World Heart Day, World Mental
Health Day, and World Cancer Day.

Contests to stimulate the mind: The Singer group devised and executed a
crossword puzzle competition centered on heart health, and the winners
were awarded cash prizes.

Singer Wellness Fair - December 2022: As the newest addition to our
Singer Wellbeing Calendar, we designed and executed a one-stop event
to enhance the well-being of our staff members. To increase employee
engagement, the first event was conducted in December 2022 at our own
facilities and was open to all group employees.

Online Knowledge-Sharing Session - Managing Personal Finances: In light
of the country’s current economic crisis, which has posed challenges for its
citizens, an online knowledge-sharing session with a practical approach was
organised to develop employee skills in effective money management.
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Creating the climate for success

During the year Singer renewed its
strategic agenda in order to articulate its
focus on becoming a world-class brand
through the Singer SMART plan's four
primary pillars. The new Group values,
determined by a comprehensive survey
and approved by the Board, served to
reinforce the organization's commitment
to the strategies.

Talent Development

Talent development is critical to attract
and retain top talent, improve employee
engagement and motivation and foster

a culture of learning in preparation

for future leadership transitions. The
Group’s talent development is focused on
structured training utilizing internal and
external resources targeting both personal
and professional growth. Competency
gaps are identified through performance
evaluations, and training programs are
designed to address required skills. Over
250 training sessions were conducted
during the year at shop level and at
customer care touch points with more
than 2,500 participants. The ‘Selfy’ Singer
e-learning platform was used to ensure
that new knowledge of products and
services reaches the sales staff in real
time.

#SLIM o

B

Singer Retail Academy (SRA)
conducts an on-going program

with a curriculum to train Singer
sales employees. The accreditation
program has been jointly developed
in partnership with SLIM and covers a
host of subjects including leadership
competency, branch manager
development and executive coaching
for managers.
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Total Training Hours

42,223

Total investment in training

Rs. 20.9 Mn

No. of attendees

9,998

Average training hours
per employee

14.14 Hours

| |
Annual Service Award
Customer Centricity

Learning and Development efforts

have aided in enhancing the customer
service experience across all touchpoints
by enhancing the staff's skills and
competencies in addressing customer
inquiries and concerns. This has led to
increased customer satisfaction and
loyalty for the Singer brand.

Sequence of service

L&D collaborated with sales leaders to
develop a Standard Operating Procedure
(SOP) in order to establish a customer-
centric culture and ensure consistent
service standards that can be measured
and monitored for the benefit of
customers.

Singer Retail Mind Masters

One of the most important initiatives
undertaken by Singer Retail was the
participation of over 3,000 employees

Average training hours by category and gender

Average Training Hours By Category

Average Training Hours By Gender

%

%

46—

B Managers & Above
B Executive
B All Others

in the Singer Mind Masters program.

The program included 195 competitions
and more than 1,500 questions from 26
categories, including product knowledge,
process knowledge, and customer service,
among others. The program generated
more than 500+ hours of online and
physical participation.

Developing customer service at each
point of contact

To enhance customer service at all
customer care touchpoints, L&D adopted
a blended approach with a focus on
developing the key customer service-
related competencies of staff at call
centres, service centres, service franchise
agents, and wholesale units.

Competency Development

Priorities for competency development
included:

1. Leadership Development - Leadership
Development was accomplished through
strategic workshops and the assignment
of professional mentors to a select
number of managers in order to enhance
their strategic thinking abilities

2. Middle Manager Development -

The objective of the program was to
educate newly appointed managers on
contemporary leadership skills and their
competency development will be assessed
via a business development project.

B Male
W Female

3. Executive development - Focus

on developing selected 26 executives
with specific competencies for self-
management and management of others.

4. Sales Staff Development - Building
SOPs for retail staff to elevate service
standards.

5. Technical skills development- training
in technical skills pertinent to their
positions and the organization's goals.

Creating, Defining and Establishing
our values

Singer has undertaken a transformative
endeavour to cultivate a purpose-driven
culture through a value reinvention journey.
The company successfully established

six core values through survey over

100+ employees and validated by Senior
Management and the Board of Directors.

In the 2022/23 period, the L&D division
together with cross section of the divisions,
embarked on journey for creating,
defining, and institutionalizing these values.
The primary focus during this period was
to drive the values inculcate these values
among the senior management teams.

The “Lead with Values” program was
implemented to raise awareness of the
significance of values and establish the
leadership competencies of the senior
management team in recognizing and
providing feedback on the behaviours
which connects to the values.
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To create an unique employee experience,
SINGER LIFE App was developed,
enabling employees to acknowledge and

basis of gender in determining compensation, and the basic salaries of men and women
are equal. All employees were paid full remuneration, increments and bonuses during
the year despite the challenging operating environment, reiterating our commitment to
appreciate the behaviours demonstrated creating shared value.
in respect of the values, while also

establishing and evaluating them. The Group offers a host of benefits to employees as listed below:

Performance Management Educational Sports and recreational Financial

The Group’s Performance Management
framework is designed to align individual
and team goals with the overall strategic
objectives of the organization. Clear and
measurable objectives are cascaded down
from the Group’s goals and performance
expectations are set at the beginning

of each year. Performance appraisals

are conducted annually for 100% of
employees with feedback provided to
recognize and motivate employees while
identifying areas for improvement. This
year senior managers were provided with
a 20% weightage on goal settings and
defining the performance metrics in the
performance management system.

Rewards and Remuneration

The Group has a transparent and
equitable remuneration system which is
determined based on industry practices
and referenced to prevailing market

rates. A performance-driven culture is
fostered through the compensation and
reward systems, which are developed to
recognize and retain high-performing
individuals. We do not discriminate on the

Employee Promotions

%

66 —, — 20

B Managers & Above
B Executive
B Al Others

Membership
subscriptions to
professional bodies

Educational Aid
Scheme providing
financial assistance for
further studies

Singer library with
over 1500 books
accessible to all
employees

e Long-term leave for
employees to support
sporting careers

e Gym facilities and
access to recreational
classes

* Membership for
sports such as
Badminton, Soccer,
Cricket, Hockey

e The singer is actively
participating and
representing the MCA
cricket tournament

Staff discounts
and easy payment
schemes for Singer
products

Distress loans of
emergencies

Low interest loans for
vehicle purchases

Financial assistance
for funerals

The non-management
staff are being
supported with cost-
of-living assistance
through the provision
of dry rations.

Annual Picnic
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Diversity and Inclusion

Singer recognizes the significance

of fostering an environment where
individuals from diverse backgrounds can
contribute their distinctive perspectives
and ideas, resulting in a workplace that

is more innovative and dynamic. Our HR
policies are intended to attract and retain
a diverse talent pool and to cultivate a
culture of respect, understanding, and
acceptance regardless of gender, ethnicity,
or religion. Employees are encouraged

to report any incidents of discrimination
and there were no reported incidents of Christmas Party
discrimination during the year.

encouraged to establish their own businesses and take responsibility for recruitment of
branch employees and monitor the daily operations, while technical support, product
empowerment of women through its knowledge and training is provided by the Group. Currently 33 no. of branch managers
franchise branch model established are female and the entrepreneurial model continues to contribute towards financial
throughout the island. Women are independence and the socio-economic development.

Singer supports the financial

Employees by Age and Category

Category Age
18 -28 29 - 39 40 - 50 Above 50
Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
Key and Senior Management 0.00% 0.00% 0.23% 0.03% 0.70% 0.00% 0.90% 0.10%
Middle Management 0.00% 0.00% 0.94% 0.23% 1.77% 0.07% 0.74% 0.03%
Junior Management 1.00% 0.13% 4.02% 0.44% 2.38% 0.30% 0.20% 0.17%
Executive 0.50% 013% 3.05% 0.94% 0.97% 0.27% 0.23% 0.10%
Non-Management 17.72% 8.10% 23.41% 4.89% 15.47% 1.34% 7.67% 0.80%
Total 19.22% 8.37% 31.65% 6.53% 21.30% 1.98% 9.75% 1.21%
Employees by Category and Gender Employees by Region and Gender
% %
1
2
6
8
2
4
9
6 10
78 84 L —
61
B Key and Senijor Male o B Western Male O
B Middle Management  Female \) Central Female \)
B Junior Management B Southern
B Executive M North Central @ Sabaragamuwa
B Non-Management B North Western Uva

B Eastern Northern
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Parental Leave in 2022/23 Male Female
Employees entitled to parental leave 540
Employees on parental leave 0 16
Employees who returned after parental leave 0 14
Employees still in employment 12 months after returning from 0 4

parental leave

4 N\
Way forward

. Retain talent through employee
engagement and capability
building

o Build relevant capabilities, skills
and attitudes necessary for the
~ Group’s aspirations
g to become a world-
- class employer

e Create a resilient
culture and work
environment that
inspires passion
and dedication in all
employees
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Net Promoter International brand local procurement
Score partners
Customers

Singer is the undisputed leader in Sri Lanka’s consumer durables market and maintains a
portfolio of over 600 electronic items, 1200 household appliances, and 52 international
brands, backed by a 146-year legacy. Singer has one of the greatest consumer bases of
any Sri Lankan company, with over 5.8 Mn patrons spread over nine different regions.
During the year, we focused on expanding the customer value proposition by introducing
a new set of values and relaunching the brand’s purpose. As part of the Group’s
resilience initiatives, the Singer SMART plan prioritised customer centricity as one of four
strategic pillars for making Singer a world-class brand.

Unparalleled
customer
centricity

Revamped customer loyalty program
and CRM

Improve customer experience through enhanced
service at service centres

Enhance customer experience through retail
service standards

SONY beko Panasonic SAMSUNG Tefal 1‘:;._1). H Hihlights2022/23

Launch of Red points loyalty
program and loyalty website

Enhanced customer care and
after sales service

Focus on elevating customer
experience at retail points

Customer Reach

Given its wide geographic footprint,
Singer has a distinct competitive edge
through its extensive customer reach.
Singer's network spans numerous
channels, with 416 contact points covered
by Singer's own retail stores and a large
dealer network of over 1,250+ dealer sites
offering indirect access to customers.
The e-commerce platform and the Singer
contact centre, both powered by cutting-
edge technology, continue to serve as
primary points of interaction for our
customers. With such a broad reach,
Singer is able to serve all socioeconomic
groups of the market with its product
portfolio, which includes goods ranging
from entry level category to luxury
products.
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Our Sales Network 08 \ Singer Red Loyalty Program
includes o —|9 The Singer loyalty program was revamped
s N Northern during the year with the goal of reaching
41 6 = 23 and activating Singer’s vast customer
Shops Eactern base. The new loyalty website provides a
simple two-step method for customers
to access their digital loyalty card and
North Central check their balances, tier status and other
16 A\l/f& 3 9 available benefits. The loyalty program
Service centres North Western incentivizes customers to make repeat
\ 50 purchases, thereby increasing customer
N Central retention. By rewarding loyal consumers,
1,250 + Rr{\ A’\ 3 Singer focuses on fostering a sense of
Extensive Sabaragamuwa appreciation and strives to build long-term
Dealer Network f j % E ]3 3 relationships. The Group is able to collect
Western valuable information about the customers’
31 Uva preferences, purchasing behaviour, and
200 OOO 48 demographics through the customer
thd Southern loyalty program. This information is
Sqm retail processed through Bl tools to obtain
space insights into consumer trends, customise
L ) marketing initiatives, and enhance the
overall customer experience.
Customer Care and Service ) ]
Customer Contact Centre ::ustomer satisfaction
The Customer Contact Centre operates "
with 24 well-trained personnel, providing 100
continuous support 365 days a year, with
the strategic goal of maintaining customer 80
service excellence. During the year, the 60
Contact Center maintained a customer
experience score of 89%, indicating an 40
‘excellent’ level of customer service. 20
After-care service 0
Singer facilitates the after-care service Ez § % :’ % § g <Z>3 § %% § g Ez
operation with 16 service centres and <:[>
481 franchise service agents across the
country. The fully fledged Singer Care W Customer satisfaction B Online customer satisfaction

service app supports customers in their
service and repair needs and accepts Retail points
service requests around the clock. The

requests are followed up Singer’s team of The year focused on upgrading the customer experience at retail contact points as

) ) ) part of Singer’s strategy for developing a world class brand via world class service. In
Service Center Employee list well trained - )
order to create enhanced routines, a set of standard operating procedures (SOPs) was

established using a 20-point check list. Sales staff training was conducted based on the

SOPs while SOP awareness workshops were carried out for Area Sales Managers

and qualified technicians. The customer
service center achieved a customer
satisfaction rate of 94% and average repair

time reducing to less than 8 days.
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Introducing

Lovalty Program

Transforming lives

Through accessibility and affordability

to modern and convenient lifestyles,
Singer has been a catalyst in transforming
and enriching the lives of Sri Lankans.
Against the backdrop of deteriorating
macroeconomic conditions and impacts
on disposable income, the Group
increased accessibility through a variety of
repayment options such as hire purchase
schemes to effectively address increased
price sensitivity. KANTAR’s data on the
ownership of durable consumer goods
indicate that the country’s refrigerator

Earn 1 RED point for every Rs.200 you spend

plus a host of other benafits

penetration is 67%, whereas washing
machine penetration is only 26%. We

have taken a category-wide initiative

to increase the accessibility of washing
machines to consumers through a variety
of campaigns emphasizing the machines’
simplicity and convenience of use, 14-day
trial period, and monthly payment options.

Digital delivery

Digitalization has been a strategic
imperative for Singer, with recent
investments aimed at facilitating data-
driven decision-making and improving

-

the consumer experiences. Given today’s
business context, e-commerce has
become a critical form of accessibility in
expanding the consumer base and market
reach, with Rs. 1.2Bn in revenue earned
through the digital platform. By bolstering
social media presence, consumer
interactions have been transformed,
facilitating the creation of curated content
for specific audiences. Attesting to our
digital presence Singer has been ranked
among the top 6 most visible brands on
the internet in 2021 by the Digital Outlook
survey (APIDM).

All marketing communications are guided
by the Group’s Customer Service Division
Code of Conduct and comply with
relevant Government laws and regulations.
Working within the framework set out by
the Consumer Affairs Authority we take
stringent measures to ensure advertising
and labelling provide clear information

on safe product usage and user manuals
provide information on installation,
maintenance, and daily operations in all
three languages. During the year, there
were no instances of non-compliance
pertaining to regulations or standards
relating to the health and safety impacts
of products/services or product and
service information and labelling. There
were also no instances of non-compliance
relating to marketing communication.

N ~
o Likes 658,000) 669 supplers
\ Followers 24!300 ) 13 Subcontractors
@ Followers 26,330 )
) Payment to local
0 Followers 9§17 ) 16'2 Bn Sui;pliers
Followers 2 908 aymen
/ Q ) 18.6 Bn tposl/:orei;n
° Subscribes 21,900 ) Suppliers
J - J




Suppliers

The Group's commercial partnerships
include local and international supply chain
partners, service providers, Singer product
dealers and distributors throughout the
island. By offering technical and financial
support to suppliers and subcontractors,
we have actively tried to boost local
procurement and drive local sustainable
projects. The close ties we have developed
with Singer product dealers and distributors

~
Supplier assessment criteria:

. Certifications including E&S
certification

. Product specification and quality

¢ Timeliness of delivery

e Zero use of child labour/forced
labour

. Environmental assessment
including CEA certifications

J

around the island have been vital to fulfilling
the value propositions included in our brand
promise. There were no incidents of child
labour or forced/compulsory labour during
the reporting period.

To ensure that the quality of purchases is
maintained, we adhere to stringent supplier
selection guidelines and require suppliers
to hold a variety of certifications. Regular
supplier audits are conducted to ensure that
all applicable criteria, including social and
environmental criteria, are met. During the
period under review, 100% of our suppliers
underwent a comprehensive screening
process and proactive measures were taken
to promote supplier improvement, resulting
in a commendable record of zero instances
of non-compliance. There were no negative
social impacts on the supply chain.

Dahua Concept Store

Singer Concept Center

Domestic supply chain

As the Group progresses in strengthening
its local manufacturing footprint it has
created significant socio-economic
impacts across the local supply chain
from sourcing raw materials, components
and packaging material from over 669
local suppliers. Payments to local suppliers
amounted Rs. 16 Bn during the year,
bringing value to the local economy

and strengthening local supply chains.
Given the difficulties associated with

the import of raw materials and finished
goods, the Group focused on developing
local sourcing, allowing local producers

of kitchen and home appliances (among
others) to offer their products through our
network. We broadened our reliance on
our domestic supplier base over the year,
with local procurement accounting for
47% of supplier payments.

Global Brand Partners

Singer has developed strong partnerships
with more than 52 reputable international
suppliers who are at the forefront
of advancing the industry through

Membership in Associations

¢  The Ceylon Chamber of
Commerce

e SrilLanka-China Business Council

. Import Section of The Ceylon
Chamber of Commerce

e  Srilanka-Canada Business Council

¢ The Employers’ Federation of
Ceylon

e The Industrial Association of Sri
Lanka (IASL)
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unmatched innovation. We are committed
to providing world-class products

and influencing industry standards by
leveraging our partnerships with global
brands that are leaders in quality and
sustainability. Due to import restrictions
and limitations in establishing letters of
credit (LCs), we have maintained close
communication with our international
suppliers in order to keep them abreast of
pertinent policy developments.

Womens’ day celebration
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Community Relationships

The group's approach to community
engagement and CSR is governed by the
sustainability agenda, which aims to effect
meaningful change and uplift vulnerable
segments of society nationwide. A
structured mechanism is in place to
select CSR initiatives through active and
meaningful dialogue, and progress is
monitored using clearly defined KPIs and
actions. There are no significant negative
impacts recorded during the period for
communities from our operations.

Youth Development

Singer Fashion Academy,
the Group's education arm,
has contributed to the socioeconomic
empowerment of individuals via skill
development, free workshops, and
scholarships since its inception more than
60 years ago. Singer Fashion Academy
provides a variety of low-cost sewing and
fashion design courses, with an emphasis
on entry-level courses to inspire aspiring
young women to sew.

e Tying up with an Indian university
to provide a gateway for Fashion
Academy diploma holders to pursue
a degree

¢ Affordable education with majority
of courses below Rs. 30,000 which
is considerably cheaper than
comparable programs

e Annual Fashion Show provides
opportunities for students to
showcase their talents for a wider
platform

. Encourages the younger generation
to adopt sewing as a recreational
activity and thereby promote
creativity and mental well-being

. Benefits provided in the form of
discounts for students of the Singer
Fashion Academy when purchasing
Singer sewing machines

Female empowerment

With approximately 99% of students enrolled being female, the Academy’s programs
have directly influenced female empowerment by providing students with the skills
needed to achieve financial independence. The courses are significantly subsidised in
order to provide females with the opportunity to turn their talents into careers and
follow their interests as professionals. The Fashion Academy experienced the highest
number of student enrolments with Fashion Academy students joining the academy

during the year.

The courses are an
entry qualification for
employment in the
apparel sector

Employment
opportunities

Offers a platform

for recreation and Recreational

creativity, thereby activity

supporting mental
well-being

Education

Education is vital for the economic
prosperity of a nation and Singer

DP education project supported 10
schools with DP Education kit which
consists of a computer, projector and
podium.

T SINGER

Provides an
Drive opportunity to

entrepreneurship | commence sewing,
dress-making ventures

Opportunity to
enhance digital
skills through use of
e-learning platforms

Digital
literacy

Clean Water and Sanitization
Project

The Singer Water Pumps Initiative
successfully inaugurated a safe drinking
facility at CP/W/Parameshwara Tamil
Vidyalayam in Madulkelle, Panwila,

and Dhammaloka Maha Vidyalaya,
enabling students to access clean water
and creating a conducive learning
environment. This contributes to our
commitment to providing clean water
access to schools and promoting the well-
being of students.

-4 - e

Clean Water and Sanitisation Project



Employee Engagement/
Volunteerism

Singer Cyclist e
In our commitment to

promoting employees' best work practices
and fostering their professional and
personal growth, Singer implemented
several initiatives throughout the year. The
inaugural Singer Cyclist event successfully
encouraged employees to opt for eco-
friendly modes of transportation for

their daily commute, resulting in over

50 employees actively participating

and consistently adopting sustainable
transportation methods.

Urban Gardening at Office and
Manufacturing premises

Additionally, our Urban Home Garden
project was launched to inspire employees
to cultivate vegetables for their personal
needs, utilizing unutilised spaces within
office premises. This project witnessed
active participation from four departments
and subsidiary manufacturing companies,
showcasing their responsible approach

towards fulfilling their own requirements
while making efficient use of available
resources. These initiatives reflect our
dedication to creating a socially and
environmentally conscious workplace.

DP Education Digital Classroom Initiative
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Urban Gardening at Factory premises

Singer Cyclist

( )
Way forward
The Group continues to pursue its strategic agenda, in line with the Singer SMART
plan in place, to offer world-class products to consumers through,
o e Customer loyalty program with enhanced Customer Relationship
g Management (CRM) to improve interactions and relationships with
existing and potential customers
¢ Enhance the customer experience through world class customer
care and service
e Expand the product range to cater to emerging requirements.
_ J
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Highlights 2022/23

Efficiency improvement and
cost optimization through
work optimization

Continuous efforts towards
new product development

The Group’s PPE of Rs. 7,652 Mn comprises of

a network of over 416 retail outlets island wide
d state of the art production and laboratory
5 6 /0 /0 Rs- L Bn facilities that are capable of manufacturing

Capacity Revenue of locally Total asset base world-class products. During the course of
utilization manufactured products the year, the local manufacturing capabilities
played a vital role in providing a continuous
flow of products to the market, while several
categories of imported items were curtailed

Key elements of our manufactured capital due to restrictions imposed by the government.

Retail Outlets

(@ Over 416 outlets spread across 9
provinces

Manufacturing facilities

(@ 4 factories with a total production
capacity of over 3176 MT

Research and Development

(@ Refrigerator R&D facilities




Retail Outlets

Our geographical footprint has been a

crucial source of competitive advantage
in improving customer reach, increasing
brand exposure, and allowing the Group

to access varied customer demographics.

With over 416 outlets distributed
throughout all 9 provinces, Singer
operates the greatest retail network in
Sri Lanka’s consumer durables industry.
In recent years, the Group’s repositioning
initiatives have resulted in the renovation
and modernization of its showrooms to
enhance the customer experience.

Singer Mega
Singer

Approved De.
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Singer Showrooms

e

351

showrooms

36

approved dealers across 9 provinces

Entrepreneurial branch model with 351

Singer Mega showrooms

s SINGER
mega

showrooms Mainly in Western
Province

28

Managers and 248 direct employees

Managers and 2,500+ indirect employees

Singer Concept Center

1

showroom Located in One Galle
Face Mall

9

Managers and direct employees

Singer Duty Free Shop

Showroom Located in Bandaranaike
International Airport

Avg Revenue /Showroom

Region Singer Mega Singer Plus Approved Total (Rs. Mn) (Rs)
Dealers 120 450

Northern - 18 1 19 100 440
Eastern - 22 1 23
North Central - 33 2 35 0 430
North Western 1 35 3 39 50
Central 2 40 8 50 420
Sabaragamuwa - 35 3 38 40
Western 25 107 1 133 410
Uva - 23 8 31 20
Southern -

38 10 48 o 400

28 351 37 416 2020/21  2021/22 2022/23

M Avg Revenue /Showroom
-+ No of showroom
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Manufacturing Capabilities

The Group’s manufactured capital base
of Rs. 6,463 Mn accounts for 49% of
consolidated assets and contributes
approximately 12% to consolidated
revenue. Considering the demand, design

Locally Manufactured

7,272 46,530 31,190
=[_» @
e
o [ o
Sewing Washing
Machines (v] Machines

Refrigerators

Manufacturing Facilities

trends, and technological advancements,
the Group has invested in opportune
expansions to enhance its manufacturing
capabilities over the past few years.
During the year Capital expenditure was
kept to a minimal with Rs. 61 Mn spent on
machinery maintenance and upkeep.

As the Group continued to adapt its
product offerings to the ongoing market
conditions, the imposition of import
restrictions on a number of product
categories led to an increased reliance
on locally produced goods. The Group
caters to approximately 40% of the
country’s demand in both refrigerators
and washing machines entirely through
local manufacturing, signifying the value
addition to the local economy. Our
manufacturing activities also support

numerous livelihoods through direct
employment and supply chain activities,
such as the procurement of raw materials,
packaging materials, and subcontracting.

Composition of Manufacturing Capital

40

Building

Plant & Machinery

Motor Vehicle

Office Equipement
Showroom fixtures & fittings
Other Equipment

CWIP

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Operations:

ISO 9001:2015 Certified Manufacturing
Facility, largest manufacturer of white
goods, producing an estimated 40% of
the country’s refrigerator volumes and
42% of washing machines under the
Singer and SISIL brands.

Location: Ratmalana

Manufacturing Capabilities:

Two manufacturing lines producing high-
quality refrigerators of varying capacities

Capacity Utilization: 45%

Asset Base: Refrigerator plant - Rs. 3,307 mn

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited

Operations:

Manufactures a range of washing
machines, plastic chairs and plastic
components for refrigerators

Location: Panadura

Manufacturing Capabilities:

Two assembly lines to produce washing
machines and 6 large capacity injection
molding machines for producing plastic
components for washing machines and
refrigerators

Capacity Utilization: 50%

Asset Base: Rs. 95 Mn

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

Operations:

Operations spanning over five
decades and engages in the
assembly of sewing machines and the
manufacture of cabinets and stands
for sewing machines.

Location: Ratmalana

Manufacturing Capabilities:

Leveraging technology to enhance our
efficiency and productivity,Diversified and
enriched product portfolio that caters to
changing consumer preferences

Capacity Utilization: 49%
Asset Base: Rs. 1,277 Mn
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Singer Furniture Factory

Operations:

Engages in the manufacture of a
range of furniture and the assembly
of water pumps and agro based
products.

Location: Piliyandala

Manufacturing Capabilities:

There are three production lines such as
solid furniture, modular furniture, and water
pumps & related Agro products. Modular
factory focuses more on capital intensive
products and solid factory focuses more on
labour intensive products.

Capacity Utilization: 75%
Asset Base: Rs. 1,276 Mn

Operational Excellence

The Group’s unwavering commitment to
innovation and efficiency has enabled it to
successfully compete with internationally
renowned brands as it strives to
manufacture world-class products with

a local footprint. In accordance with the
Group’s strategic goals of maximizing
production efficiency and minimizing costs,
the manufacturing facilities continued to
optimize resources and control expenses.
While significant cost increases remained
an obstacle throughout the year, fostering
a cost-conscious culture through ongoing
training and awareness programs became a
primary objective.

Following initiatives were implemented
during the year to drive operational
efficiency:

Sri Lanka Standards Institution Awards
Certification

ISO 9001:2015

Compliant manufacturing facilities

Product quality levels achieved

. Elimination of Saturday work by
optimizing weekday operations,
resulting in cost savings

. Modification of machinery to
accommodate new operations in
order to minimize investment in new
machinery

. Upskilling of existing employees for
specialized operations such as welding
and painting

o In-house training of workers for
maintenance and tool room operations

Our manufacturing facilities have achieved
internationally recognized quality standards,
with specialized quality assurance teams

in place to guarantee rigorous regulatory
compliance. We have invested in cutting-
edge technology for our R&D centers to
assure technical superiority and optimum
product quality at all our manufacturing
facilities. During the year we restructured
our complex department concept at the
sewing machine factory to adopt a simpler
and flatter structure comprising of sewing
and non-sewing. This has enabled faster
communication and decision execution,
resulting in an overall increase in our
process efficiencies.

Manufacturing Innovation

Creating a culture of innovation has been
a key differentiator that has aided our
expansion into new markets, improve
sustainability and build resilience against
changing business environments. We
have continued to leverage our design
and production capabilities to appeal to
the increasingly sophisticated Sri Lankan
consumer through new technology,
quality, and aesthetics. Emerging customer
demands for more technologically
advanced, user-friendly, and eco-friendly
products compel us to broaden our
portfolio with innovative and timely
product offerings. While the economic
conditions were challenging, we persisted
in our innovative efforts to better position
ourselves to emerge from the market
decline with a competitive advantage.

New product developments during the year
include the following:

Furniture Factory
¢ Cameron L Shaped sofa for the dealer
market

. Introduction of the visitor chair with a
steel and wood hybrid design

¢  Space-saving lecture hall chairs with
affixed writing pads

. Emersion heater with enhanced safety
specifications

¢ An easy-to-use changeover switch for
switching between main power and
generator power

Agro Factory

. Introduction of New Look Chinese
Centrifugal Pump and 2 Hp 2-inch Tube
Well Pump.

¢  Locally Developed 2-inch Bare Shaft
Pump.

Way forward

The Group is committed to expanding
its manufacturing footprint by
broadening its product portfolio.

. Explore avenues in the furniture
export market by obtaining the
FSC certification
@ .

Introduction of new
products including
dining table with
chairs, banquet chairs,
dining room suite and
veranda chairs.

- /
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Strength of our brand

Singer’s brand heritage and the trust it has garnered over the years have been crucial
to the company’s success, allowing it to expand from sewing machines to domestic
appliances and electronics. With a 146 year history, the Singer brand is synonymous with
Sri Lankan trust and quality and plays a vital role in attracting and retaining customers. SLIM-KANTAR People Awards for the
Singer is frequently cited as one of the nation’s most beloved brands due to its 17th consecutive year
unparalleled customer base, geographical footprint, and extensive product portfolio. For
the 17th consecutive year Singer was awarded the coveted People Brand of the year at
the SLIM Kantar People award 2023, fortifying the strength of the brand.
SLIM-KANTAR People Awards
Singer has a portfolio of over 52 internationally renowned brands, with approximately
600 electrical items and 1,200 home appliances. This is reinforced by a strong market
presence and island-wide reach via 416 retail shops, 1,250+ dealer points, 481 service Brand Finance
stations, and a cutting-edge e-commerce channel.

Brand Finance
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Singer markets and distributes its own manufactured range of products and locally and internationally sourced products through its
house brands and exclusive and non-exclusive partnerships as illustrated below.

Key House Brands Exclusive Distributorship Non - Exclusive Distributorship
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QUIEMNTIT R

\‘y’ ouline FIrnNCSS
TCL
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Reseller TECHNOLOGY

HITAGHI  SKYWORTH Panasonic —ZOSE"
/ ZTE KENWOOD miHn Canon ®YAMAHA [ /BUDRY
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Sarari B Uelic @QLIDA menm fremgizer @ msi
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WOODWORKING MACHINERY
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During the year the following brands were added to its portfolio:
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< WURTH SuiSSTEN
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Branding strategy

Singer’s new brand purpose was
relaunched during the year as a result

of extensive strategising with Interbrand
to incorporate the company’s history,
extensive customer knowledge, and
experience into a holistic proposition. This
stems from the recent rebranding strategy
done by the Group to revitalize and
reposition the brand to remain relevant
and future fit amidst evolving customer
needs.

Chairman’s Awards

IT Architecture

Our is to provide
curated experiences with relevant
products and services across various
categories.

¢ We are enthusiastic in our
interactions

¢ We are confident of our knowledge

¢ We are caring & prudent in
everything we do

TRADIMG SECTOR

The Group has identified digitization

as a key strategy to become more
efficient, cost-effective and competitive
in today’s digital economy. We have
continued to leverage technology to drive
improvements in our internal processes by
constantly reviewing and upgrading our
systems and processes to stay in line with
the evolving business environment. The
ERP system was updated to IFS App 10
with enhanced functionality and real-time
connectivity to ensure integration with all
core business functions. This has enabled
faster and more accurate processing

of information to pursue operational
excellence in sourcing, retail, inventory
management and manufacturing.

GOLD AWARD

INGER (GRI a;m' ?

tq [;;

Gold Award in the Trading sector- CA Sri Lanka TAGS Awards 2022

Core ERP (IFS) Sub Systems

Bl Dashboards

Analytical systems

Workflow systems E commerce

Evolution

AS400 ERP _ Introduced
Systemwas | 2004 Live Data 2009/ Mobile Based | 2019 IFS APP 10 2022
2001 used Update 2010 Sales ERP Upgrade
Developing Before IFS ERP Accepting Introduced Workflow
E Commerce | 2004 System 2009 Live Third- 2010 2019 - Bl 2021 System
platform Implemented party Bill Dashboards Introduced
Collection and Data
Analytics
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Improvements to digital capabilities during 2022/23

System Implementation

Front end Back office Supervision
e Customer faster service D Digitalization - System e System visibility improvements
«  Effective customer touch points implementations & Improvements *  Transactions convenience to work
e Front end operation - Customer *  Automations through mobility
convenience e  Process efficiency improvements

. Product visibility through Smart
screens

*  Service efficiency initiatives

. Inventory optimization initiatives

¢ Workflow improvements: Digitization of manual processes and automation of workflows for faster and more accurate processing
of information.

. Power Bl: Advanced data analytics and interactive dashboards used to aid better decision making.

e Improved IT infrastructure: Implementation of SD WAN to all branch networks and external locations for a more cost-effective

connectivity.

¢ Cyber security: Implementation of the Security Operations Center with a third party during the year, carrying out Information
Security Assessment through external auditors.

. . Way forward
Nations Trust Bank partners with
Singer Sri Lanka

. Focus on improving after sales

# Pt Thicet Bk Pkt Bppcinnied Singer S Link it & sub-sgert for the service standards to strengthen
dubursemand of foreign inward mmiitences. This will offer more accemiblity
{ 4 koot rnacth fow tha eolicetlon of farsign s e, customer brand
e~ sincer (LR A+ Revamp websie
g to add new

functionalities

¢ Continue to
strengthen digital
capabilities to obtain
richer insights into
the business
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Highlights 2022/23

6% 11% 240%

Increase in energy Growth in solar panel

Reduction in carbon

consumption emission reduction segment
~ )
As a Group with a large manufacturing Corporate Environmental
footprint and an extensive value chain, we Commitment _
are mindful of our obligation to mitigate Singer adopted the Hayleys Group’s IWD:RI:D.' bt
negati've environmental impact'.s. We are holistic ESG Framework- the Hayleys Life OZO N E
conscious of how we can contribute to code (refer to page 25), which clearly
reduci_ng our custqmers’ e_nvironmental sets out Group-wide environmental Nn zu“%ﬂ‘f.’]
footprint through innovation and targets and action plans. The policies of
sustainable business practices, given our the Life code, together with Singer’s own .'l:"-'!"t‘nzone
unparalleled customer reach. ‘Paramaarthayen Perata’ (Progress though

Purpose) initiative clearly articulates the
Group’s long term environmental and
social sustainability aspirations. This

year, Hayleys Life Code successfully
incorporated the Singer Paramartheyen
Perata initiative into our policies, allowing
us to carry out a number of initiatives in
line with the Group’s vision.




Environmental Policy Framework

— “Paramaarthayen Perata”

Singer Group’s Sustainability Vision

Environmental pillars:
. Energy Purpose
3 Environment Purpose

Sustainability Committee and

Dedicated Sustainability
Executive

Sector ESG Champions

Annual Report 2022/23 81

Hayleys Life code ~

Energy and emission
management

Water management

Material and waste
management

Chemical management

Bio-diversity conservation

o J
Environmental Goals for 2030
25% 25% 25% 8.
=S
Reduction in energy Reduction in water Reduction in Il
consumption consumption by 2030 emissions by e-waste
%@ by 2030 2030
Ener
&‘&é-p Water
Emission E@ H
Sustainable Packaging
products
Group CEO/ Director- HR Business Integration
( ]
Singer (Sri Regnis (Lanka) Regnis Singer Singer Sri Distribution Singer Finance
Lanka) PLC - PLC - ESG Appliances - Industries - ESG Lanka Factory - Centre - ESG (Lanka) PLC -
ESG Champion Champion ESG Champion Champion ESG Champion Champion ESG Champion
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Environmental Compliance

Our manufacturing facilities have
obtained an Environmental Protection
License from the Central Environmental
Authority and continue to comply with its
requirements. Singer has also established
sustainability development forums with
monthly activities to encourage employee
participation in company initiatives and
cultivate environmental consciousness.
During their onboarding, new Singer

retail employees received training to raise
awareness about sustainability and learn
how to reduce their own carbon footprint.

Greening the Customer Journey

With a customer base of over 5.8 Mn

Sri Lankans, we are aware of our
responsibility to reduce customers'
environmental impact. Singer's
partnerships with global suppliers at
the vanguard of innovation enable the
company to offer products that are
designed and manufactured sustainably.
We are committed to decreasing the
negative environmental consequences of
our products throughout their life cycle
by educating consumers on responsible
use and extending product life through

repairs to reduce replacements. With

its local manufacture, the Group meets
the country's demand for freezers and
washing machines and has been a
pioneer in adopting energy and water-
efficient technologies. During the year 9,
Sisil branded refrigerators received MEP
labelling, which indicates their ability to
reduce energy consumption compared to
older refrigerators. Among the 9 models,
the energy consumption rates are 30
kWh/hour and 40 kWh/hour, while their
respective global warming potential is 3.
This will have a substantial positive impact
on customer energy usage and emissions.

Energy Efficient Compliant by Sri Lanka Standards Institution/ Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority

Brand Model Average Volume (Litres/ Typical Energy Refrigerant Global Warming
Measured Power  Watt) Use (kWh/Month) Potential
(Watt)
SISIL ECO 192
ECO 192 WR
ECO192 WR-R
ECO 192 WR - BG 41 3.9 30
ECO 192 SV R600a 3
ECO 192 WR - SV
ECO 192 WR - BU
ECO 251 NF 56 38 20

ECO 251 NF - SV

‘Ozone Depleton Poental
ODP 0

Refrigerant R600a

Permission granted to use this label only on
SISIL
g, brand o
e Refrigerator of <
8 gy, MoOel ECO 192
. Sri Lank2 8

$
§
&

ENCY
¢FFICIENCY ¢,
ot My,

Refrigerator of .
Model ECO 251NF-SW

St e

Jtion sriLanka S




Singer branded products

e Firstin South Asia to introduce
RB600A Refrigerant technology in
2012

e 9 refrigerator models under the Sisil
brand received Minimum Energy
Performance (MEP) label by the Sri
Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority
(SLSEA)

¢ Washing machines with reduced
water consumption features

¢ 94% of refrigerators’ packaging is
made from recycled paper pulp

Renewable Energy

¢ The Singer Group promotes
renewable energy generation in Sri
Lanka by importing and distributing
Singer Solar PV systems.

e Singer has partnered with Fentons
for the installation of solar solutions,
taking advantage of synergies with
the Hayleys Group.

¢ Singer has also collaborated with
Sri Lanka Solar Energy Authority
(SLSEA) on a solar power
generation initiative to provide long-
term solutions for reducing reliance
on fossil fuels.

e During the year Singer has
expanded its portfolio and recorded
a growth of 240% in Solar Panel
revenue with a Rs. 682 Mn sale.

462

Solar Systems sold

Other products

o Samsung Wind-Free air
conditioners with 77% reduction in
energy consumption

o Samsung Smartphone with
sustainable packaging

Other products

. We are committed to minimizing
the negative environmental impacts
of our products throughout their
entire life cycle and maximizing
resource efficiency by extending the
products’ useful lives through repair
and re-use.

e Through its island-wide network of
15 service centres, frequent service
clinics, and multiple engagement
platforms, consumers have the
opportunity to extend the product
life cycle.

¢  The Extended Warranty Programme
Senasuma covers product repairs
for up to three years for an
additional fee.

396,893

Total Repairs, Installations &
Services

Annual Report 2022/23 83

e-waste management program

Singer has conducted a large-scale,
island-wide e-waste collection
initiative since 2010, encouraging
consumers to return used electronic
items. Since the program’s inception,
Singer has collected 17,994 kg of
e-waste from over 400 collection
points across the island, directly
contributing to the reduction of
landfill. The Group is authorized by
the Central Environmental Authority
to collect and transport e-waste on
the basis of a license for scheduled
waste management. The collected
refuse is then given to CEA-approved
third-party recyclers, with Singer
covering transportation and other
costs.

By offering discounts on new
products, the trade in program also
encourages customers to dispose of
their used electronic products in a
responsible manner. This service is
also provided island-wide, whereby
customers are incentivized to
exchange obsolete products for
newer, more energy-efficient ones in
exchange for a discount.

Items No of Units
recycled
Televisions 3,779
Refrigerators 825
Washing Machines 551
Batteries 18,714
Others 1,370
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With an expanding manufacturing
footprint, the Group is working to reduce
the negative environmental impacts
associated with raw material, energy,

and water consumption while minimizing
environmental impacts through re-use,
re-cycling, and safe disposal of waste,
effluents, and emissions. To instill a culture
of environmental consciousness, concerted
efforts have been taken to educate staff
and involve them in sustainability activities
in all our manufacturing facilities.

Material Consumption

Key raw materials used in manufacturing
comprises of steel, plastic, chemicals,
compressors and packaging material.

Our approach to material management
includes reducing plastic usage, optimizing
chemical usage, and utilizing eco-friendly
materials. As part of our commitment to
reducing the environmental impact, at
least 1% of the raw material used in our
manufacturing process is recycled. The
Regnis factory has effectively implemented
the use of recycled materials for packaging
and incorporates recycled raw materials
into the manufacturing process of washing
machines. In addition, we have substituted

Energy Usage

Singer Group has adopted a proactive
approach to lowering energy use and
developing environmentally friendly
practices. Singer has established a
comprehensive Energy Management
Policy that includes benchmarks and
targets for manufacturing, retail, and
office operations. The Group's primary
energy sources are national grid-sourced
electricity and diesel, which is used in the
generators.

In February of this year, we established
an Energy Management Committee made
up of representatives from each of our
locations. The committee has played a
significant role in identifying areas where
energy consumption can be reduced
and implementing initiatives to achieve
this objective. Investing in energy-
efficient manufacturing technology and
streamlining manufacturing processes
have been a part of a deliberate effort to
build an energy-conscious culture.

Energy consumption in 2022/23

While our energy consumption has been
relatively low over the last two years due
to production interruptions, This year, the
Singer Group saw reduction in energy
consumption in manufacturing facilities
due to lower production. However, energy
consumption significantly increased in
the company’s retail shops, which opened
at full capacity. As a result, Singer Group
experienced a notable rise in overall
energy consumption.

We are committed to reducing the
environmental impact of our customers’
product usage by procuring and
manufacturing energy-efficient products
and promoting sustainable practices
among our customers. Together with our
global partners, we identify and procure
energy- and water-efficient products that
align with our sustainability objectives.
Our procurement processes incorporate
supplier audits, certification checks

and assessments to evaluate supplier’s
commitment to environmentally friendly
manufacturing processes.

Styrofoam packaging with 70% recycled Electricity (kWh) 18,619,561
packaging by using paper pulp for Diesel energy consumption in GJ 3,432
refrigerator packaging. Electricity consumption in GJ 67,030
Total energy consumption in GJ 70,515

Recycled material used Diesel energy intensity ratio GJ/Revenue (Mn) 0.06
Electricity intensity ratio GJ/Revenue (Mn) 1.22

Raw Material kg (Approx) % Total energy intensity ratio GJ/Revenue (Mn) 1.29

Non-Renewable 4,309,394.04 60

Energy Consumption by Source (GJ)

Total Energy Mix

Renewable 2,844,190.19 40 S
% 5 (G
Total 7153,584.23 — O 75,000
% of renewable input materials 70,000
[¢)
13% 54% o 65,000
Regnis (Lanka) PLC Singer (Sri Lanka)
Factory 60,000
1%
55,000
Singer Industries 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
(Ceylon) PLC M Diesel B Electricity
B Petrol B Diesel
B Electricity B Petrol

Material Consumption during the year:

40% of renewable input material used




Water Withdrawal

(Litre)
150,000,000

120,000,000
90,000,000
60,000,000

30,000,000

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

We consider our water withdrawal and water
consumption to be the same.

Waste and effluents

Our manufacturing operation generates
primarily solid waste, such as scrap
metal, wood palettes, Styrofoam, plastics
and polythene. Mechanisms have been
put in place to decrease landfill waste
via recycling, reuse, and appropriate
waste disposal. Sawdust is converted
into biofuel by a third-party company,

Waste Type kg
Empty Hazardous Containers 828
Plastic waste 70,361
Mixed waste (Biodegradable) 557,407
Cardboard waste 25,268
Other 27,325
Ewaste 17,994
Food Waste 1,353
Metal 38,855
Polythene 7954

Waste Profile

and dust collection systems are in place
at the furniture factory to reduce its
environmental impact. Water quality
parameters are monitored to guarantee
regulatory compliance. Our manufacturing
facilities have low water intensity, and we
ensure responsible management of all
water intake and discharge.

Emissions

The Group’s impact on emissions

results from direct operations and the
consumption of our products. Singer

has incorporated the IPC Guideline 2006
for Greenhouse Gas Inventories and has
expanded its computation to encompass
all three emission scopes. As detailed

in the section “Greening the customer’s
journey,” efforts to reduce the energy
consumption of our products have directly
contributed to a decrease in emission
intensity. Emissions are computed on a
quarterly basis for all subsidiaries and
during the year the carbon footprint
decreased by 1,639 tCO2 while carbon
emission reduced to 11%. During the year,
our scope 3 emissions were significantly
reduced through a decrease in third-party
vehicle transportation for distribution.
This reduction was a result of both
external circumstances and our effective
transportation plan, leading to an overall
decrease in carbon footprint. The group
emission intensity is 0.25 tCO2/ Rs.Mn.

Total Waste

Recycled 16%
Reused waste 83%
Land filling waste less 1%
Total Waste water discharged 110,413,917.00 litres
Ground water discharged 8%
Municipal line water discharged 92%
Waste water internally treated N/A

Water discharge

Total water discharged litre
Municipality treatment plant / drainage line 101,536,367
Effluent discharged to ground through soakage pit 8,877,550
Total less 1%
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GHG Emissions
(tC0O2)
16,000
15,571
15,000 /\
/
14,747
14,000 N
13,932
13,000
12,000
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
GHG emissions
Scope 1 tCo,
Direct emissions 271
Scope 2 tCo,
Emissions from purchased 10,731
energy
Scope 3 tCo,
Other indirect emissions 2,930
( )

Way forward

our efforts to reduce group

e

grid.

We are committed to continuing

energy consumption through the
implementation of various initiatives
in the future. In collaboration with
the Sustainable Energy Authority,
Singer intends to remove obsolete
refrigerators from the national grid,
to minimize the nation’s energy
consumption and emissions. With a
long-term target of removing 500,000
refrigerators from the
grid within five years,
— we have implemented
trade-in programs to
enhance the collection
of refrigerator e-waste
and remove obsolete
refrigerators from the

J




REMAINING
ETHICAL AND
RESPONSIBLE
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i
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Independent Non-Executive Director

Hisham Jamaldeen
Independent Non-Executive Director

Dumith Fernando
Independent Non-Executive Director
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mohan Pandithage
Executive Chairman
(Appointed on 02nd October 2017)

Mr. Mohan Pandithage currently serves

as the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Hayleys PLC, a position he has held since his
appointment in July 2009.

As an accomplished industry veteran

and respected leader in the field of
transportation and logistics, he was
honoured with the prestigious 'Best
Shipping Personality’ Award by the Institute
of Chartered Shipbrokers, in recognition

of his outstanding contributions to the
industry. Additionally, he was presented
with a Lifetime Achievement Award

by the Seatrade-Sri Lanka Ports, Trade

and Logistics (SLPTL). He was the first

Sri Lankan to be awarded the Pinnacle
Lifetime Award by the Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport (CILT). He was also
inducted as a 'Legend of Logistics' by the
Sri Lanka Logistics and Freight Forwarding
Association, in acknowledgement of his
invaluable services to Sri Lanka's logistics
industry.

Mr. Pandithage serves as Honorary Consul
of the United Mexican States (Mexico) to

Sri Lanka. He is a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Logistics and Transport (UK)

and a Member of the Advisory Council of
the Ceylon Association of Shipping Agents
(CASA). He also serves as a Council Member
of the Employers’ Federation of Ceylon.

As an Executive Chairman of multiple
Companies within the Hayleys Group, Mr.
Pandithage possesses extensive leadership
experience across a broad spectrum of
industries. Presently, he holds the position
of Executive Chairman at Dipped Products
PLC, Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fibre PLC,
Talawakelle Tea Estates PLC, Kelani Valley
Plantations PLC, Horana Plantations PLC,
Alumex PLC, Hayleys Fabric PLC, Regnis
(Lanka) PLC, Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC,
The Kingsbury PLC, Hayleys Leisure PLC
and Unisyst Engineering PLC. He also serves
on the Board of Diesel & Motor Engineering
PLC.

Mahesh Wijewardene

Group Managing Director/Group Chief
Executive Officer

(Appointed to the Board on 1st June
2006. Appointed as the Managing
Director and Group Chief Executive
Officer of Singer Group of Companies on
1st November 2018).

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene was appointed
to the Group Management Committee
and also as an Executive Director and

the Group Chief Executive Officer of
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC and its subsidiary
companies with effect from 1st November
2018. He was appointed to the Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC Board on 1st June 2006. He
counts for over 30 years of managerial
experience in diverse fields of business.

Mr. Wijewardene holds a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration from the
University of Southern Queensland

and received the Dean’s Award for
Outstanding Academic Achievement.

He also holds a Diploma in General
Management from the Open University of
Sri Lanka.

He currently serves as Vice President of
Sri Lanka Retailers’ Association and a
Member of the International Chamber

of Commerce - Policy Committee. Mr.
Wijewardene served as the past Chairman
of Ceylon Chamber of Commerce - Import
Section and Sri Lanka - China Business
Council.

He serves as a Director of Singer
Industries (Ceylon) PLC, Singer Finance
(Lanka) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Regnis
Appliances (Private) Limited, Singer
Business School (Private) Limited, Reality
Lanka Limited, Domus Lanka (Private)
Limited and Equity Investments Lanka
Limited.

Deepal Sooriyaarachchi
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on Ist October 2015)

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi is a Fellow of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing UK
and holds an MBA from the University of
Sri Jayewardenepura and an Accredited
Master Coach and a Master Mentor.

He is a renowned Management Consultant,
Speaker, Trainer, and an Author. Before
embarking on full time consultancy

work, he was the Managing Director of
AVIVANDB Insurance PLC (now known as
AlA Insurance). He had received extensive
management training and exposure

here and overseas including National
University of Singapore, Asian Institute

of Management and Stanford Business
School USA.

Mr. Sooriyaarachchi serves as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of
AlA Insurance Lanka Limited, Siyapatha
Finance PLC, Pan Asian Power PLC, Kelani
Cables PLC, Prime Land Residencies PLC,
Medapp (Pvt) Ltd., and the Postgraduate
Institute of Management (PIM) University
of Sri Jayewardenepura. He is a consulting
partner of Results Based Leadership
Institute USA.

He is a Past President of the Sri Lanka
Institute of Marketing, and a Past
Commissioner of Sri Lanka Inventors
Commission.



Hisham Jamaldeen
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 2nd October 2017)

Mr. Jamaldeen has extensive experience in
relation to accounting, corporate finance,
acquisition and disposals, restructuring,
strategic business development &
partnerships and business planning.

His experience spans across a range of
industries including real estate, retail,
leisure, manufacturing, agriculture,
industrial solutions, power & energy,
plantations, transportation and logistics.
Given his deep level expertise in multiple
industries, he is recognized as a sector
specialist in a multitude of industries and
provides vital support towards board level
decision making.

Mr. Jamaldeen brings forth both local

and global expertise having worked as
the Finance Director at Newbridge
Capital Investments Limited, a property
investment and development company,
transacting directly into UK commercial
and London residential property. He has
been extensively involved in all aspects

of property investment especially

in transactional analysis, financing,
refinancing debt structures and tax
assemblies. He was instrumental in
transactions involving real estate assets
exceeding USD 1.6 billion during his career.
His international exposure and real estate
experience was gained whilst at Freeman
& Partners accountancy practice (UK) and
subsequently at Barclays Capital (a British
multinational investment Bank).

He has the distinction of being the
founder Managing Director of Steradian
Capital Investments, an exclusive real
estate advisory and consultancy firm
with both global and local clienteles who
seek exposure and asset management
services for real estate investment into
Sri Lanka. His key responsibilities include
acquisitions, structuring debt financing,
and corporate structures. Mr. Jamaldeen

is the key contact point for all existing
foreign investors spread across Europe,
East Asia and South East Asia. He has
been instrumental in growing the Assets
under Management to over LKR 18 billion
within a short span of time. In 2020, Mr.
Jamaldeen was recognized by Echelon
as a trail blazer and disruptor in the
investments sector for his contribution
towards the sector.

He further serves as the Executive
Director of Lanka Realty Investments PLC,
Managing Director of On’ally Holdings
PLC, and function as Non-Executive
Director of Hayleys PLC, Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC,
Haycarb PLC and Talawakelle Tea Estates
PLC. He was a former director of People’s
Bank, Aromic Energy Board (Director) and
a Member of the Interim Committee for Sri
Lanka Cricket. He is the current Treasurer
at Moors Sports Club.

He is a Fellow of the Association of
Certified Chartered Accountants, UK
and holds a degree in Engineering and
Business from the University of Warwick,
UK.
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Dumith Fernando
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 2nd October 2017)

Mr. Dumith Fernando is Chairman of Asia
Securities Holdings (Pvt) Ltd, a leading
independent Investment Bank in Sri

Lanka which offers Investment Banking,
Wealth Management, Stock Brokerage
and Research services to international and
domestic institutions, corporates and high
net worth individuals. He served as the
Chairman of the Colombo Stock Exchange
(CSE) from 2020-2022.

Mr. Fernando has over twenty-six years of
experience in international and Sri Lankan
capital markets, having spent much of

his career in global financial centers

New York and Hong Kong with global
banking firms JPMorgan Chase and Credit
Suisse. There he held various roles across
Equities, Investment Banking, Private
Equity and Corporate Strategy. Prior to his
return to Sri Lanka in 2013, Mr. Fernando
was Managing Director and Group Chief
Operating Officer for Credit Suisse Asia
Pacific - a US$2.5 billion revenue business
across 12 countries - and a member of that
firm’s Global Leadership Council.

Mr. Fernando is an Independent Director
of CSE-listed company Union Assurance
PLC. He is also a member of the Economic
Policy Steering Committee of the Ceylon
Chamber of Commerce.

He holds a BA in Physics & Economics
from Middlebury College in the U.S. and an
MBA from Harvard Business School.
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Sarath Ganegoda
Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 2nd October 2017)

Fellow Member of CA Sri Lanka

and Member of Institute of Certified
Management Accountants of Australia.
Holds an MBA from the Postgraduate
Institute of Management, University of Sri
Jayawardenepura.

Held several Senior Management positions
in large Private Sector Entities in Sri Lanka
as well as overseas.

Has responsibility for the Strategic
Business Development Unit and Group
Information Technology of Hayleys PLC,
the holding Company of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC. Appointed as the Deputy Chairman
of Alumex PLC in October 2020. He serves
on the Boards of Hayleys PLC, Unisyst
Engineering PLC, Dipped Products PLC,
Haycarb PLC, Hayleys Fabric PLC, Hayleys
Fibre PLC, Kelani Valley Plantations PLC,
Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, The Kingsbury PLC, Hayleys
Leisure PLC and Horana Plantations PLC.

Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 1st April 2018)

Mr. Wijeyeratne is an Associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka), Fellow member
of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK (FCMA) and a Graduate
member of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors (GAICD).

He moved as a finance professional

to Price Waterhouse, Bahrain, and

has extensive experience in audit and
advisory services. Commenced a banking
career at HSBC Bank Middle East, as
Head of Finance and Operations and
latterly, was Head of Global Markets

and Treasury for the group offices of
HSBC Group in the Kingdom of Bahrain.
A member of the Senior Management
team. Responsible for Corporate Treasury
Sales and management of Asset and
Liability Management (ALCO) for three
legal entities of HSBC group operating

in Bahrain. In 2010, joined Third Wave
International WLL (TWI) as an equity
partner and CEO and embraced
entrepreneurship. Leads a team of
consultants and facilitates consultancy
offerings in Financial Advisory, Human
Resources, Marketing, Project and Quality
Management, Research and Learning and
Development to the private and public
sector entities in Bahrain and Oman.

Mr. Wijeyeratne serves as Independent
Non-Executive Director of Regnis (Lanka)
PLC, Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC,
Hayleys Fibre PLC and Sampath Bank PLC.

Gayani de Alwis
Independent Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 15th May 2020)

Ms. Gayani de Alwis is a leading

Supply Chain Professional. She was

the former Director, Customer Service
and Management Committee member

of Unilever Sri Lanka Ltd., responsible

for Supply Chain. Ms. de Alwis holds

an MBA from Postgraduate Institute of
Management (PIM) of University of Sri
Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka and MSc from
University of Reading, UK.

Ms. de Alwis is the Immediate Past
Chairperson of Chartered Institute of
Logistics and Transport (CILT), Founding
Chairperson and Advisor of Women in
Logistics and Transport (WIiLAT) Sri Lanka
and currently the Global Chairperson

of WILAT. She is a Fellow of Institute

of Supply and Materials Management
(ISMM), Fellow member of CILT and a
Life member of OPA. She is a Board
member of Logicare (Private) Limited,
Arutha Foundation (Guarantee) Ltd and
CSR Lanka (Guarantee) Ltd. She is also a
member of Sri Lanka Institute of Directors
(SLID) and is a founding Committee
member of Women Directors Forum
(WDF) of SLID. She is a member of CCC
National Agenda Committee for Logistics
and Transport and Women'’s Advisory
Committee (WAC) member of Ministry of
Skills Development, Labour and Vocational
Training. She also served as a member of
the Health Taskforce of Ministry of Health
to improve health sector supply chain
and a member of the NHRDC National
Taskforce to develop a strategy to
increase female labour force participation
in public and private sector. She is also a
council member of Open University of Sri
Lanka. Also an advisor to the Council of
Trustees of CILT.




Brindhiini Perera
Non-Executive Director
(Appointed on 19th October 2022)

Ms. Brindhiini Perera has earned a Masters
in Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London. Her studies included
comprehensive coverage of subjects

such as Manufacturing Technology and
Management, Entrepreneurship, Corporate
Finance, Statistics, and Mathematics.

She serves as a Non-Executive Director in
several companies listed on the Colombo
Stock Exchange including Vallibel One
PLC, Royal Ceramics Lanka PLC, Lanka
Tiles PLC, Lanka Walltiles PLC, Haycarb
PLC, Dipped Products PLC, Hayleys Fabric
PLC, The Kingsbury PLC and Hayleys
Leisure PLC. She also serves on the Board
of Eurocarb Products Ltd (UK), Delmege
Limited, Otwo Biscuit (Private) Limited,
The Canbury Biscuit Company Limited,
Manatee Clothing Company (Pvt) Ltd and
Dhammika & Priscilla Perera Foundation.

Sujeewa Perera

Alternate Director to Mahesh
Wijewardene

(Reappointed to the Board on 22nd
January 2019)

Mr. Sujeewa Perera is the Director SSL
Factory and Logistics.

He joined the Singer Group in September
1994 as an Internal Auditor after
completing Articles at KPMG and joined
Singer Sri Lanka Factory as an Assistant
Accountant in June 1997 and risen through
the Corporate Ladder.

Mr. Perera has served on Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC Board previously as an
Alternate Director from May 2016 to March
2018.
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Kapila Perera

Alternate Director to Hisham
Jamaldeen

(appointed on 20th April 2022)

Mr. Kapila Perera is the Director
Information Technology & Credit of
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC. He counts for
over 34 years of experience in the fields
of information and technology. He is a
Member of the British Computer Society
(U.K)) and holds a Diploma in Software
Engineering from the Institute of Data
Management.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Thulitha Mendis Jagath Perera Thushan Amarasuriya Vajira Tennakoon
Director - Commercial Director - Operations Chief Executive Officer - Sales - Director

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Roshan Kulasuriya Shanil Perera Shalinka Seresinhe Indika Gunathilake
Director - Human Resources Marketing - Director Finance - Director Deputy Director -Hire Purchase
and Business Integration and Emerging Channel
Priyanjith Meegoda Mohamed Irzan Kasun Udayanga Asantha Karunarathne
Head of Risk Management Head of Manufacturing Finance Head of Service and Process Senior Manager -
and Treasury Merchandising and Promotions

i

Ransiri Perera Hemantha Perera Terrence Martyn
Group Administration Manager Senior Manager - Budget and Senior Manager - Sewing and
Planning Business School

Piyum Jayatilake
Marketing Manager
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Thanuja Senaviratne Rohan Perera Saman Serasinghe Nishan Ranasinghe
Senior Manager IT - Systems Business Development Senior Manager - Distribution Senior Manager -Revenue,
and Operations Manager - Retail Operations Margins and Operational
Finance

-

Pit

//

Pramila Liyanage Rahula Gaspe Indika Perera Ranisha Silva
Financial Controller Business Development Business Development Business Development
Manager - E-Commerce Manager - Whole Sale Manager - Institutional Sales

Suren Kanishka Upul Peiris Sampath Jayatilake Mohamed Hanas
Senior Manager - Promotions Business Development Senior Manager - Human Business Development
Manager - South Resources Manager - Digital Media

-

Dr. Mahinda Balasuriya Upali Ganehiarachchi Manjula Silva Lasanka Arunajith
Head of Regulatory and Head of Business Development Business Development Head of Logistics
Quality Assurance - Agro and General Trading Manager - Mega

Channel
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

Darshana Appuhamy Gihan Jayawardana Sujith Sirimanne Damitha Serasinghe
Marketing Manager Operations Manager - Furniture Business Development Senior Manager IT -
Manager - North Infrastructure and Projects

Tharindu Mahawedage Tharaka Warnakulasuriya Waruna Wickramasinghe Charitha Perera
Senior Manager - Commercial Marketing Manager - Digital Business Development Business Development
Products Manager - Renewable Energy Manager - Digital Media

and Surveillance Computers
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As an organisation with an established track record, the Group’s corporate governance practices have been refined and revised over
the years to reflect developments in the regulatory landscape, emerging best practices, stakeholder views and industry sensitivities.
The Group’s governance structures and frameworks are broadly aligned to its parent entity, Hayleys PLC and provide a solid foundation
for navigating an increasingly complex operating landscape.

Highlights 2022/23

¢ Mr. Dhammika Perera resigned from the
Board in June 2022 and consequently
Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe ceased to be
Alternate to Mr. Dhammika Perera in June
2022.

¢ Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri resigned as
Alternate to Mr. Sarath Ganegoda in
September 2022.

¢ Ms. Brindhiini Perera
appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive
Director in October
2022.

¢ Assessing the
implications of the
import restrictions on
performance and future
outlook

¢ Ongoing monitoring of
emerging macro-economic
developments and potential risk

* Evaluate the safety measures put
in place to support health and
well- being of employees

e Pursue opportunities to expand
local manufacturing foot print

Board composition

Male
2
7

Review and update of several key
policies including,

Health and Safety Policy, Whistle
Blower Policy, Recruitment and
Selection Policy, Sexual Harassment
Policy, Grievances Policy and policies of
IT Security system

. Adoption of the Hayleys Lifecode
a holistic

ESG Framework which
was launched across
all Hayleys Group
entities during the

year

e 4 Board meetings
held

* 9 Sub-Committee
meetings held

Strengthened engagement
with business given prevalent
uncertainty and volatility

Gender Diversity

Female

2

Board skill profile

Supply chain
Finance
\— 2

Capital markets

B Executive Directors
B Non-Executive Directors
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Marketing

Entrepreneurship

Executive leadership

Discussion below presents a high-level
overview of the Group’s governance
practices and the Board’s contribution
to value creation during the year.
Further details are provided in pages
249 to 293 of this Report which
demonstrate the Group’s compliance to
the Code of Best Practice on Corporate
Governance and Continuing Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange

Board of Directors

The Board is the apex governing
authority and consists of 9 Directors,
of whom 2 (Chairman and Managing
Director) are Executive Directors;

of the remaining 7, 5 Directors are
independent. The Board balance,
which is represented by a majority of
Independent Directors, encourages
independent judgement and ensures
that a single Director does not have
unfettered powers or authority. The
Board also combines diverse skills,
experience and perspectives thereby
enriching Board discussions, promoting
constructive dialogue and enhancing
the effectiveness of decision-making.

Age Diversity

2 3 4
<45 years 45 - 60 Above 60
years years

Board Tenure

1 2 6
1-3 years | 3-5years Above 5
years
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Approach to Corporate Governance

The Group’s Corporate Governance structures and policy frameworks ensures an appropriate balance of power, judicious
empowerment and drives accountability and integrity across the organisation. The Framework is based on the several external and
internal steering instruments as set out below:

( B B 7

External Instruments

o Companies Act No. 07 of 2007

. Sri Lanka Accounting and Auditing
Standards Act No. 15 of 1995

. Continuing Listing Rules of the
Colombo Stock Exchange.

. Code of Best Practice on
Corporate Governance issued
in year 2017 by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka.

e Directives/Regulations of
the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka
Act No. 36 of 1987 and its
amendments thereto, as repealed
by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka Act No. 19
of 2021.

e Acts, Circulars, Gazettes issued
by the Taxation Authorities for
Corporates..

¢ Shop and Office Employees Act
No. 19 of 1954 and amendments
thereto

. Customs Ordinance No. 17 of 1869

o Exchange Control Act No. 22 of

o Requirements set out by the
Finance Companies Act No. 78 of
1988 and subsegquent amendments
and Finance Companies
Corporate Governance Direction
No. 3 of 2008 and subsequent
amendments issued by the Central
Bank of Sri Lanka - (Singer Finance
(Lanka) PLC)

Internal Instruments

e Articles of Association
. Organizational structure

. Code of Ethics, Human Resources

Internal Mechanisms

Stakeholder engagement
Financial budgeting

HR and People management

Policies and Procedures ) )
e Strategic and corporate planning

. Related Party Transactions Polic
Y : <y . Risk Management

. Information Technology and Other :
9 e |T and Cyber security governance
Internal Manuals

. Standing Instructions, Policy and
Procedures (P&P)

Governance Structure

The Board has delegated the responsibility of specific functions to four sub-committees
as listed below. The roles, responsibilities and mandates of each of these Board Sub-
Committees are clearly set out in Terms of References, thereby clearly setting out the
levels of discretion within which they can operate.

Board of
Directors

° o o °

2017
e Industrial Disputes Act No. 43 of Audit Nomination Related Party Remuneration
1950 Committee Committee Transaction Committee
: ) Review
. Factories Ordinance No. 45 of 1942 )
Committee

¢

Group Chief Executive Officer

6

Executive Committee

¢

Employees
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Sub-Committee Composition Mandate No. of meetings
held
Audit Committee Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne - IND/NED Provide oversight on financial reporting, 4
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - IND/NED internal controls and functions relating to
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - IND/NED internal and external audit
Remuneration Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - IND/NED Formulation and review of Remuneration 1
Committee Mr.Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - IND/NED policies and set goals and targets
Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne - IND/NED relating to Directors, Managing Director
and Key Management Personnel (KMPs)
Nomination Mr. Mohan Pandithage - ED Provide recommendations and advice -
Committee Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - IND/NED to the Board on the appointment or re-
election of Directors
Related Party Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - IND/NED Assess all transactions with related 4
Transactions Review Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne - IND/NED parties to ensure that related parties are
Committee Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - ED treated on par with other stakeholders

IND - Independent Director

Effective Leadership

NED - Non-Executive Director ED - Executive Director

As the custodian of the Group’s corporate governance practices, the Board holds ultimate responsibility for the creation and delivery
of sustainable stakeholder value. The role and responsibilities of the Board are set out in the Board Charter as listed below: Board
responsibilities are set out in the Board Charter and are listed below:

Role of the Board of Directors

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

To represent and serve interests
of shareholders by overseeing
and appraising the company’s
strategies, policies, and
performance.

To provide leadership and
guidance to Management for the
execution of strategies.

To build sustainable value for
shareholders in accordance with
the regulatory framework

To establish an appropriate
governance framework

To ensure regulators are apprised
of the company’s performance
and any major developments

To review the performance of the
business against the goals and
objectives periodically.

Ensuring the formulation and implementation of a sound business strategy.
Appointing the Chair and the Senior Independent Director if relevant

Ensuring that the CEO and Management Team possess the skill, experience and knowledge
to implement strategy

Ensuring the adoption of an effective CEO and Senior Management succession strategy
Approving budgets and major capital expenditure

Determining the matters expressively reserved to the Board and those delegated to the
Management including limits of authority and financial delegation.

Establishing systems of risk management, internal control, and compliance
Ensuring compliance with laws, regulation and ethical standards
All stakeholders’ interests are considered incorporate decisions

Recognising sustainable business development in corporate strategy, decisions and
activities and consider the need for adopting “integrated reporting”.

The Company’s values and standards are set with emphasis on adopting appropriate
accounting policies and fostering compliance with financial regulations.

Establish a process of monitoring and evaluation of progress on strategy implementation,
budgets, plans and related risks.

Ensuring the integrity of the financial reporting process
Fulfilling such other Board functions as relevant to the Organisation.
Appointing and overseeing the External Auditors’ Responsibilities

Approving Interim and Annual Financial Statements for publication.
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Director training and access to information

Structured mechanisms are in place to ensure that Directors consistently refresh their knowledge and keep abreast of emerging
developments. Training needs are assessed on a regular basis and both Executive Directors and Alternate Directors are given the
opportunity to participate in training programmes conducted by principals, in-house training and through external resources. Directors
are briefed on changes in laws and regulations, tax laws,and accounting standards from time to time either during the Board meetings
or at specially convened sessions

Board meetings and attendance

The Board meets once every quarter and despite pandemic-led disruptions, Board activities continued uninterrupted. During the year
the Main Board convened 04 times, while 09 sub-committee meetings were held.

The number of meetings of the Board, sub-committees and individual attendance by members are mentioned on page 104 of this
Report.

IT governance

the IT governance process of the Company ensures that IT objectives are aligned with business objectives that will meet its strategic
and operational objectives. IT governance is an integral part of the corporate governance process and deals primarily on optimising the
linkage between Strategic Directions and Information Management of the Company. Competent and dedicated resources are deployed
to support this need. Company investment in IT resources covers resources operated and managed centrally and resources deployed
in various places. IT resources include ERP system, other related business systems, internet, emails and other Company-wide data
communication systems.

Impact of the IT governance to diverse functional areas of the Company is driven by certain core objectives which are set below:

Sub-Committee | Mandate

Compliance Investing in licensed software deployed in compliance with Intellectual Property Law with a view to educate and
mandate compliance to such laws throughout the Company.

Operational Streamlining of inventory management, logistic management and credit management process so that integrity is

efficiency maintained across the value chain through near real-time processing.

Prudent capital All major IT investments are carefully evaluated by the IT team and built into the business plan and carefully

expenditure scrutinised at the planning level and approval is granted by the Board.

Customer Ensuring process efficiencies to increase the contribution to customer convenience.

convenience

Green IT Protecting the environment by reducing print through migration to emails, SMS, social media and soft copies.
Minimum public holding The public holding of the Company as at K of the Code are used to determine the
The Company has been transferred to 3lst March 2023 was 7.72%, which is below independence of Directors. Directors
the Second Board with effect from 10th the minimum requirement of 20% as submit an annual declaration which is
February 2020 due to the non-compliance specified by the Listing Rules [Rule 714.1(i) reviewed by the Company Secretaries
of minimum public holding requirement (a)] of the Colombo Stock Exchange who advise the Chairman of any changes
in terms of Rule 7141 of the CSE Listing (CSBE) in status. If any criteria for independence
Rules. Consequent to the transfer to the Determining Independence Is not S?t'sf'ed the Boa'rd make the o
Second Board, the Company is evaluating g P determination as permitted by the Listing

While all Directors are expected to Rules of CSE.

all possible proposals to take remedial
action in order to comply with the
minimum public holding requirement.

exercise unfettered judgement in
deliberating matters set before the Board,
the criteria set out in the CSE Continued
Listing Rules and Schedule




Appointment, Retirement and
Resignations

The Board recommends Directors for
appointment under the advise of the
Nomination Committee of the Company.
Following details of new Directors are
disclosed on their appointment to the
Colombo Stock Exchange.

a. A brief resume of the Director

b.  The nature of his expertise in relevant
functional areas

c.  The names of companies in which
the Director holds directorships or
memberships in Board Committees

d. Relevant interest in shares/debentures
issued by the Company; and

e.  Whether such Director can be
considered ‘Independent’ in
accordance with the CSE Listing Rules

The Board has the power to appoint
Directors to fill any casual vacancies that
may arise during the year. The Articles
of Association require that Directors
appointed in this manner hold office
until the next Annual General Meeting
and seek re-election by the shareholders
at that meeting ensuring shareholder
participation in the election of Directors.

One third of the Directors in office

retire at each Annual General Meeting

by rotation with the Directors who have
served for the longest period since their
appointment/re- appointment retiring
first. Retiring Directors are generally
eligible for re-election. The names of
Directors submitted for election or re-
election are disseminated to the CSE to
enable shareholders to make a decision
on their election. Provisions of the Articles
of the Company do not require the
Chairman and Managing Director to retire
by rotation.

Company Secretary

The office of the Company Secretary is
integral to the effective functioning of the
Board.

Secretarial services to the Board are
provided by Hayleys Group Services
(Private) Limited.

The Company Secretary guides the
Board on discharging its duties and
responsibilities, promoting best practices
in Corporate Governance.

Responsibilities include;

. Ensuring the conduct of Board and
General Meetings in accordance
with the Articles of Association and
relevant legislation.

. Maintaining statutory registers and
the minutes of Board Meetings.

. Prompt communication to regulators
and shareholders.

. Filing statutory returns and facilitating
access to legal advice in consultation
with the Board, where necessary.

All Directors have access to the advice
and services of this group function as
necessary. Appointment and removal of
the Company Secretary is a matter for the
Board.

Directors Interests and Related
Party Transactions

Directors declare their business interests
on appointment and quarterly thereafter
which are maintained in a register by
the Company Secretary. The Register is
available for inspection in terms of the
Companies Act. Directors have no direct
or indirect interest in a contract or a
proposed contract with the Company
other than those disclosed on page 230.

The Group Related Party Transactions
Review Committee reviews all transactions
that require approval in line with the
Group’s Related Party Transactions Policy
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and regulatory requirements. Related
party transactions are disclosed in Note
39 to the financial statements on page
227 .

Relations with Shareholders

The Board is accountable to shareholders
and is committed to reporting
performance and other regulatory
matters in a timely manner with
sufficient information to provide a clear
understanding on the subject.

Communication with Shareholders

Singer engaged shareholders through
multiple channels which include the
Annual General Meeting (AGM), annual
report, interim financial statements, a
dedicated investor relations page on the
company’s website and notification of
key events through announcements to
the CSE which are disseminated to the
general public via the CSE’s website.
Shareholders also have the opportunity
to ask questions,comment or make
suggestions to the Board through the
Company Secretaries and at the Annual
General Meeting. All significant issues and
concerns of Shareholders are referred
to the Board with the views of the
Management.

Constructive use of Annual General
Meeting (AGM)

The Board encourages the active
participation of shareholders at the AGM
and make arrangements accordingly.

The Chairman, Board members and
Chairpersons of Board Sub-committees
are available for discussion at the AGM
and respond to questions directed to
them by the Chairman. Additionally, KMPs
of the Group are also present to assist the
Directors in this regard.

Notice of the AGM, the Annual Report
and Accounts and any other resolution
together with the corresponding
information that may be set before the
shareholders at the AGM, are circulated
to shareholders minimum 15 working
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days prior to the AGM. This allows all the shareholders to review the documentation and
participate effectively at the AGM. Separate resolutions are prepared for each item of
business, giving shareholders the opportunity to vote on each of such issue, separately.

All Shareholders are encouraged to exercise their voting rights. The Company has an

effective mechanism to record and count all proxy votes lodged for each resolution. In

the event there are a significant proportion of the votes cast against a resolution, the

Board will take steps to understand the reasons behind the vote results and determine if

any actions are required. The outcome of the vote on each resolution is informed to the

CSE, soon after conclusion of the AGM.

Board contribution to value creation

Strategy and Risk
performance Management

o o

Organisational
culture

Sustainability
and ESG

o o

Formulation Ensure that risk

of the strategic management
direction to practices and

internal controls in
place are prudent

and effective

create shared
and sustainable
stakeholder value.

Create and Ensure that
reinforce the
appropriate

culture, through

economic, social
and environmental
consciousness
setting the right is embedded in

tone at the top decision-making

Strategy and performance

The Board plays a critical role in
developing strategies aligned to the
Group’s long-term aspirations while
overseeing its delivery; the 2 Executive
Directors (Chairman and Managing
Director) are critical to this process
given their hands-on engagement with
the business and deep understanding

of industry opportunities and risks and
emerging market dynamics. During

the year, the Board strengthened its
engagement with the business given the
significant implications of regulatory and
macro-economic developments. Overall,
the Board assessed and approved the
future strategy of the Group which entails
a further refinement of the Must Win
Battles.

In addition to the standard agenda items,
the Board focused on the following special
aspects in 2022/23;

o Implications of the import restrictions
on the Group’s operations and
measures to address this key risk

. Ensure safety of employees and
evaluate the stringency of the
safety measures in place across the
organisation

o Increased focus on local value
addition and exploring avenues of
expanding our local manufacturing
capabilities

Organisational Culture

The Board sets the right tone at the top,
there by playing a vital role in shaping
organisational culture. The Singer Group’s
Code of Conduct, which is applicable

to all Directors, Management team and
employees clearly set out the Group’s
expectations when engaging with both
internal and external stakeholders. Key

aspects of the Code of Conduct are listed
on page 282 of this Report. The Code of
Conduct also serves as a solid platform

in mitigating the risk of corruption within
the organisation through the following
guidelines.

¢ Avoid situations where personal
interest might conflict with the
interest of the Company; and if so,
disclose such interest in advance.

. Exercise honest, objectivity and
diligence when performing one’s
duties

¢ Work within applicable laws and
regulations

In addition to the Code of Conduct, the
parent entity’s Hayleys Way- serves as a
blue print for ethical behaviour, explicitly
setting out the behaviour expected from
an employee and reinforcing the Group’s
organisational values.

Risk Management and Controls

The Audit Committee supports the

Board in its risk-related duties; the

Group’s risk management comprises

a robust framework including policies,

risk strategies, procedures, limits, and
exposures, among others. The risk
management framework has been
designed to achieve an optimal risk-
reward balance, drive accountability
through effective segregation of duties
and nurture a culture of risk consciousness
across the organisation. The structure is
based on the globally accepted Three
Lines of Defence Model which sets out the
lines of authority, roles, and responsibilities
to efficiently manage risk across the
Group.

(Please refer to page 110 to 115 for
further information on the Group’s risk
management practices)



Sustainability & ESG focus social and environmental factors are
critical to building business resilience.

In a key milestone, the Hayleys Group
launched the Hayleys Lifecode during
the year- a holistic ESG framework which
is applicable to all Group companies

and drives ESG integration across the

Group (please refer to page 25 and 44

The Board is committed to embedding
sustainability considerations into its
strategy, decision making and operations.
This commitment represents both the
Group’s corporate citizenry aspirations
as well as increasing awareness that
identification and management of

Competition
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for further information). In line with the
guidelines of the Lifecode, the Group’s
General Management Committee and
Executive Committee review the Group’s
environmental and social performance
indicators on a quarterly basis.

Sustainability Reporting: Through our
Integrated Report, we are committed
to providing our stakeholders with a
balanced and concise overview of how
we created value during the year. Other
aspects of our sustainability reporting
includes

¢ Global Reporting Standards (GRI) for
Sustainability Reporting

. Systematic materiality assessment
procedure in line with the Hayleys
Group

¢ Adoption of the industry standard

of the Sustainability Accounting
Standards Board
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board, audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee and related party transactions review
committee attendance

The number of meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Related Party
Transactions Review Committee and individual attendance by members are as follows:

Number of meetings and dates

Board meetings 4
Audit committee meetings 4
Remuneration committee meetings 1

Nomination committee meetings -

Related party transactions review committee meetings 4

Board meetings Audit committee Remuneration committee Nomination committee Related party transactions
meetings meetings meetings review committee meetings

13th May 2022 12th May 2022 13th May 2022 - 12th May 2022

08th August 2022 04th August 2022 - - 04th August 2022

10th November 2022 04th November 2022 - - 04th November 2022

06th February 2023 02nd February 2023 - - 02nd February 2023

Individual attendance

Name of Director Directorship Board Audit | Related party | Nomination | Remuneration
status committee transaction committee committee
review
committee
Mr. Mohan Pandithage Executive 4/4 - - - -
Mr. Dhammika Perera (resigned with effect from 10th June 2022)  Non-Executive
Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe (Alternate Director to Mr. Dhammika 11 - - - -
Perera - ceased to be Alternate with effect from 10th June 2022)
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene — Group CEO Executive 4/4 - 4/4 - -

Mr. Sujeewa Perera (Alternate Director to
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene)

Mr. Dumith Fernando Independent 4/4 - - - -
Non-Executive

Mr. Sarath Ganegoda Non-Executive 4/4 - - - -

Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate Director to
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda - (appointed on 20th April 2022 and
resigned with effect from 30th September 2022)

Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi Independent 4/4 3/4 3/4 - 11
Non-Executive
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen Independent 4/4 3/4 - - -

Mr. Kapila Perera (Alternate Director to Non-Executive

Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen-appointed on 20th April 2022)

Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne Independent 4/4 4/4 4/4 - 1/1
Non-Executive

Ms. Gayani de Alwis Independent 4/4 - - - -
Non-Executive
Ms. Brindhiini Perera (appointed on 19th October 2022) Non-Executive 1/2 - - - -
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Statement of compliance

Singer Group is fully-compliant with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued in year 2017 by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka as well as the Rules on Corporate Governance published by the Colombo Stock Exchange,
except which are specifically mentioned in the corporate governance report. In addition to the above, our Subsidiary Company Singer
Finance (Lanka) PLC is fully-compliant with the requirement set out by the Finance Companies Act No. 78 of 1988 and subsequent
amendments and Finance Companies Corporate Governance Direction No. 3 of 2008 and subseguent amendments issued by the
Central Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL).

The compliance levels with the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka, Listing requirements Section 710 on Corporate Governance Rules for Listed Companies issued by the Colombo Stock Exchange
and the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 are available on pages 249 to Page 293.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Preamble

The Committee is empowered to review
and monitor the financial reporting
process of Singer Group so as to provide
additional assurance on the reliability

of the Financial Statements through a
process of independent and objective
review. As such, the Audit Committee
acts as an effective forum in assisting
the Board of Directors in discharging

its responsibilities on ensuring the
quality of financial reporting and related
communications to the shareholders and
the public.

Composition of the committee

The Audit Committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors
and is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director.

Audit Committee Members

. Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne - Chairman
- Independent Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi -
Independent Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - Independent
Non-Executive Director

Brief profiles of the Directors are given on
pages 88 to 93 of this Annual Report.

Hayleys Group Services (Private)

Limited functions as the Secretary to

the Committee. The Finance Director/
Compliance Officer, Head of Risk
Management, Audit Staff, Representatives
of External Auditors and when necessary,
the Chairman, the Group Chief Executive
and relevant Operational Directors

and Managers attend the meetings by
invitation.

Responsibilities and duties of the
committee

The Audit Committee’s authority,
responsibilities and specific duties

have been formalised through an Audit
Committee Charter. By this, the Audit
Committee is empowered among other
things, to examine any matters relating to
the financial affairs of Singer Group and
to review the adequacy of the internal
control procedures, coverage of internal
and external audit programmes, disclosure
of accounting policies and compliance
with statutory and corporate governance
requirements.

Activities in 2022/23
Financial reporting

The Committee along with the Board,
internal audit and external audit reviewed
the Interim Financial Statements and the
Annual Financial Statements to ensure
compliance with mandatory, statutory and
other regulatory requirements laid down
by the authorities, prior to publication.

Internal audit, risk and control

The Committee also provides a forum
for the impartial review of the reports

of internal and external audits and to
take into consideration findings and
recommendations stated therein relating
to significant business risks and control
issues.

The Committee reviewed the Group
audit plan for the year and agreed its
budget and resource requirements. It
reviewed interim and year-end summary
reports and management’s responses.
The Committee carried out an evaluation
of the performance of the internal audit
function and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the function.

The Committee reviewed the Compliance
Officer’'s Report on the Singer Group’s
compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, including internal policy codes
of conduct of its employees.

Meetings of the committee

During the reporting period, four Audit
Committee meetings were held to discuss
the Reports of the Internal and External
Auditors and Interim Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements for the 12
months ended 31st March 2023 were also
discussed at the meeting held on the 08th
May 2023. The minutes of the meetings
were tabled at the meetings of the Board
of Directors for information and necessary
action.

The attendance of the Audit Committee
meetings held during the reporting period
ended 31st March 2023 under review is
given on page 104 of this Annual Report:

External Audit

The external audit approach and scope
was reviewed and discussed by the
Committee with the External Auditors and
Management prior to the commencement
of the audit. The External Auditors

informed the Committee on an ongoing
basis regarding matters of significance
that were pending resolution. Before the
conclusion of the audit, the Committee
met with the External Auditors without
Management being present. External
Auditors discussed the audit issues

with the Audit Committee and the
Management to agree on audit issues.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the
other services provided by the External
Auditors to the Group to ensure that
their independence as Auditors has not
compromised.

The Audit Committee recommended to
the Board of Directors that Messrs KPMG,
Chartered Accountants be reappointed
as the External Auditors for the financial
year 2023/24, subject to the approval

of the shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting (AGM) and the required
resolution will be put to the shareholders
at the AGM.

Sri Lanka accounting standards

Committee reviewed the revised policy
decisions relating to adoption of new and
revised Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
(SLFRS/LKAS) applicable to the Group
companies and made recommendations
to the Board of Directors.

The Committee would continue to monitor
the compliance with relevant Accounting
Standards and keep the Board of Directors
informed at regular intervals.

The Committee has pursued the support
of Messrs KPMG to assess and review the
existing SLFRS policies and procedures
adopted by the Group.

| wish to thank all members who served in
the Committee during the period and for
their contribution to the deliberations of
the Committee.

ol iyt
S

Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne
Chairman - Audit committee

08th May 2023
Colombo



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Composition of the committee

Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-Executive Directors

and is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director.

Remuneration Committee Members

. Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - Chairman -
Independent Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi -
Independent Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne -
Independent Non-Executive Director

Brief profiles of the Directors are given on
pages 88 to 93 of this Annual Report.

Mr. Shalinka Seresinhe, the Finance
Director functions as the Secretary to the
Committee.

The Chairman of the Company
participated as an observer to the
Committee. Group CEO assist the
Committee by providing the relevant
information and participate in its analysis
and deliberations except when their own
compensation packages are reviewed.

Responsibilities and duties of the
committee

The scope of the Committee is to look
into fees, remuneration and perquisites
of Independent Directors, Executive
Directors of the Board of the Company
and Key Management and approve
recommendations made by the Group
CEO.

Remuneration and perquisites of Group
CEO is reviewed and approved by

the Parent Company’s Remuneration
Committee (Hayleys PLC) and it is

not under the scope of the Board
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

The Committee also reviews the policies
pertaining to the remuneration and
perquisites of the executives of the Group.

Remuneration policy

A primary objective of compensation
packages is to attract and retain a highly
qualified and experienced workforce, and
reward performance. These compensation
packages should provide compensation
appropriate for each business within

the Group and commensurate with

each employee’s level of experience and
contribution, bearing in mind the business
performance and long-term shareholder
returns.

Meetings of the committee

The Committee meets from time to time
and reviews the Group’s remuneration and
fee structures to assure alignment with
strategic priorities and with compensation
offered by competitor companies.

The Committee met one time during

the period and the attendance of the
members given on page 104 of this Annual
Report.

| wish to take this opportunity to

thank all members who served in the
Committee during the period and for their
contribution to the deliberations of the
Committee.

Hisham Jamaldeen
Chairman - Remuneration Committee

1Nth May 2023
Colombo
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Composition of the committee

Nomination Committee consists of one
Independent Non-Executive Director and
one Executive Director as at the end of
the reporting period, 31st March 2023.

Nomination Committee Members

. Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman -
Executive Director

e Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - Independent
Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Dhammika Perera - Non-Executive
Director (resigned with effect from
10th June 2022)

Responsibilities and duties of the
committee

. Consideration of making any
appointment of new Directors or re-
electing current Directors.

. Provide advice and recommendations
to the Board on any such
appointment.

o Review criteria such as qualifications,
experience and key attributes required
for eligibility to be considered for
appointment to the Board and
Key Management Personnel in the
Company.

e Consider if a Director is able to and
has been adequately carrying out his
or her duties as a Director taking into
consideration the Director’s number
of listed Company Boards on which
the Director is represented and other
principal commitments.

* Review the structure, size,
compensation and competencies
of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board with
regard to any changes.

o Recommend the requirements
of new expertise and succession
arrangements for retiring Directors.

. Recommend on any other matter
referred to it by the Board of
Directors.

Meetings of the committee

During the reporting period, Nomination
Committee meetings were not held,
whereas appointments were approved by
the Board via circular resolutions.

Appointments to the Board

Ms. Brindhiini Perera was appointed to
the Board with effect from 19th October
2022. In terms of Article 24 (10) of the
Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders will be requested to elect
her at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Re-election of Directors at the
Annual General Meeting

In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Ms. Gayani
De Alwis retires by rotation and being
eligible offers herself for re-election and
the shareholders will be requested to
re-elect her at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles
of Association of the Company, Mr. Sarath
Ganegoda retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-election and
the shareholders will be requested to
re-elect him at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Re-appointment of a Director under
Section 211 of the Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007

The Nomination Committee has
recommended that Mr. Mohan Pandithage
be re-appointed to the Board subject

to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting in
pursuant to Section 211 of the Companies
Act No. 07 of 2007 notwithstanding the
age limit of seventy years stipulated by
Section 210 of the Companies Act.

The above recommendation was approved
by the Board.

| wish to take this opportunity to thank all
members who served in the Committee
and for their contribution to the
deliberations of the Committee during the
period.

et

Mohan Pandithage

Chairman - Nomination committee

1th May 2023
Colombo



RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
REVIEW COMMITTEE REPORT

Preamble

The Board established the Related Party
Transactions Review Committee (RPTRC)
in terms of the Code of Best Practice on
Related Party Transactions issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of
Sri Lanka (the “Code”) and Section 9 of
the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock
Exchange (the “Rules”).

Composition of the committee

The Related Party Transactions Review
Committee consists of two Independent
Non-Executive Directors, and one
Executive Director and is chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director.

The following Directors serve on the
Committee:

e Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi -
Chairman - Independent Non-
Executive Director

. Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne -
Independent Non-Executive Director

. Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Executive
Director

Brief profiles of the members are given on
pages 88 to 93 of this Annual Report.

The above composition is in compliance
with the provisions of the Code regarding
the composition of the Related Party
Transactions Review Committee.

Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited
functions as the Secretary to the Related
Party Transactions Review Committee.

Meetings of the committee

During the year ended 31st March

2023, the Committee met four times.
Attendance by the Committee Members
at these meetings is given in the table on
page 104 of the Annual Report.

Role and responsibilities

The mandate of the Committee is derived
from the Code and the Rules and is as
follows:

e To review in advance all proposed
related party transactions of
the Group either prior to the

transaction being entered into or, if
the transaction is expressed to be
conditional on such review, prior to
the completion of the transaction.

¢ Seek any information the Committee
requires fromm Management,
employees or external parties with
regard to any transaction entered into
with a related party.

. Obtain knowledge or expertise to
assess all aspects of proposed related
party transactions where necessary
including obtaining appropriate
professional and expert advice from
suitably qualified persons.

¢ Torecommend, where necessary, to
the Board and obtain their approval
prior to the execution of any related
party transaction.

¢ To monitor that all related party
transactions of the entity are
transacted on normal commercial
terms and are not prejudicial to the
interests of the entity and its minority
shareholders.

o Meet with the Management, Internal
Auditors/External Auditors as
necessary to carry out the assigned
duties.

* To review the transfer of resources,
services or obligations between
related parties regardless of whether
a price is charged.

e To review the economic and
commercial substance of both
recurrent/non-recurrent related party
transactions

e To monitor and recommend the
acquisition or disposal of substantial
assets between related parties,
including obtaining “competent
independent advice” from
independent professional experts with
regard to the value of the substantial

assets of the related party transaction.

Policies and procedures adopted
by the RPTRC for reviewing Related
Party Transactions (RPTs)

1. Relevant information to capture
RPTs are fed into the Company Data
Collection System.

2. All officers concerned are informed
of the applicable regulatory
requirements relating to the reporting
of RPTs.
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3. Key Management Personnel (KMPs)
and their Close Family Members
(CFMs) are identified half yearly
together with their NIC numbers and
business registration numbers. This
information is in the system.

4. Systems are updated with KMP and
their CFM details on a half yearly basis
or as and when the need arises in the
event of a material change.

5. Data is extracted from the system,
verified and validated.

6. All Managers are advised to report
RPTs to the Finance Director who has
been identified as the Focal Point, for
this purpose.

7. Data is shared with the Finance
Director and the Company Secretaries
to meet the regulatory requirements if
required.

Task of the committee

The Committee reviewed the related party
transactions and their compliance and
communicated to the Board.

The Committee in its review process
recognised the adequacy of the content
and quality of the information forwarded
to its members by the Management and
in compliance with Section 9 of the CSE
Listing Rules.

Related Party Transactions are disclosed
in the Note 39 to the Financial Statements.

Reporting to the Board
The minutes of the RPTRC meetings are

tabled at the Board meetings enabling all
Board members to have access to same.

| wish to take this opportunity to thank all
members who served in the Committee
and for their contribution to the
deliberations of the Committee during the
period.

)y

Deepal Sooriyaarachchi

Chairman - Related Party Transactions
Review Committee

08th May 2023
Colombo
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Changes in the economic, social and
political landscape were seismic when
considering the severity of impact for
many business entities. The impact on

the retail sector was even more severe

as the fiscal and monetary policy

changes sought to reduce imports and
consumption to manage the external
account and balance of payments deficits.
Wide ranging import restrictions and the
foreign exchange liquidity crisis were
significant obstacles to performance as it
limited our product range and inventories.
Demand was impacted by declining
disposable incomes which also resulted

in elevating credit risk for hire purchase
portfolio and the Singer Finance loan
portfolios. The sharp devaluation of the
rupee put some products beyond the
reach of many customers, exacerbating
the situation. The increase in interest rates
had a significant impact on the Group
reflecting the impact of monetary policy.
Taxation added to the stress reflecting the
impact of fiscal policy. We also needed

to ensure that we maintained our trained
team and supported them through a
difficult period.

Sound risk management practices enabled
the early identification and management
of these risks enabled the Group to deliver
a resilient performance overcoming
overwhelming odds. We continue to
remain vigilant about the risk environment,
continually assessing changes to identify
potential risks that need to be kept on our
radar.

Risk Management Framework

The Board has ultimate authority for
managing risk for the Singer Group
and has put in place a framework for
identifying, measuring, monitoring and
managing risks. Risk is managed to
balance profitability and resilience, with
resilience considered in a wider context
including financial and ESG factors.

The Audit Committee is charged with
assisting the Board in oversight of risk
management and plays a key role in
identifying, measuring, monitoring and

mitigating key exposures. Risk assessments are constructively challenged by the Board
and the Audit Committee to ensure that all significant risks are captured and monitored.
Internal Audit serves as third line of defence, providing assurance on the effective
functioning of the risk management process.

Approach to Risk Management

The Group’s risk management framework is based on the three lines of defense model
with clear segregation of duties in risk management.

Business line

First line of management
defence Risk identification,

acceptance and

The Board

mitigation

Board and Audit
Second line Committee

of defence Monitoring and
management of
risk management

Audit
Committee

Chief
Executive
Officer

Internal Audit

Third line of Provides assurance
defence on the effectiveness

of the 1st and 2nd

line of defense

Internal
Audit

Corporate

Management

A Process for managing risk

Risk Identification - The first line

of defence is responsible for risk
identification as they engage with
multiple stakeholders and review internal
and external data in their respective
areas of expertise.

Mitigate
and
Manage

Risk
|dentification

Measurement - Appropriate risk
indicators to measure risk are identified
for the risks which may be quantitative
as well as qualitative.

Risk
Management
Process

Assess
Monitor - Movements in identified risk
indicators are monitored to understand
the dynamics, drivers and evolution of

Monitor identified risks.

Assess - Risks are assessed for the
probability of occurrence and severity of
impact using the latest available data.

Mitigate & Manage - Plans are put in
place to avoid, transfer, manage or
mitigate risks.
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The severe macro-economic challenges enumerated above saw a convergence of risks, many of which had fairly severe impacts on the

performance of the Group. Encouragingly, the long term prospects remain positive as the second half of the year saw an uptick and

the country is also forecast to move into positive growth territory by 2025. Trade flows are a key area for diplomacy and international

relations and easing of import restrictions will be high on the agenda to maintain goodwill with other countries. The risks set out below

are those assessed as at the close of the financial year.

Our Material Matters

Risk Ratings
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Impact Lo Organisation
Risk Developments in 2022/23 | Potential impact on Singer Risk mitigation measures Link to Capitals and

strategy

Consumer Disposable Soaring inflation and

Income interest rates combined

with increased taxation
Likelihood | Impact

to reduce the disposable

income of Sri Lankans.

Inflation has eased

Risk E
: towards the end of the
Rating ) i
- - year and interest is also
Direction

easing off although at a
more gradual pace.

Risks
* Reduced demand for
products

Opportunities

. Increased demand for
after sales service and
repairs

. Explore export market

. Expand product lines
for which there is a

demand such as solar,
CCTV etc.

e Judicious use of hire
purchase as a tool

. Low monthly
instalments

. Promotions

Social & Relationship
Capital

Customer centricity
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Risk Developments in 2022/23 | Potential impact on Singer Risk mitigation measures Link to Capitals and
strategy
Restrictions on imports As part of the Risks *  Price revisions and Capitals
Government’s measures ¢ Approximately around channel allocationsto «  Social &
Likelihood | Impact to minimise foreign 50% of the Group’s ensure optimisation Relationship
o o currency outflows, a product portfolio is of inventory and Capital

Risk E
Rating

Direction

licensing system was
introduced on imports

currently under this
licensing system which
will significantly affect
the continued supply of
products to customers.

¢ Emergence of a grey
market

Opportunities
. Increase local sourcing

. Increase local
manufacture

extension of sales
realization

e Continue to make
representations

o Financial Capital

. Manufactured

Capital
Strategy
o Unparalleled
Customer
Centricity

. Manufacturing
and Supply chain
excellence

Employee attrition

Likelihood ‘ Impact

The prevalent economic
uncertainty and volatility
has led to the economic
migration of many Sri

Risks
. Loss of critical talent
from Group

. Diminishing talent

e Adjustments to
remuneration

3 Motivating employees

Capitals
. Human Capital

o Financial Capital

) Lankans. The attrition ) e Structured training Strategy
Risk H ) pools in country for
. rate amongst executive and development e A Place where
Rating ) replacement
Direction categories and above people love
i i
was 12.9% in 2022/23. . Increased time and to come and
costs to develop contribute
available talent
Liquidity and Financial Continued economic and Risks . Increased oversight Capitals

Stability

Likelihood ‘ Impact

Risk H
Rating

Direction

financial stress resulting
in liquidity issues in the
Banking system and
Money Market for rupees
and foreign exchange

e Slow moving
inventories

. Increased credit risk

. Reduced banking
facilities

on liquidity by Board
and Management

. Management of
liquidity by Group
Treasury

. Prudent management
of working capital

. Negotiating LC terms
with suppliers instead
of TTs.

Financial Capital

Strategy
Above Industry
growth and
profitability
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Risk Developments in 2022/23 | Potential impact on Singer Risk mitigation measures Link to Capitals and
strategy

Risks arising from The difficult market Risks . Financial support for  Capitals

Branch operating conditions result in . Low morale among branch managers D Human Capital

model decreasing income for h ff o ;

o " g | g branch sta *  Closure of loss Social &
ranch employees due ) ) Relationshi
Likelihood ‘ Impact to reduced incentives . Potential loss of making shops . e
capita

Risk H
Rating

Direction

and increasing bad
debts. This affects
branch morale, loss

of experienced field
force and heightens the
probability of misuse of
company assets.

experienced field force

. Increased risk of
potential misuse of
company assets

e Clear behavioural
guidelines given
through operational
manuals

. Introduce mobile
devices for hand
collections

. Internal audit

o Financial Capital

Strategy

. Unparalleled
customer
centricity

¢ Above industry
growth and
profitability

¢ A place where
people love
to come and
contribute

Foreign currency
liquidity

Likelihood ‘ Impact

Risk E
Rating

Direction

Sri Lanka experienced
a foreign exchange
crisis in January 2022
as the country’s foreign
currency reserves
depleted. Wide ranging
import restrictions,
deferral of external
debt repayments and
healthy exports have
eased liquidity but the
recovery is fragile as
recommencement of

Risks
e Continued import
restrictions

. Inability to cater
to customers’
demand and adverse
implications on market
share

Opportunities
. Increase local
manufacture

. Proactive measures
to build inventory
sufficient for
4 to 6 months
and optimising
this inventory to
maximise returns

* Increase focus on
local manufacturing

e Widen sourcing from
local suppliers

Capitals
D Financial Capital

. Social &
Relationship
Capital

Strategy

. Unparalleled
Customer
Centricity

Manufacturing
and Supply chain

] . Increase local sourcing excellence
debt repayments will
tighten liquidity again.
Devaluation of The rupee depreciated Risks e Timely price Capitals
currency and by 80% in 2022 but e Sharp Increase in cost revisions to ensure . Financial Capital
escalating inflation appreciated 10% in the of goods that GP margins

Likelihood ‘ Impact

Risk H
Rating

Direction

first quarter of 2023 as
liquidity improved due to
non-repayment of debt
and import restrictions.
The rupee continued to
appreciate in April and
May but this recovery
maybe fragile.

e Volumes are affected
due to affordability
concerns

e Overall increase in
costs as transport costs
increase

are preserved with
expectations

e Cost saving and
efficiency drive

o Social &
Relationship
Capital

Strategy

e Above industry
growth and
profitability

. Manufacturing
and Supply chain
excellence
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Risk Developments in 2022/23 | Potential impact on Singer Risk mitigation measures Link to Capitals and
strategy
Interest rate risk Interest rates increased Risks . Ongoing engagement Capitals

Likelihood | Impact

sharply as monetary
policy tightened. Policy

* Increase in borrowing
costs

and negotiations with
banks

. Financial Capital

) Strategy
. . rates increased by 900 ) ) _ )
i ) ) . High cost of working e Optimising short- ¢ Above industry
) basis points during the )

Risk E i capital and long-term debt growth and
: year but lending rates . L
Rating : . compositions to profitability

- - increased on a steeper Opportunities o
Direction . ) minimise impact of
trajectory. As a result, the e«  Strengthen working : :
) ) ] interest rate hike
Group incurred a high capital management
cost on interest on its ) ) . Leverage strong
) * Improve funding mix . .
borrowings. brand and financial
strength (as attested
by the credit rating
of AA lka by Fitch
Ratings) to obtain
funding at attractive
rates
Cybersecurity & The unprecedented Risks e Establishment Capitals

Customer Privacy

Likelihood ‘ Impact

Risk H
Rating

Direction

shift to digital platforms
for both employee

and customer related
processes increases the
Group’s vulnerability

to cyber threats. The
enactment of the
Personal Data Protection
Act during the year

has also increased the
Group’s obligations to
protect customer data in
a secure mannetr.

. Financial loss arising
from cyberattacks and
vulnerabilities

* Potential loss of
customer and
confidential data can
adversely impact
reputation

. Breakdown of systems
could affect continuity
of operations

Opportunities

e Strengthening
cybersecurity will
enable the Group to
explore advanced
digitalisation
applications vital for
growth in the retail
sector

of robust IT risk
management
governance
structures, policies
and procedures

. Investments
in advanced
cybersecurity
software and
infrastructure

¢ Ongoing employee
awareness sessions
on mitigating
cybersecurity risks

. Regular vulnerability
and penetration
testing

D Financial Capital

. Intellectual

Capital
Strategy
. Unparalleled
Customer
Centricity

¢ Above industry
growth and
profitability
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Risk

Developments in 2022/23

Potential impact on Singer

Risk mitigation measures

Link to Capitals and
strategy

Climate change and
environmental related
risks

Likelihood | Impact

As the country transitions Risks

into a low carbon
economy, there will be
increased focus on the
energy efficiency and
water consumption of
appliances, as well as

Increasing regulation
related to appliance
ratings for energy and
water efficiency.

Regulations regarding

. Partnerships with
global leaders in

consumer electronics,

who have made
substantial progress
in their sustainability
journeys has

Capitals
. Financial Capital

o Natural Capital

Strategy
. Manufacturing
and Supply chain

Elas:ng H responsible disposal of disposal of e-waste enabled the Group excellence
Direction e-waste. Additionally, Opportunities to introduce these
as more than 25% of . Increasing products to the Sri
the country’s labour environmental Lankan consumer
force is engaged in consciousness of
agriculture, this affects customers and
the purchasing power of preference for
the people. sustainability sourced,
designed and
manufactured products
* Responsible
manufacture of
resource efficient
products
E - Extreme  H - High ® tHich @ Medium @ Low




COMMITTED TO
JOURNEYING
FORWARD
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Directors of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC has pleasure in presenting their Report
on the Affairs of the Company together with
the Audited Financial Statements of Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC and the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st March 2023.

Review of the year

Chairman's statement, (pages 10 to 13), and
the Group Chief Executive Officer's Review,
(pages 14 to 18) describe the Company's
affairs and the Group's business. Financial
results of the Company/Group are elaborated
on pages 48 to 51. These reports together
with the Audited Financial Statements reflect
the state of affairs of the Company/Group.

Principal activities

The Company is engaged in Retail and
Wholesale Marketing, Financing, Assembling
and Manufacturing and in Financial Services.
The Company markets Consumer Electronics,
Home Appliances, Mobile and Smartphones,
Personal Computers, Laptops, Furniture,
Domestic and Industrial Sewing Machines,
Agriculture Equipment, and provides
Financing through Hire Purchase. In addition,
the Company manufactures and sells
Furniture, Water Pumps and assembles and
sells Motor Cycles and Two Wheel Tractors.
The Company also acts as a Bill Collection
Agent for Banks, Mobile Service Providers,
National Water Supply and Drainage Board,
Ceylon Electricity Board and is also a sub-
agent for Western Union.

Future developments

Future developments of the Company are
given under Way Forward on pages 52 to 57.

Environmental protection

Steps taken by the Company to ensure
environmental protections given under
natural capital on pages 80 to 85.

Risks

Information pertaining to material
foreseeable risks are given under Risk
Management on pages 110 to 115.

Independent Auditors’ report

The Independent Auditors’ report on the
Financial Statements is given on pages 127 to
137 in this Annual Report.

Financial statements

The Financial Statements for the year

ended 31st March 2023 are in accordance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards,
SLFRSs/LKASs, issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and the
requirements of Section 151 (and Section 153
for consolidated entity) of the Companies Act
No. 07 of 2007.

The Financial Statements duly signed by the
Directors are provided on pages 132 to 231
in this Annual Report.

Accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in
preparation of the Financial Statements

are provided in detail in the Notes to the
Financial Statements on pages 139 to 161.
The Company/Group has consistently applied
the accounting policies as set out in Note 2 to
all periods presented in these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Turnover

A detailed break-down of turnover is given in
Note 3 of the financial statements on page
162.

Property, plant and equipment

During the financial year, the Group and the
Company invested a sum of Rs. 889,352,506/-
(2021/22 - Rs. 769,355,876/-) and Rs.
584,953,947/- (2021/22 - Rs. 600,195,814/-)
in property, plant and equipment.

Details of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets and their movements
are given in Notes 11 and 12 to the Financial
Statements respectively. Details of freehold
land and buildings are given in Note 11.7 and
11.8 to the Financial Statements.

Market value of properties

The freehold property of the Company/Group
is revalued by an Independent Qualified
Valuer when there is a substantial difference
between the fair value and the carrying
amount of the freehold property. Company/
Group reviews its assets once in each
reporting date.

The most recent valuation was carried

out as at 31st March 2022. The details of
the valuation are given in Note 11.6 to the
Financial Statements on pages 172 to 173 in
this Annual Report.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Statement of the Directors’
Responsibilities is given on page 126.

Corporate governance

The Company has complied with Corporate
Governance Rules laid down by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, and
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.
The Corporate Governance Section on pages
97 to 105 describes the good Corporate
Governance Principles adopted by the
Company.
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Profit and appropriations

For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022
Rs. Rs.
Group Profit Before Tax for the Twelve Months Ended 31st March after Deducting all Expenses, Providing 174,191,571 5,535,560,393
for Known Liabilities and Depreciation Amounts to
From this has to be deducted the Income Tax Expenses (78,260,880) | (1,425,768,941)
Non-controlling Interest (41,079,179) (224,987,303)
Making a Profit for the Period 54,851,512 3,884,804,150
Total Other Comprehensive Income 75,367,493 (57,051,784)
Total Other Comprehensive Income - Non-controlling Interest (47,769,864) 73,344,096
To this has to be added a Balance Brought Forward from the Previous Year 5,131,278,490 3,434,779,611
Interim Dividend for the Period - Nil (2021/22 - Gross - Rs. 0.30, Rs. 0.35 and Rs. 0.20 per Share) - (957,853,517)
Adjustment due to Realisation on Revaluation Surplus 23,484,839 27,005,155
Leaving a Total Available for Appropriation 5,237,212,470 6,405,027,701
Transfer to Reserve Fund (20,452,198) (24,823,867)
Final Dividend Approved 2022/23 - Nil (2021/22 - Rs. 0.20) - (225,377,298)
Making a total Appropriation of (20,452,198) (250,201,165)
Leaving a balance on Group Basis to be Carried Forward of 5,216,760,272 6,154,826,545
The Balance to be Carried Forward on Company Only Basis will be 2,118,729,560 2,994,566,487

Dividends

The Company has not declared any dividends
for the year ended 31st March 2023.

Reserves (excluding non-controlling
interest)

Group reserves and retained equity as at 31st
March 2023 amounted to Rs. 9,517 million

vs Rs. 10,943 million as at 31st March 2022.
The break-up and movement are shown in
the Statement of Changes in Equity in the
Financial Statements.

Stated capital

As per the terms of the Companies Act No. 07
of 2007, the Stated Capital of the Company
was Rs. 626,048,050/- as at 31st March

2023 comprising 1,126,886,490 ordinary
shares and was unchanged during the year.
Details are given in Note 21 to the Financial
Statements on page 196.

Commitments and contingencies

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities of
the Group are disclosed in the Note 37 to the
Financial Statements.

Events occurring after the reporting
period

No circumstances have arisen since the
reporting date, which would require
adjustment or disclosure except for the
details given in Note 38 to the Financial
Statements on page 227.

Statutory payments

The declaration relating to statutory
payments is made in the Statement of
Directors' Responsibility on page 126.

Board of Directors and Board Sub-
Committees

The following Directors served on the Board
of the Company during the period under
review:

Executive

Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO
Mr. Sujeewa Perera (Alternate Director to
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene)

Mr. Kapila Perera (Alternate Director to
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen-appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate Director to
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda - appointed on 20th
April 2022 and resigned with effect from
30th September 2022)

Non-Executive

Mr. Dhammika Perera (resigned w.e.f. 10th
June 2022)

Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

Ms. Brindhiini Perera (appointed on 19th
October 2022)

Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe (Alternate Director
to Mr. Dhammika Perera - ceased to be
Alternate with effect from 10th June 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi

Mr. Dumith Fernando

Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen

Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne

Ms. Gayani de Alwis

Brief profiles of the Directors are shown on
pages 88 to 93.



In accordance with Rule 7.10.2 (b) of the
Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) Listing Rules,
Independent Directors have submitted a
signed and dated declaration as per the
specimen given in Appendix 7A of continuing
Listing Rules of CSE.

Mr. Dhammika Perera resigned from the
Board with effect from 10th June 2022.
Consequently, Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe
ceased to be Alternate to Mr. Dhammika
Perera with effect from 10th June 2022.

Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri resigned as the
Alternate Director to Mr. Sarath Ganegoda
with effect from 30th September 2022.

Ms. Brindhiini Perera was appointed to the
Board as a Non-Executive Director with effect
from 19th October 2022. In terms of Article
24 (10) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, shareholders will be requested

to re-elect her at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Ms. Gayani De
Alwis retires by rotation and being eligible
offers herself for re- election and the
shareholders will be requested to re-elect her
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

In terms of Article 24 (4) of the Article of
Association of the Company, Mr. Sarath
Ganegoda retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re- election and the
shareholders will be requested to re-elect
him at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Notice has been given pursuant to Section
211 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007
of the intention to propose an ordinary
resolution for the re-appointment of Mr.
Mohan Pandithage notwithstanding the age
limit of seventy years stipulated by Section
210 of the Companies Act.

Audit Committee

The following Directors comprise the Audit
Committee of the Board:

e Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne - Chairman
e Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi
e Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen

The Report of the Audit Committee on page
106 sets out the manner of compliance

by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Rule 7.10 of the Listing
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange on
Corporate Governance.

Remuneration Committee

The following Directors comprise the
Remuneration Committee of the Board:

e Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen - Chairman
*  Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi
e Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne

The Report of the Remuneration Committee
on page 107 contains a statement of the
remuneration policy. The details of the
aggregate remuneration paid to the Executive
and Non-Executive Directors during the

year under review are given in Note 8 to the
Financial Statements on page 165.

Board Nomination Committee

The following Directors comprise the
Nomination Committee of the Board:

e Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman
e Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen

e Mr. Dhammika Perera (resigned with
effect from 10th June 2022)

The Report of the Board Nomination
Committee on page 108 sets out the manner
of compliance by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of the Code of Best
Practice on Corporate Governance issued by
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Sri Lanka.
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Related Party Transactions Review
Committee

The following Directors comprise the Related
Party Transactions Review Committee of the
Board:

e Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi - Chairman
e Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne
e Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene

The Board of Directors has given the
following statement in respect of the Related
Party transactions.

The Related Party Transactions of the
Company during the financial year have been
reviewed by the Related Party Transactions
Review Committee of the Company and are in
compliance with Section 9 of the CSE Listing
Rules.

The Report of the Board-Related Party
Transactions Review Committee on page
109 sets out the manner of compliance

by the Company. Details of related party
transactions are given in pages 227 to 230.

Directors’ indemnity and insurance

The parent Company, Hayleys PLC has
obtained a Directors' and Officers’ Liability
insurance from a reputed insurance company
in Sri Lanka providing worldwide cover

to indemnify all past, present and future
Directors and Officers of the Group.

Directors’ interests and interest register

The Company, in compliance with the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, maintains
an Interests Register. There were no share
transactions by the Directors during the
financial year in the Company and the
Subsidiaries.

Directors’ remuneration

Executive Directors remuneration is
structured within an established framework
by the Board's Remuneration Committee

to whom this task has been entrusted.

The Directors are of the opinion that the
framework assures appropriateness of
remuneration and fairness for the Company.
The total remuneration of the Executive
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Directors for the year ended 31st March 2023 is given in Note 8 and 39.3 includes the value of perquisites granted to them as part of their terms
of service.

The total Directors fees of Non-Executive Directors for the reporting year ended 31st March 2023 is given in Note 8 is determined according to
the scales of payment decided upon by the Board. The Board is satisfied that the payment of remuneration is fair to the Company.

Directors’ interest in shares

The following transactions of shares of the Directors/Alternate Directors of the respective companies were reported during the reporting period.

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Shareholding 31st March 2023 Shareholding 01st April 2022
Number of shares Number of shares

Mr. Mohan Pandithage NIL NIL
Mr. Dhammika Perera (resigned with effect from 10.06.2022) 20,807,739 20,807,739
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene (Group CEO) NIL NIL
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi NIL NIL
Mr. Dumith Fernando NIL NIL
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen NIL NIL
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda NIL NIL
Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne NIL NIL
Ms. Gayani de Alwis NIL NIL
Ms. Brindhiini Perera (appointed on 19.10.2022) NIL NIL
Mr. Sujeewa Perera (Alternate Director to Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene) NIL NIL
Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe (Alternate Director to Mr. Dhammika Perera - ceased to NIL NIL
be Alternate with effect from 10.06.2022)
Mr. Kapila Perera (Alternate Director to Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen- 3,000 3,000
appointed on 20. 04.2022)
Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate Director to Mr. Sarath Ganegoda - NIL NIL
appointed on 20.04.2022 and resigned with effect from 30.09.2022)
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Subsidiaries

As at 31st March 2023 Shareholding of Singer Shareholding of Singer |  Shareholding of Regnis
Finance (Lanka) PLC | Industries (Ceylon) PLC (Lanka) PLC
Number of shares Number of shares Number of shares

Common Directors of the Singer Group Companies

Mr. Mohan Pandithage NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Dhammika Perera - resigned with effect from 10th June 2022 NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene (Group CEQ) NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Deepal Sooriyaarachchi NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Dumith Fernando NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Dilip De S, Wijeyeratne NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Gayani de Alwis NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Brindhiini Perera - appointed on 19th October 2022 NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Sujeewa Perera (Alternate) NIL NIL NIL
Ms. Kawshi Amarasinghe (Alternate) - ceased to be Alternate with NIL NIL NIL
effect from 10th June 2022

Mr. Kapila Perera (Alternate) - (appointed on 20th April 2022) 17,900 NIL NIL
Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate) - (appointed on 20th April 2022 NIL NIL NIL

and resigned with effect from 30th September 2022)

Directors of Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Mr. Aravinda Perera NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya (CEO) 50,155 NIL NIL
Mr. Jayanth Perera NIL NIL 1,600
Ms. Darshini Talpahewa NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Sadeep Perera - resigned with effect from 01st December 2022 NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Ranil De Silva NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Saman Herath NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Saman Herath NIL NIL NIL
Directors of Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC/Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Mr. Gamini Gunaratne NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Noel Joseph NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Kelum Kospelawatte 13,699 1,040 NIL
Mr. Mohamed Irzan (Alternate) NIL NIL NIL
Mr. Roshan Kulasuriya (Alternate) NIL 170 NIL
Mr. Shanil Perera (Alternate) NIL NIL NIL
Debentures Subsidiaries Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

There were no debentures held by the The names of the Directors who held office Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman
Directors of the Company. during the year ended 31st March 2023 in Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO

respect of the subsidiaries are given below: :
. P Hhsidiar g " Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen
Amalgamation

Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited a Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC Mr. Noel Joseph

Company which was in the business of selling ~ Mr. Aravinda Perera - Chairman Mr. Gamini Gunaratne

and distribution of mobile phones and was a Mr. Thushan Amarasuriya (CEO) Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

wholly owned subsidiary ofSinger .(Sri Lank@) M. Jayanth Perera Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne

PLC has been amalgamated with Singer (Sri

Lanka) PLC in terms of Section 242 of the Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO Mr. Kelum Kospelawatte

Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and continue as  Ms. Darshini Talpahewa Mr. Roshan Kulasuriya (Alternate Director
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC with effect from 30th Mr. Sadeep Perera (resigned with effect from to Mr. Mghesh Wijewardene - appointed on
January 2023. 01st December 2022) 20th April 2022)

Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate Director to
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda - appointed on 20th
Mr. Saman Herath April 2022 and resigned with effect from 30th
September 2022)

Mr. Ranil De Silva



124 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ON THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO
Mr. Hisham Jamaldeen

Mr. Noel Joseph

Mr. Gamini Gunaratne

Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

Mr. Dilip De S. Wijeyeratne

Mr. Kelum Kospelawatte

Mr. Mohamed Irzan (Alternate Director to Mr.
Kelum Kospelawatte)

Mr. Shanil Perera (Alternate Director to Mr.
Mahesh Wijewardene - appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Mr. Ramesh Chitrasiri (Alternate Director to
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda - appointed on 20th
April 2022 and resigned with effect from 30th
September 2022)

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited
Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

Mr. Kelum Kospelawatte

Mr. Malin Fernando

Mr. Thulitha Mendis - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Mr. Vajira Tennakoon - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Reality Lanka Limited

Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO
Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

Mr. Thulitha Mendis - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Singer Business School (Private) Limited
Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman

Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO

Mr. Sarath Ganegoda

Mr. Roshan Kulasuriya - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Mr. Vajira Tennakoon - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited
Mr. Mohan Pandithage - Chairman
Mr. Mahesh Wijewardene - Group CEO

Mr. Vajira Tennakoon - (appointed on 20th
April 2022)

Issue of listed debentures

The company has not issued any debentures
during the year ended 31st March 2023.

Share information and substantial
shareholdings

The distribution of shareholdings, public
holding percentage, market value of shares,
20 largest shareholders and record of scrip
issues are given on pages 245 to 248.

Earnings per share, dividends per share,
dividend pay-out, net assets value per share
and market value per share are given in the
Highlights on page 6 of this Annual Report
and prior year figures are adjusted in line
with the subdivision.

Employment

The number of persons employed by the

Group and the Company as at 31st March
2023 was 2,986 (2022 - 3,154) and 1,858

(2022 - 1,927), respectively.

Material issues pertaining to employees
and industrial relations

Details relating to material issues pertaining
to employees and industrial relations are
given in on page 61.

Corporate governance Directors’
declarations

The Directors declare that having considered
all information and explanations made
available to them that -

a. the Company complied with all
applicable laws and regulations in
conducting its business;

b. they have declared all material interests
in contracts involving the Company and
refrained from voting on matters in
which they were materially interested;

c.  the Company has made all endeavours
to ensure the equitable treatment of
shareholders;

d. the business is a going concern with
supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary: and

e. they have conducted a review of
internal controls covering financial,
operational and compliance controls
and risk management and have obtained
a reasonable assurance of their
effectiveness and successful adherence
herewith.

The Corporate Governance Report is given
under the governance section of this Annual
Report.

Donations (for approved and non-
approved charities/organisations)

During the year, donations amounting to

Rs. 836,571 (2021/22 - Rs. 763,904/-) were
made by the Group and donations made by
the Company was Rs Nil (2021/22 - Rs. Nil).
Donations made by the Group and Company
are given in Note 8.

Transfer to the second Board

Due to the Non-compliance with minimum
public holding requirement in terms of Rule
7.14.1 of the CSE Listing Rules, the Company
has been transferred to the Second Board
with effect from 10th February 2020.

Consequent to the current Stock Market
conditions and world economic downturn,
rectification of the public holding is not
foreseeable in the near future. However, the
Board of Directors continuously evaluate the
position and will endeavour to take remedial
action.

Auditors

The Financial Statements for the period
under review were audited by Messrs KPMG,
Chartered Accountants who offer themselves
for re-appointment for the ensuing year.

A resolution for the re-appointment of

the Auditors for the year 2023/24 and to
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authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.

The Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the Auditor, its effectiveness and its
relationship with the Company including the level of audit and non-audit fees paid to the
Auditors. Details on the work of the Audit Committee are set out in the Audit Committee
Report.

The audit and non-audit fees paid to the Auditors by the Company and Group are disclosed in
Note 8 on page 165 in this Annual Report.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not have any relationship or interest

in the Company or its subsidiaries. The Auditors have confirmed that they do not have
any relationship (other than that of Auditors) with or interest in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries other than those disclosed above.

Notice of meeting

The Forty-Eighth Annual General Meeting will be held at the Conference Hall of Hayleys PLC, No.
400, Deans Road, Colombo 10 on Thursday, 29th June 2023 at 1.30 pm.

The Notice of the Annual General Meeting to the shareholders is given on page 316.
For and on behalf of the Board,

Q%
Mohan Pandithage

Chairman

Lot

Mahesh Wijewardene

Director/Group Chief Executive Officer

Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited

Company Secretaries for
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Colombo
11th May 2023
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

The Directors are responsible under
Sections 150 (1), 151, 152 (1), and 153 of
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 (‘the
Companies Act), to ensure compliance with
the requirements set out therein and to
prepare Financial Statements for the financial
year ended 31st March 2023 giving a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the profit
of the Company and the Group for the said
financial year.

The Directors are also responsible, under
Section 148 of the Companies Act, for
ensuring that proper accounting records

are kept to enable determination of

financial position with reasonable accuracy,
preparation of Financial Statements and audit
of such statements to be carried out readily
and properly.

The Board accepts responsibility for the
integrity and objectivity of the Financial
Statements presented. The Directors confirm
that in preparing the Financial Statements,
appropriate accounting policies have been
selected and applied consistently while
reasonable and prudent judgements have
been made so that the form and substance of
transactions are properly reflected.

The Directors confirm that the Financial
Statements have been prepared and
presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (SLFRSs/LKASs), the
Companies Act and the Listing Rules of

the Colombo Stock Exchange. Further, the
Financial Statements provide the information
required by the Companies Act and the
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Directors are of the opinion, based

on their knowledge of the Company, key
operations and specific inquiries, that
adequate resources exist to support the
Company and the Group on a going concern
basis over the next year. These Financial
Statements have been prepared on that
basis.

The Directors have taken proper and
sufficient measures to safeguard the assets
of the Company and the Group and, in that
context, have instituted appropriate systems
of internal control and accounting records
to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities. These have been reviewed,
evaluated and updated on an ongoing basis.

The External Auditors, Messrs KPMG,
Chartered Accountants were provided

with every opportunity to undertake the
inspections they considered appropriate

to enable them to form their opinion on

the Financial Statements. The Independent
Auditor's Report, shown on pages 127 to 131
sets out their responsibilities in relation to
the financial statements.

Compliance Report

The Directors confirm that to the best of their
knowledge, all statutory payments relating

to employees and the Government that

were due in respect of the Company and

its subsidiaries as at the balance sheet date
have been paid or where relevant, provided
for.

By Order of the Board,

Hayleys Group Services (Private) Limited
Company Secretaries
for Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Colombo

11th May 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG Tel . +94 - 11 542 6426

{Chartered Accountants}) Fax T +94 - 11 244 5872

32A, Sir Mohamad Macan Markar Mawatha, +94 - 11 244 6058

P. 0. Box 186, Internet = www.kpmg.comvik

Colombo 00300, &ri Lanka,
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SINGER (SRI In our opinion, the accompanying financial ("Code of Ethics"), and we have fulfilled our
LANKA) PLC statements of the Company and the Group other ethical responsibilities in accordance
Report on the Audit of the Financial give a true and fair view of the financial with the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
Statements position of the Company and the Group as audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

. at 31st March 2023, and of their financial and appropriate to provide a basis for our
Opinion .
performance and cash flows for the year opinion.

We have audited the financial statements then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka
of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC (the “Company”) Accounting Standards. Key Audit Matters
and the consolidated financial statements .

: e Key audit matters are those matters that,
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Basis for Opinion X . .
. . : ) in our professional judgment, were of most
Group”), which comprise the statement of L . L . ;
) : o We conducted our audit in accordance with significance in our audit of the Company
financial position as at 31st March 2023, and ) . B . ) ) .

. Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (“SLAUSS"). financial statements and the consolidated
the statement of profit or loss and other s ) ) )

o Our responsibilities under those standards financial statements of the current period.
comprehensive income, statement of changes : ) L )

: : are further described in the Auditor’s These matters were addressed in the
in equity and statement of cash flows for the o . . . : ' :

) ) Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial context of our audit of the Company financial
year then ended, and notes to the financial : : ! )

: X - Statements section of our report. We are statements and the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant ) ) . ) :
sccounting policies and other exolanato independent of the Group in accordance with statements as a whole, and in forming our

&P P Y the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri Lanka opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

notes set out on pages from 132 to 231. o
separate opinion on these matters.

01. Allowance for Expected Credit Losses - Trade and other Receivables, Loans and advances, finance lease receivable and hire purchase

Risk Description Our response

Refer to note 2.4.5 (accounting policy) and note 18.3 to these Financial Statements. Our audit procedures included:

The Group has recognized allowance for expected credit losses  relating to Trade * Challenging the appropriateness of the selection of
receivables of Rs. 802 million (Company Rs. 802 million), Hire debtors of Rs. 154 million accounting pohcwe; based on the regulremgnts of the
(Company Rs. 151 million), other receivables Rs. 1,922 million (Company Rs. 1,921 SLFRS 09, our business understanding and industry
million), Loans and advances and lease rental receivables amounting to Rs. 1,416 practice.

million (Company - Nil) - Evaluating the appropriateness of the management

approach over the application and use of practical

Allowance for expected credit losses represent management'’s best estimate of the ) .
P P & expedients applied for SLFRS 9.

losses expected within receivables as at the reporting date. They are calculated for

specific assets and on a collective basis for portfolios of receivables of a similar nature. ~ * ASS€SSIiNg management's processes, systems and controls
implemented over impairment assessment.
The calculation of allowance for expected credit losses is inherently judgmental for any

institution and the Group use subjective assumptions/ judgements made to determine
the classification category (e.g. business model and SPPI assessment), and ECL
modelling (e. g. macro-economic inputs) as per the requirements of SLFRS 09.

Identifying and testing the relevant key controls and
evaluating the completeness, accuracy and relevance of
data used.

Involving our IT specialists to assess the logics and

With respect of Singer Finance PLC, a subsidiary, the determination of allowance for compilation of the overdue information of loans and
expected credit losses using the expected credit loss model is subject to a number of advances, finance lease receivables and hire purchases.
key parameters and assumptions, including the identification of loss stages, estimates
of probability of default, loss given default, macroeconomic forecasts, exposures at
default and discount rate, adjustments for forward looking information and other

+ Assessing the adequacy, completeness, accuracy and
relevance of the disclosures made in the financial

. . L ‘ ‘ statements.
adjustment factors. In particular, the determination of the loss allowances is heavily
dependent on the external macro environment and the Companies internal credit risk
management strategy.
G.P. Jayatiake FCA T..8. Rajharer FCA W.W.J.C. Perera FCA
s, 5. Josaph FCA Mo, S.MB, Jayasokara FGA  W.K.D.C Absyrathne FCA,
S.T.D.L. Parera FCA G.A. Karunaratne FCA R.M.O.B. Rajapakse FCA
KPMG, a S Lankan parinership and & member firm of the Ma. BK.D.TN. Rodrigo FCA  R.H. Rajan FCA M.NM. Shamesl FCA
KPMG global ongs of Indapendant member firma Ms. C.TKN. Poram ACA AM.RLP. Alahakoon ACA Ms. PM.K. Sumanasckara FCA
aMiated with KPMG Intemationat Limed, a private Principals - S.R.1. Perera FCMA{UK), LLB, Altomey-at-Law, H 5. Goonewsardane ACA,
English y limiled by All rights d. Ma. F.R. Zyyard FCHMA (UK, FTII
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01. Allowance for Expected Credit Losses - Trade and other Receivables, Loans and advances, finance lease receivable and hire purchase

Risk Description

Our response

Additional subjectivity and judgement have been introduced into the Company’'s

measurement of ECL due to the heightened uncertainty associated with the impact

of the economic outlook to the Company's customers, increasing our audit effort
thereon.

Given the level of significant management judgment involved in the estimates and
the subjective nature of such judgments involved, Allowance for expected credit
losses of trade receivables, Loans and advances, finance lease receivable and hire
purchase is considered as a key audit matter.

Working with our Financial Risk Management (FRM) Specialist:
in
Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions used
based on our knowledge and information of the client and
the industry and assessing whether the macro-economic
factors have been used with the latest available information
to ensure that the latest economic forecasts have been
used.

Evaluating and testing the mathematical accuracy of
models applied and post- model adjustments.

02. Carrying value of Inventory

Risk Description

Our response

Refer to note 2.5 (accounting policy) and note 16 to these Financial Statements.

The Group has recognized a total inventory provision of Rs. 1,700 million
(Company -Rs. 1,523 million) in arriving at a total inventory value of Rs. 20,227
million (Company - Rs. 17,929 million)

The Group has significant levels of inventories and significant management
judgments are taken with regard to categorization of inventories into obsolete
and/or slow moving and which should be therefore be considered for provision.
Estimates are then involved in arriving at provisions against cost in respect of
slow moving and obsolete inventories to arrive at valuation based on lower of
cost and net realizable value.

Given the level of significant management judgments and estimates involved this
is considered to be a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included:

+ Obtaining and understanding an assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of management's
key internal controls over the provision computations and to
ensure the accuracy of the inventory provision

- Challenging the management with regard to the calculation
methodology, the basis for provision and the process with
respect to inventory provision.

+ Attending stock counts as at the year-end. In addition, assessing
the effectiveness of the physical count controls in operation at
each count location to identify damaged stocks, and expired
stocks that are written off in a timely manner and evaluating
the results of the other counts performed by the management
throughout the period to assess the existence of inventory

- Assessing the adequacy of, and movements in, inventory
provisions held, by recalculating a sample of items included
within the provision to ensure appropriate basis of valuation.

Evaluating, on a sample basis, whether inventories were stated
at the lower of cost or net realizable value at the reporting date
by comparing the sales prices of inventories subsequent to the
reporting date where available and with the latest prices prior
to the business interruption and checked whether there were
any considerably low margin products which would potentially
have an effect of the net realizable value.

Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions used

in management assessment of provision for slow moving
inventory to ensure that management assessment is adequate
based on our knowledge and information of the client and the
industry.
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03. Contingent liability on deemed VAT assessment

Risk Description Our response

Refer to note 37.4 in these Financial Statements. Our audit procedures included;

) ) ) ) ) . Discussions with management and those who charged
The Group has tax assessments which requires disclosures in the financial & &
statements. The Assessment Notice received by Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC,

relating to deemed VAT is significant.

with governance to understand the nature and status of
tax assessment and to understand the latest updates with
respect of the matter.

Commissioner General of Inland Revenue has issued assessment notices on
Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC pertaining to an additional VAT Liability/Payment on
account of Deemed VAT for seven quarters for the period 1st January 2014
to 30th September 2015. The assessment was for a Deemed VAT payment of
Rs. 1,076 million and Penalty of Rs. 423 million totaling to Rs. 1,499 million.
Commissioner General of Inland Revenue has given the determination on the
appeal. Accordingly, Rs. 791 million of Deemed VAT liability and penalty of Rs.
395 million totaling to Rs. 1,186 million is payable as a Deemed VAT liability
for seven quarters for the period 1st January 2014 to 30th September 2015.

Inspecting correspondence provided by the management,
with tax consultants and lawyer’s opinions obtained by
the management in assessing the likelihood of outflow of
resources have become probable.

- Assessing the adequacy and appropriateness of the Group's
disclosure on deemed VAT assessment in accordance with
applicable accounting standards.

After carefully reviewing the advice of tax consultants, the management is

of the opinion that there is no basis for the Company to be made liable for
Deemed VAT and accordingly the Company has decided to appeal to the Tax
Appeal Commission against the determination. Hence, no provision has been
made in the Financial Statements.

The outcome of the deemed VAT assessment is uncertain and it requires the
management to make significant judgments and estimates in relation to the
likely outcome of these tax issues and exposures.

Given the significant value relating to the Deemed VAT assessment and
judgmental nature of this contingent liability, this is considered to be a key
audit matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual
report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it
becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements

or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if

we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged
with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those
Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the
preparation of Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of
Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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In preparing the Financial Statements,
management is responsible for assessing
the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are
responsible for overseeing the Company’s
and the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an Auditor's Report

that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SLAuSs will always detect

a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with
SLAUSS, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud

or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company and the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by
management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of
management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on

the audit evidence obtained, whether

a material uncertainty exists related

to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention
in our Auditor's Report to the related

disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our Auditor's Report.
However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the Financial
Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that we have
complied with ethical requirements in
accordance with the Code of Ethics regarding
independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.




From the matters communicated with those
charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Financial Statements

of the current period and are therefore

the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our Auditor’s Report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements

As required by section 163 (2) of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, we have
obtained all the information and explanations
that were required for the audit and, as far
as appears from our examination, proper
accounting records have been kept by the
Company.

CA Sri Lanka membership number of the
engagement partner responsible for signing
this independent auditor’s report is 3707.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Colombo, Sri Lanka

18 May 2023
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

LOSS AND OTHER

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Revenue 3 | 54,767,233,822 | 76,847,841,969 | 47,950,386,172 | 68,652,289,991
Cost of Sales (31,431,878,875) | (52,735,992,508) | (31,734,452,315) | (50,090,399,111)
Direct Interest Cost (4,463,097,912) | (1,920,345,381) - -
Gross Profit 18,872,257,035 | 22,191,504,080 | 16,215933,857 | 18,561,890,880
Other Income 5 248,026,509 262,196,779 209,989,632 195,629,087
Selling and Administrative Expenses (12,614,475,931) | (13,513,603,407) | (10,293,169,842) | (11,344,160,727)
Impairment (Provision) / Reversal on Trade and Other Receivables 8.1 181,960,851 (702,745,382) 140,084,595 (281,361,700)
Operating Profit 6,687,768,464 8,237,352,070 6,272,838,242 7,131,997,540
Finance Income 6 1,152,750,933 170,083,824 385,016,314 134,643,646
Finance Cost (7,271,615,082) | (2,490,305,130) | (6,648,491,053) | (2,128,766,174)
Net Finance Cost (6,118,864,149) | (2,320,221,306) | (6,263,474,739) | (1,994,122,528)
VAT/DRL/NBT on Financial Services (394,712,745) (381,570,371) (78,000,000) (94,000,000)
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 174,191,570 5,535,560,393 (68,636,497) 5,043,875,012
Income Tax (Expense )/ Reversal (78,260,880) | (1,425,768,941) 289,235,410 (1,135,233,806)
Profit for the Year 95,930,690 4,109,791,452 220,598,913 3,908,641,206
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Revaluation Gain on Land and Buildings 11.5 - 640,110,819 - 181,134,961
Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair 15.1 744,823 (2,089,975) (1,334,106) (2,089,975)
Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on Employee Benefit Obligations 274 115,792,905 (77,032,150) 85,304,538 (57,319,102)
Related Taxes
Tax on Other Comprehensive Income 9.4 (348,927,547) (116,768,350) (102,696,853) (29,217,213)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax (232,389,819) 444,220,344 (18,726,421) 92,508,671
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax (136,459,129) |  4,554,011,796 201,872,492 4,001,149,877
Profit Attributable to:
Owners of the Company 7,081,647 3,958,148,246 220,598,913 3,908,641,206
Non-Controlling Interests 88,849,043 151,643,206 - -
95,930,690 4,109,791,452 220,598,913 3,908,641,206
Total Comprehensive Income Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (177,538,309) | 4,329,024,493 201,872,492 4,001,149,877
Non-Controlling Interests 41,079,180 224,987,303 - -
(136,459,129) 4,554,011,796 201,872,492 4,001,149,877
Earnings per Share - Basic - (Rs.) 10.3 0.01 3.51 0.20 3.47
Dividend per Share (Rs.) 33 - - 0.20 1.10

Figures in brackets indicate deductions

The Notes on pages 140 through 231 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Group Company

As at 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 11.3/11.12 7,652,258,026 7.521,443,570 3,852,273,158 3.807,242,852
Right-of-Use Assets 11.20.1 4,469,009,310 4,807,413,317 3,788,866,478 4,148,095,437
Intangible Assets 12 521,067,914 548,839,357 408,575,764 422,365,752
Investment in Subsidiaries 13 = - 2,963,023,473 2,968,023,473
Other Non - Current Assets 14 - 59,315,322 - -
Other Investments 15.1 23,644,555 22,899,732 21,524,326 22,858,432
Trade and Other Receivables 18.1 7.773.774,479 12,182,087,589 737,680,455 695,447,739
Deferred Tax Assets 26.1 1,485,220,613 1,269,800,660 1,371,082,289 1,125,639,261
Non-Current Assets 21924974897 26411,799,547 13.143,025943 13.189,672,946
Inventories 16 20,227,337,833 23,022,191.838 17,928,926,193 20,524,780,808
Loans Due from Related Parties 17 - - 268,000,000 110,000,000
Income Tax Receivables 31.1 502,199,776 45,144,694 480,658,377 -
Trade and Other Receivables 18.2 28,236,227,785 35,284,564,275 10,659,760,265 18,356,963,542
Amounts due from Related Parties 19 91,133,000 24,156,695 154,824,197 198,611,049
Deposits with Banks 1.413,997,183 177,449,769 - -
Short Term Investments 15.2 2,013,991,655 1.412,979,204 = -
Cash in hand and at bank 20.1 4,388,050,253 2,972,394,159 1,829,445,001 1,732,552,569
Current Assets 56.872,937,485 62,938,880,634 31,321,614,033 40,922,907,968
Total Assets 78,797.912,382 89,350,680,181 44.464,639,976 54112,580914
Equity
Stated Capital 21 626,048,050 626,048,050 626,048,050 626,048,050
Capital Reserves 22 1.350,891,535 1,635,091,637 1,199,233,948 1.291,762,073
Other Component of Equit: 5,165,023 4,437,209 3,503,335 4,437,209
Statutory Reserve 23 244,214,988 223,762,790 - -
Revenue Reserves 24 7.916,760,272 9,080,203,844 4,818,729,560 5919,943,785
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company 10.,143,079,868 11,569,543,530 6.647,514,893 7.842,191.117
Non - Controlling Interests 40 1.946,903,694 1,971,081.812 - -
Total Equity 12.089,983.562 13.,540,625.342 6.647.514.893 7842191117
Liabilities
Interest - Bearing Loans and Borrowings 25.1/25.6 10,242,000,000 12,112,183,301 7,550,000,000 6,500,000,000
Lease Liabilities 11.20.2/11.20.3 4,229,568,997 4,570,730,871 3.,603,078,440 3.925,204,784
Deferred Tax Liabilities 26.1 741,264,681 468,501,357 - -
Employee Benefit Obligations 27 1,060,341,381 1,041,152,483 724,718,298 719,013,509
Security Deposits 28 1,468,392,422 1.462,347,054 1,468,392,422 1,406,990,989
Other Financial Liabilities 35 5,844,247,621 2,317.847,702 - -
Deferred Revenue 30 76,230,702 110,358,351 76,230,702 110,358,350
Other Non - Current Liabilities 29.1 188,341,665 187,706,310 188,341,665 187,706,310
Non-Current Liabilities 23,850,387,469 22,270827,429 13610,761,527 12,849,273942
Trade and Other Payables 29 7.123,530.851 19.314,620,753 6.055,831.472 13,765,296.952
Deferred Revenue 30 216,229,503 201,549,111 216,165,352 198,212,297
Income Tax Payables 31.1 269,240,792 714,483,305 - 433,939,510
Dividends Payables 32 64,143,198 81,477,769 49,182,657 67,969,210
Amounts Due to Related Parties 34 829,668,233 1.074,260,057 1,231.687.560 4,137.893,468
Other Financial Liabilities 35 13,351,356,610 9.828,665,610 = -
Lease Liabilities 11.20.2/11.20.3 1,024,002,828 912,300,132 907,649,310 854,483,617
Interest - Bearing Loans and Borrowings 25.1/25.6 18,399,810,730 20,235,742,805 14,271,246,066 13,536,188,716
Bank Overdrafts 20.2 1.579,558,606 1.176.,127.868 1.474,601,139 427,132,085

Current Liabilities

42,857,541,351

53,539,227.410

24,206,363,556

33421,115,855

Total Liabilities

66,707.928,820

75.810.054.839

37.817.125,083

46,270,389,797

Total Equity and Liabilities

78797912382

89,350,680.181

44,464.639,976

54,112.580914

The Notes on pages 140 through 231 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

| certify that the Financial Statements of the Company comply with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

/iy

Shalinka Seresinhe
Finance Director

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements. Signed for and on behalf of the Board by.

@%
Mohan Péndithage
Chairman

11th May 2023
Colombo

oot

Mahesh Wijewardene
Director/Group Chief Executive Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

Group

Stated Capital

Rs.

Statutory
Reserve

Rs.

Balance at 31st March 2021

626,048,050

198,938,923

Realisation of Revaluation Surplus

Transferred to/(from) during the year

24,823,867

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income

Revaluation Gain on Land and Buildings

9.4 -

Actuarial Loss on Employee Benefit Obligations

27.4 -

Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

15.1 -

Related Taxes

Deferred Tax on Revaluation Gain on Land and Building

Deferred Tax on Actuarial loss on Employee Benefit Obligations

9.4 -

Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

9.4 -

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax

Transactions with Owners of the Company, Recognised Directly in Equity

Distributions to Owners of the Company

Final Dividend - 2020/2021

33 -

Interim Dividend - 2021/2022

33 -

Total Distributions to Owners of the Company

Balance at 31st March 2022

626,048,050

223,762,790

Charge Relating to surcharge Tax

9.1.13

Adjusted Balance at 1st April 2022

626,048,050

223,762,790

Realisation of Revaluation Surplus

Transferred to/(from) during the year

20,452,198

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Profit for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income

Actuarial Gain on Employee Benefit Obligations

27.4 -

Fair Value Change in Equity instruments designated at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

151 -

Related Taxes

Income Tax rate change impact on revaluation of Land and Buildings

9.4 -

Deferred Tax on Actuarial gain on Employee Benefit Obligations

9.4 -

Deferred Tax on Fair Value Change in Equity instruments designated at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income

9.4 -

Total Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax

Transactions with Owners of the Company, Recognised Directly in Equity

Distributions to Owners of the Company

Final Dividend - 2021/2022

33 -

Total Distributions to Owners of the Company

Balance at 31st March 2023

626,048,050

244,214,988

Fair Value of Financial Assets at FVOCI Reserve relates to change in Fair Value of Financial Assets at FVOCI.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The Notes on pages 140 through 231 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

Capital Reserves | Other Component Revenue Reserves Total
of Equity
Revaluation Fair Value of General Retained Non-Controlling Total
Reserves |  Financial Assets Reserves Earnings Interests
at FVOCI Reserve

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
1,232,580,379 6,025,590 2,700,000,000 3,716,501,234 8,480,094,176 1,778,543,342 10,258,637,518
(27,005,155) - - 27,005,155 - - -

- - (24,823,867) - - -

- - 3,958,148,246 3,958,148,246 151,643,206 4,109,791,452
546,538,500 - - - 546,538,500 93,572,319 640,110,819

- - - (73,978,098) (73,978,098) (3,054,052) (77,032,150)

- (2,089,975) - - (2,089,975) - (2,089,975)
(117,022,087) - - (117,022,087) (17,776,231) (134,798,318)
- - - 16,926,314 16,926,314 602,060 17,528,374

- 501,594 - - 501,594 - 501,594
429,516,413 (1,588,381) - (57,051,784) 370,876,248 73,344,096 444,220,344
429,516,413 (1,588,381) - 3,901,096,462 4,329,024,494 224,987,302 4,554,011,796

- - (281,721,623) (281,721,623) (32,448,832) (314,170,455)

- - - (957,853,517) (957,853,517) - (957,853,517)

- - - (1,239,575,140) (1,239,575,140) (32,448,832) (1,272,023,972)
1,635,091,637 4,437,209 2,700,000,000 6,380,203,844 11,569,543,530 1,971,081,812 13,540,625,342
(1,023,548,055) (1,023,548,055) (32,808,466) (1,056,356,521)

1,635,091,637 4,437,209 2,700,000,000 5,356,655,789 10,545,995,475 1,938,273,346 12,484,268,821
(23,484,839) - - 23,484,839 - - -

- - - (20,452,198) - - -

- - - 7,081,647 7,081,647 88,849,043 95,930,690

- - - 107,440,473 107,440,473 8,352,432 115,792,905

- 327,582 - - 327,582 417,241 744,823
(260,715,263) - - (260,715,263) (54,147,697) (314,862,960)
- - - (32,072,980) (32,072,980) (2,391,839) (34,464,819)

- 400,232 - 400,232 400,232
(260,715,263) 727,814 - 75,367,493 (184,619,956) (47,769,863) (232,389,819)
(260,715,263) 727,814 - 82,449,140 (177,538,309) 41,079,180 (136,459,129)
- - - (225,377,298) (225,377,298) (32,448,832) (257,826,130)
- - - (225,377,298) (225,377,298) (32,448,832) (257,826,130)
1,350,891,535 5,165,023 2,700,000,000 5,216,760,272 10,143,079,868 1,946,903,694 12,089,983,562
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capital Other Revenue Reserves
Reserves | Component of
Equity
Company Note | Stated Capital Revaluation Fair Value General Retained Total
Reserves of Financial Reserves Earnings
Assets at
FVOCI
Reserve
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance at 31st March 2021 626,048,050  1,170,907,941 6,025,590  2,700,000,000 577,634,799  5080,616,380
Realisation of Revaluation Surplus - (16,808,438) - - 16,808,438 -
Profit for the Year - - - - 3908641,206  3908,641,206
Other Comprehensive Income -
Revaluation Gain on Land and Building - 181,134,961 - - - 181,134,961
Actuarial Loss on Employee Benefit Obligations 274 - - - - (57,319,102) (57,319,102)
Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income 15.1 - - (2,089,975) - - (2,089,975)
Related Taxes -
Deferred Tax on Revaluation Gain on Land and Buildings 9.4 - (43,472,391) - - - (43,472,391)
Deferred Tax on Actuarial loss on Employee Benefit Obligations 9.4 - - - - 13,753,584 13,753,584
Deferred Tax on Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments
Designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 9.4 - - 501,594 - - 501,594
Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year , Net of Tax - 137,662,570 (1,588,381) - (43,565,518) 92,508,671
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax - 137,662,570 (1,588,381) - 3,865,075,688 4,001,149,877
Transactions with Owners of the Company, Recognised
Directly in Equity
Distributions to Owners of the Company
Final Dividend - 2020/2021 33 - - - - (281,721,623)  (281,721,623)
Interim Dividend - 2021/2022 33 - - - (957,853,517)  (957,853,517)
Total Distributions to owners of the Compan - - - - (1,239,575,140) (1,239,575,140)
Balance at 31st March 2022 626,048,050  1,291,762,073 4,437,209 2,700,000,000 3219943785 7,842,191,117
Charge Relating to surcharge Tax 9.1.1.3 - - - - (804,825638)  (804,825,638)
Adjusted Balance at 1st April 2022 626,048,050  1,291,762,073 4,437,209 2,700,000,000  2,415118,147  7,037,365,479
Realisation on Revaluation Surplus - (15,022,401) - - 15,022,401 -
Profit for the Year - - - - 220,598,913 220,598913
Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial Gain on Employee Benefit Obligations 274 - - - - 85,304,538 85,304,538
Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments Designated at Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income 151 - - (1,334,106) - - (1,334,106)
Related Taxes
Income Tax rate change impact on revaluation of Land and
Buildings 9.4 - (77,505,724) - - - (77,505,724)
Deferred Tax on Actuarial loss on Employee Benefit Obligations 9.4 - - - - (25,591,361) (25,591,361)
Deferred Tax on Fair Value Change in Equity Instruments
Designated at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income 9.4 - - 400,232 - - 400,232
Total Other Comprehensive Income , Net of Tax - (77,505,724) (933,874) - 59713177 (18,726,421)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax - (77,505,724) (933,874) - 280,312,090 201,872,492
Transactions with Owners of the Company, Recognised
Directly in Equity
Distributions to Owners of the Company
Final Dividend - 2021/2022 33 - - - (225377,298)  (225377,298)
Total Distributions to Owners of the Company - - - (225377298)  (225377298)
Amalgamation- Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited (366,345,780)  (366,345,780)
Balance at 31st March 2023 626,048050 1199233948 3503335 2,700000000 2118729560 6,647,514,893

Fair value reserve of Financial Assets at FVOCI relates to change in Fair Value of Financial Assets at FVOCI.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions
The Notes on pages 140 through 231 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows From / (Used in) Operating Activities

Profit / ( Loss) Before Tax Expense 174,191,570 5,535,560,393 (68,636,497) 5,043,875,012

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment 118, 762,709,302 737,804,421 535,245,916 548,853,749

11.16

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 12.8 55,547,619 46,869,927 36,164,041 29,306,263
Amortization of Leasehold Rights 14 = 1,301,250 - -
Depreciation of Right- of - Use Assets 11.20.1] 1,010,707,034 1,039,127,827 884,176,673 932,864,165
Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 8 2,291,561 - 2,291,561 -
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 5 (70,981) (758,595) - (758,595)
Interest Expense 6,328,642,183 2,096,417,574 5,801,184,381 2,128,766,174
Interest Income (1,126,852,501) (170,083,824) (365,355,599) (97,349,541)
Provision for Inventories 16.1 374,183,974 51,653,410 284,734,989 39,681,956
Provision / (Reversal) of Impairment on Trade and Other 18.3 (181,960,851) 702,745,382 (140,084,595) 281,361,700
Receivables
Dividend Income 5 (240,000) (240,000) (129,210,428) (129,210,428)
Provision for Employee Benefit Obligations 27.4 224,960,606 115,964,310 151,372,661 79,782,830

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 7,624,109,517 | 10,156,362,075 6,991,883,103 8,857,173,285
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 2,420,669,715 (4,891,540,314) 2,535,840,584 (4,414,836,425)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Debtors falling due after one Year 4,729,406,312 (320,933,194) (42,232,716) 107,358,547
(Increase)/ Decrease in Debtors falling due within one Year 6,970,804,592 | (12,350,868,980) | 7,973,898376 | (6,013,562,229)
(Increase) / Decrease in dues from Related Parties (66,976,305) (12,535,820) 43,786,852 (158,966,841)
Increase/(Decrease) in dues to Related Parties (244,591,825) 732,956,036 | (3,058,312,776) (121,322,796)
Increase in Security Deposits 6,045,368 95,782,033 12,841,832 113,246,899
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables (12,461,345,396) 605,107,719 (8,022,289,286) 250,994,631
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Liabilities (19,447,257) (4,775,629) (16,174,593) 17,492,705

Cash Generated from / (used in) Operations 8,958,674,720 | (5,990,446,074) | 6,419,241,376 | (1,362,422,224)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Finance Costs Paid (5,578,346,373) | (1,459,130,954) | (5,193,501,066) | (1,486,953,202)
Employee Benefits Paid 27 (90,736,818) (98,618,996) (64,878,626) (72,727,605)
Income Tax Paid 31| (1,274,427,780) | (1,438,113,486) (912,476,567) | (1,048,786,829)
Surcharge Tax Paid (1,056,356,521) - (804,825,638) -
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities 958,807,228 (8,986,309,510) (556,440,521) | (3,970,889,860)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible (917,128,682) | (1,050,843,947) (589,997,952) (830,050,127)
Assets
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 4,171,575 5,529,000 3,934,575 5,529,000
Cash Proceed form Amalgamation of Digital Media (Pvt) Ltd = - (43,168,770) -
Acquisition of Marketable Securities (601,012,451) (599,717,148) - -
Withdrawal of Bank Deposits (1,236,547,414) (116,514,941) - -
Loans Given to Related Companies = - (158,000,000) (110,000,000)
Interest Received 1,126,852,501 170,083,824 365,355,599 97,349,541
Dividend Received 240,000 240,000 129,210,428 129,210,428
Net Cash from used in Investing Activities (1,623,424,471) | (1,591,223,212) (292,666,120) (707,961,158)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds From Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings 38,884,453,635 | 49,893,016,904 | 30,489,568,546 30,427,794,514
Repayment of Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings (42,708,715,028) | (36,783,491,077) | (29,268,972,802) | (21,574,746,237)
Net Settlements to Lease Creditors (1,272,826,228) | (1,247,331,839) | (1,077,901,874) | (1,100,110,546)
Increase in Customer Deposit Liabilities 7,049,090,919 1,681,315,521 - -
Net payment to Minority Shareholders - (32,448,832) - -
Dividend Paid (275,160,700) | (1,290,769,790) (244,163,851) | (1,230,428,127)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Financing Activities 1,676,842,598 | 12,220,290,887 (101,469,981) | 6,522,509,604
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,012,225,356 1,642,758,165 (950,576,622) 1,843,618,586
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year 1,796,266,291 153,508,126 1,305,420,484 (538,198,102)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 20.2 2,808,491,647 1,796,266,291 354,843,862 1,305,420,484

Analysis Of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Favourable balances

Cash in hand and at bank

4,388,050,253

2,972,394,159

1,829,445,001

1,732,552,569

Unfavourable balances

Bank overdrafts

(1,579,558,606)

(1,176,127,868)

(1,474,601,139)

(427,132,085)

2,808,491,647

1,796,266,291

354,843,862

1,305,420,484

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and in hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined

above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

The accounting policies and notes as set on pages 1 40 through 231 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
1.1 Reporting Entity
1.1.1 General

Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC is a Public limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Sri Lanka. The Registered Office of the
Company is located at No 112, Havelock
Road, Colombo 05 and the principal place of
business is situated at the above address.

In the Report of the Directors and in the
Financial Statements, “the Company” refers
to Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC as the Holding
Company and “the Group” refers to the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC and its Subsidiaries, Singer
Finance (Lanka) PLC, Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Reality
Lanka Limited, Regnis Appliances (Private)
Limited, Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited,
Singer Business School (Private) Limited and
Domus Lanka (Private) Limited.

The ordinary shares of the Company are
listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri
Lanka.

Hayleys PLC together with its subsidiaries,
Volanka (Private) Limited, and Carbotels
(Private) Limited, acquired on 15th
September 2017 a total of 231,864,362
ordinary shares in Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC,
constituting approximately 61.73% of the
total shares in issue at a price of Rs. 47/-

per share, making Hayleys PLC the ultimate
controlling party of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC with
effect from 15th September 2017.

Consequent to the purchase of 210,587,766
shares, a mandatory offer was made by
Hayleys PLC on 31st October 2017 as Hayleys
PLC triggered the Company takeovers

and mergers code 1995, published under
the rules made by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka under
Section 53 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Sri Lanka, Act No. 36 of 1987
as amended, and in terms of Rule 31 (1) (a)
of the code. Accordingly subsequent to the
mandatory offer, Hayleys PLC, with parties
acting in concern holds 304,108,410 shares
constituting approximately 80.96% of the
total shares in issue.

On 15th October 2018, Hayleys PLC
purchased the balance 35,562,883 (9.47%)
ordinary shares held by Retail Holdings (Sri
Lanka) BV in Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC at a price
of Rs. 47.00 per share upon Retail Holdings
(Sri Lanka) BV exercising their option to

sell its shares to Hayleys PLC as previously
agreed. After accepting this offer, Hayleys
PLC together with its Group Companies holds
90.43% (80.96% previously) of Singer (Sri
Lanka) PLC

1.1.2 Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements

of Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC as at and for the
year ended 31st March 2023 comprise

the Company and its Subsidiaries namely,
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, Singer Industries
(Ceylon) PLC, Regnis (Lanka) PLC, Reality
Lanka Limited, Regnis Appliances (Private)
Limited, Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited,
Singer Business School (Private) Limited and
Domus Lanka (Private) Limited.

Subsidiaries
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, was incorporated
on 19th April 2004 under the Companies

Act No. 17 of 1982 and re- registered under
the Company's Act No.07 of 2007 and its
commercial operations commenced on 8th
July 2004. Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC owns 79.93%
of its equity shares.

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC was
incorporated on 13th December 1963 and
re-registered under the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007 and its commercial operations
commenced on 13th December 1963. Singer
(Sri Lanka) PLC owns 87.7% of its equity
shares.

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

Regnis (Lanka) PLC was incorporated on
8th October 1987 under the Companies
Act No. 17 of 1982 and re-registered under
the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and its
commercial operations commenced on 8th
October 1987. Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC owns
58.3% of its equity shares.

Reality Lanka Limited

Reality Lanka Limited was incorporated on
29th September 2006 under the Companies

Act No. 17 of 1982 and its commercial
operations commenced on 29th September
2006. Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC directly, and
indirectly owns 92.2% of its equity shares.

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited

Regnis Appliance (Private) Limited, was
incorporated on 18th January 2010 under
the Companies Act No 07 of 2007 and
commenced its commercial operations on 1st
October 2010. Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC owns
58.3% of its equity shares

Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited

Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited was
incorporated on 16th May 2014 under

the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and its
commercial operations commenced on
8th July 2014. Singer Digital Media (Private)
Limited is a fully-own Subsidiary.

The Board of Directors of Singer (Sri Lanka)
PLC passed a circular resolution on the
09th of December 2022 to amalgamate its
fully owned subsidiary, Singer Digital Media
(Private) Ltd with Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
(The Company). In accordance with Section
244(i)a) of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007,
Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited was
amalgamated with Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC
on the 30th of January 2023, confirmation
of which was received via the Certificate of
Amalgamation issued by the Registrar of
Companies dated 30th January 2023

Singer Business School (Private) Limited

A fully-owned Subsidiary, Singer Business
School (Private) Limited was incorporated on
5th May 2015 under the Companies Act No.
07 of 2007 and its commercial operations
commenced on 5th May 2015.

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited was
incorporated on 4th January 2018 under the
Companies Act No.7 of 2007.

Associates (Equity Accounted Investees)

Associate companies of the Group,
whose results have been included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements are:

Telshan Network (Private) Limited

All of the above companies are incorporated
in Sri Lanka.



1.1.3 Principal Activities and Nature of
Operations

The Company

The Company is engaged in Retail and
Wholesale Marketing, Financing, Assembling
and Manufacturing and Financial Services.
The Company markets Consumer Electronics,
Home Appliances, Mobile Phones, Personal
Computers, Laptops, Furniture, Domestic
and Industrial Sewing Machines, Agricultural
Equipment, and provides Financing through
Hire Purchase. In addition, the Company
manufactures and sells Furniture, Water
Pumps and assembles and sells Two Wheel
Tractors. Company acts as a Bill Collection
Agent for Banks on Credit Cards, all Mobile
service providers for Re-load and Bills,
National Water Supply and Drainage Board,
Ceylon Electricity Board, Lanka Electricity
Company Limited, Sri Lanka Telecom and few
others. In addition, performing Top-ups and
Counter Withdrawals with Dialog e-Zcash and
Mobitel m Cash wallets. With Value addition
has started accepting premiums for Life
Insurance, General Insurance and collections
of Rentals from AIA Insurance Lanka Limited,
SLIC, Union Assurance, MBSL, Allianz,
Janashakthi, Ceylinco, Cooperative, HNB
Assurance PLC and Softlogic PLC. Further
extended to leading Finance Companies
such as Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC, Central
Finance PLC and CDB Bank PLC. On Cash
disbursements also act as a Sub-Agent for
Western Union and Nations Remittance
portfolio.

Subsidiary
Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

The principal activities of the Company
consist of finance leasing, hire purchase
financing, gold loan, financing of consumer
durables under loan scheme and granting
loans, factoring, authorised foreign currency
dealer and mobilising fixed deposits and
savings.

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC (“Company”),

regulated under the Finance Business Act No.

42 of 2011, was incorporated on 19th April
2004 as a Public Limited Liability Company
domiciled in Sri Lanka under the provisions
of the Companies Act No. 17 of 1982 and
re-registered under the Companies Act No. 7
of 2007.

Singer Industries (Ceylon) PLC

The principal activities of the Company
are assembling sewing machines and
manufacturing of cabinets and stands for
sewing machines.

Regnis (Lanka) PLC

The principal activities of the Company are
manufacturing of Refrigerators and Bottle
Coolers.

Reality Lanka Limited

The principal activities of the Company is
renting of company properties.

Regnis Appliances (Private) Limited

Principal activities of Regnis Appliances
(Private) Limited are manufacturing and
assembling of Washing Machines, producing
plastic components for Refrigerators and
Plastic Chairs.

Singer Digital Media (Private) Limited
The principal activity of the Company is
marketing mobile phones.

Singer Business School (Private) Limited
The principal activity of the Company is
providing of educational services.

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited

Domus Lanka (Private) Limited was
incorporated on 4th January 2018 (formally
known as D.V.D. Lanka (Private) Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is
carrying on the business of designing,
manufacturing and trading furniture.
However no commercial operations have
been commenced as of the reporting period.

1.1.4 Parent Enterprise

The Company's ultimate Parent undertaking is
Hayleys PLC.

1.1.5 Number of Employees

The number of employees of the Group at
the end of the year 31st March 2023 was
2,986 (2022 -3,154), Company - 1,618
(2022 -1,927).
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1.2 Basis of Accounting
1.2.1 Statement of Compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Group and the separate Financial Statements
of the Group have been prepared and
presented in accordance with the Sri Lanka
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
to as SLFRSs / LKASs) issued by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA

Sri Lanka) and the requirements of the
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. The related
changes to significant accounting policies are
described in note 2.13.

Statement of Alternative Treatment (SoAT )
on Surcharge Tax

The Government of Sri Lanka in its Budget
for 2022 proposed a One-Time Tax, referred
to as a Surcharge Tax, at the rate of 25%

to be imposed on any company that has
earned a Taxable Income in excess of LKR
Rs. 2,000 million for the Year of Assessment
2020/2021. The Tax is imposed by the
Surcharge Tax Act No. 14 of 2022 which

was passed by the Parliament of Sri Lanka
on 7th April 2022. As the Act was certified
by the Speaker of Parliament after the
financial reporting date, no liability had been
recognized in FY 2021/2022 on account of
the oneoff Surcharge Tax as the law had not
been enacted as at 31 March 2022.

The total Surcharge Tax liability has been
recognized in the financial statements of FY
2022/2023 for the Group and the Company
respectively as an adjustment to the 1st April
2021 retained earnings in the statement of
Changes in Equity as per the Statement of
Alternative Treatment (SoAT) issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri
Lanka On 19th April 2022.

1.2.2 Responsibility for Financial
Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible

for preparation and presentation of the
Financial Statements of the Company as

per the provisions of the Companies Act

No. 07 of 2007 and Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards. The Directors’ responsibility over
Financial Statements is set out in detail in the
Statement of Directors' Responsibility.



142 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.2.3 Approval of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements for the year ended
371st March 2023 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors on 11th May 2023

1.2.4 Basis of Measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have
been prepared under the Historical Cost
convention except for,

Financial instruments reflected as fair value
through profit or loss which are measured at
fair value

Financial instruments designated as fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCl)
which are measured at fair value

Items of Property, Plant and Equipment,
which are measured at fair value

Defined Benefit Plans which are measured
at present value of the Retirement Benefit
Obligations

Where appropriate, specific policies are
explained in the succeeding notes

No adjustments have been made for
inflationary factors in the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1.2.5 Functional and Presentation
Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in
Sri Lankan Rupees which is the functional

currency of the Company and its Subsidiaries.

1.2.6 Rounding

The amounts in the Financial Statements
have been rounded-off to the nearest
rupees except where otherwise indicated
as permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting
Standard - LKAS 1 on “Presentation of
Financial Statements” (LKAS 1)

1.2.7 Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of Financial Statements

in conformity with SLFRS/LKAS's requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses.

Judgements and estimates are based on
historical experience and other factors,
including expectations that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Hence
actual experience and results may differ from
these judgements and estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised if
the revision affects only that period and any
future periods.

Information about significant areas

of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognized in the financial
statements is included in the following notes:

+  Note 11 - Valuation of Land and
Building,
The Group measures the freehold land
and Building(classified as property,
plant and equipment) at revalued
amounts, with changes in fair value being
recognised in OCI. The freehold lands
and Buildings were valued by reference
to transactions involving properties of
a similar nature, location and condition.
In addition, the Group carries its
investment properties at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recognised
in the profit or loss. For investment
properties, valuation methodologies
such as market approach, and income
approach (the discounted cash flow
(DCF) model) for properties lacked
comparable market data were used.

The Group engaged a valuation specialist
to assess fair values as at 31 March 2022
for the freehold lands / Buildings and

as at 31 March 2022 for the investment
properties.

. Note 16.1 - Provision for Inventories

The Group has applied judgment in
the determination of impairment in
relation to inventories that are slow
moving or obsolete. The Group's
impairment assessment in relation

to such inventories take into account
factors such as the ageing of items of
inventories, dates for possible expiry

and expectations in relation to how

the inventories will be utilised or

sold. Judgment has also been applied

by management in determining net
realisable value of inventories (NRV). The
estimates and judgements applied in

the determination of NRV are influenced
by expectations of sales relating to
identified goods historically realised sales
prices.

Note 18 /36 - Impairment of Trade
and other receivables / Financial
Instruments

The Group uses a provision matrix

to calculate ECLs for loans and trade
receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating).
The provision matrix is initially based

on the Group's historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking
information.

For instance, if forecast economic
conditions are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to

an increased number of defaults in the
relevant sectors, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed
the assessment of the correlation
between historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions

and ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group's historical

credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group's loans and
trade receivables are disclosed in Note
18.3 to the Financial Statements

Note 9/ 26- Current Tax and Deferred
Tax assets and Liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses to the extent that it



is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets

that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits, together with future tax
planning strategies. The Group has Rs.
Nil (2022: Rs. 34 million) of tax losses
carried forward. These losses relate to
subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable
income elsewhere in the Group. The
subsidiaries neither have any taxable
temporary difference nor any tax
planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of
these losses as deferred tax assets.

Note 27 - Measurement of Employee
Benefit Obligations

The present value of the employee
benefit obligations is determined

using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from

actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases,
mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date. The
parameter most subject to change is
the discount rate. In determining the
appropriate discount rate, management
considers the interest rates of
government bonds, and extrapolated

as needed along the yield curve to
correspond with the expected term

of the defined benefit obligation. The
mortality rate is based on publicly
available mortality tables. Those
mortality tables tend to change only at
intervals in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases are
based on expected future inflation rates.
Further details about employee benefit
obligation are provided in Note 27 to the
Financial Statements.

*  Note 29.1 Warranty Provisions

. Note 37 Commitments and
Contingencies

1.2.8 Measurement of Fair Value

The Group measures financial instruments
such as investments which are designated

as fair value through other comprehensive
income (OCl) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value at each
reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell

the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

In the principal market for the asset or
liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-
financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that
are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value
is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to
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the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised
in the Financial Statements at fair value on

a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures,the
Group has determined classes of assets

and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above. Fair value
related disclosures for financial instruments
and non-financial assets that are measured
at fair value or where fair values are disclosed
are summarised in the following notes:

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant
estimates and assumptions - Note 36

Quantitative disclosures of fair value
measurement hierarchy - Note 36

Property (Land and Building) under
revaluation model - Note 11

Financial instruments (including those carried
at amortised cost) - Note 36

1.2.9 Materiality and Aggregation

Each material class of similar items is
presented separately in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Items of a dissimilar
nature or function are presented separately
unless they are immaterial as permitted by
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 1
on “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
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1.2.10 Offsetting

Assets and liabilities or income and expenses,
are not offset unless required or permitted
by Sri Lanka Accounting Standards

1.2.11 Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment

of the Group's ability to continue as a

going concern and is satisfied that it has

the resources to continue in business for

the foreseeable future. The assessment
includes the existing and anticipated effects
of the volatile economic conditions on the
significant assumptions that are sensitive or
susceptible to change or are inconsistent with
historical trends.

In determining the basis of preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023, based on available information,
the management has assessed the prevailing
uncertain and Volatile macro-economic
environment and its impact on the Group
companies and the appropriateness of the
use of the going concern basis.

The Group is expected to encounter
challenges such as the continuous
devaluation of the rupee, import restrictions,
rise in general inflation, depleting of foreign
currency reserves, shortage of essential
supplies, increase in policy rates and the
resultant pressure on disposable income
level.

Accordingly, the Group is expected to
encounter numerous challenges in the form
of subdued consumer demand and greater
credit risk due to the potential loss of income
of the customer base.

Towards, mitigating this risk, the Group
adopted strict cost conservation methods,
fast track local sourcing and secured funding
lines to manage possible liquidity issues.
Further, the Group treasury is deeply
analysing the foreign exchange market
and working closely with relevant financial
institutions and the parent company, to
overcome dollar liquidity challenges and
take timely price revisions to mitigate the
exposure of future rupee devaluation.

Based on these proactive analyses and our
operating model and financial strength,
Group is confident that we are well placed.
Group envisages no impact on the Group
business continuity and expects to manage
the above challenges effectively.

Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Financial Statements continue to be prepared
on the going concern basis.

1.2.12 Comparative Information

Comparative information including
quantitative, narrative and descriptive
information as relevant is disclosed in
respect of previous period in the Financial
Statements. The presentation and
classification of the Financial Statements
in the previous year are amended, where
relevant for better presentation and to be
comparable with those of the current year

In addition, the Group presents an
additional statement of financial position

at the beginning of the preceding period
when there is a retrospective application

of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement, or a reclassification of items in
financial statements.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Accounting policies set out below have been
applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements.

Other significant accounting policies not
covered with individual notes.

Following accounting policies, which have
been applied consistently by the Group, are
considered to be significant but not covered
in any other sections

Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities
in statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended
to be sold or consumed in the normal
operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted
from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current
A liability is current when it is:

e Itis expected to be settled in the normal
operating cycle

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of
trading

e [tis due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period, or

e Thereis no unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-
current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities

2.1 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
encompass the Company, its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”)

Subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 13 to the
Financial Statements.

2.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities controlled

by the Group. Control is achieved when

the Group is exposed, or rights to variable
returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if,
and only if, the Group has:




Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee

The ability to use its power over the investee
to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a
majority of voting rights results in control.

To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has the power over an
investee, including:

e The contractual arrangement(s) with the
other vote holders of the investee.

e Rights arising from other contractual
arrangements

e The Group's voting rights and potential
voting right.

The Group re-assesses whether or

not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements from the date the Group
gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or Loss and each component of Other
Comprehensive Income are attributed to
equity holders of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

2.1.2 Non-Controlling Interests (NCl)

NCl are measured at their proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the acquisition date.

Changes in the Group's interestin a
Subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

2.1.3 Loss of Control

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary,

it derecognises the related assets (including
goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest
and other components of equity while any
resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at
fair value.

2.1.4 Interest in Equity Accounted Investees

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The considerations made in determining
significant influence or joint control are
similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries. The Group's
investments in its associates are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment

in an associate is initially recognised at cost.
The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's
share of net assets of the associate since

the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the
associate is included in the carrying amount
of the investment and is not tested for
impairment separately.

The Statement of Profit or Loss reflects the
Group's share of the results of operations
of the associate. Any change in Other
Comprehensive Income of those investees
is presented as part of the Group's Other
Comprehensive Income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the Statement of Changes in
Equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and
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the associate are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit
or loss of an associate is shown on the face
of the Statement of Profit or Loss outside
operating profit and represents profit or loss
after tax and non-controlling interests in the
subsidiaries of the associate.

The Financial Statements of the associate are
prepared for the same reporting period as
the Group. When necessary, adjustments
are made to bring the accounting policies in
line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the
Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise an impairment loss on its
investment in its associate . At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment

in the associate is impaired. If there is such
evidence, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and

its carrying value, and then recognises the
loss within ‘Share of profit or loss of equity
accounted investees' in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the
associate over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of

the associate upon loss of significant
influence the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

2.1.5 Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of

an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, which is
measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the
non- controlling interests in the acquiree at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred and
included in administrative expenses.
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The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities
and assets include an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The acquired
process is considered substantive if it is
critical to the ability to continue producing
outputs, and the inputs acquired include

an organised workforce with the necessary
skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
that process or it significantly contributes

to the ability to continue producing outputs
and is considered unique or scarce or cannot
be replaced without significant cost, effort,

or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification

and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the acquirer will be recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equity
is not re-measured and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability that is a financial instrument
and within the scope of SLFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, is measured at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of Profit or Loss in accordance
with SLFRS 9. Other contingent consideration
that is not within the scope of SLFRS 9 is
measured at fair value at each reporting date
with changes in fair value recognised in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost

(being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests)

and any previous interest held over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-
assesses whether it has correctly identified all
of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities
assumed and reviews the procedures used

to measure the amounts to be recognised

at the acquisition date. If the reassessment
still results in an excess of the fair value

of net assets acquired over the aggregate
consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash- generating unit (CGU) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of,
the goodwill associated with the disposed
operation is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
this circumstance is measured based on the
relative values of the disposed operation
and the portion of the cash- generating unit
retained.

2.1.6 Acquisition of ownership without
Changes of control

The acquisition of an additional ownership
interest in a subsidiary without a change

of control is accounted for as an equity
transaction in accordance with SLFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements. Any
excess or deficit of consideration paid over
the carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests is recognised in equity of the parent
in transactions where the non-controlling
interests are acquired or sold without loss of
control. The Group has elected to recognise
this effect in retained earnings. With respect
to the subsidiary to which these non-
controlling interests relate, there were no
accumulated components recognised in OCI.
If there had been such components, those
would have been reallocated within equity of
the parent

2.1.7 Transactions Eliminated on
Consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expenses arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated

in preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with equity accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to

the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

2.1.8 Amalgamation of business with a
common control combination

In its consolidated financial statements the
aquirer is permitted, but not required to
re-presents its comparatives and adjust its
current reporting period before the date of
the transaction as if the combination had
occurred before strat of the earliest period
presented.

As per the company's accounting policies,
amalgamation of two entities under common
control is accounted by adding assets and
liabilities as at the amalgamated date to the
controlling entity and directly recognizing
the excess in Statement of Changes in Equity
as amalgamated reserve. No restatement

is done to the comparative financials and
controlling entity's current year statements
of financial position will carry both entities
assets and liabilities. The Consolidated
Financial performance and financial position
did not require restatement given that

the Group structure existed even prior to
amalgamation.

2.2 Foreign Currency
2.2.1 Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially
recorded by the Group's entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rate of exchange at
the reporting date.

Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised
in Statement of Profit or Loss. Tax charges
and credit attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.



Non-monetary assets and liabilities which
are measured in terms of historical cost

in a foreign currency are translated using
exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or
profit or loss are also recognised in OCl or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to
use on initial recognition of the related

asset, expense or income (or part of it) on
the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction

is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group applies the requirements of
LKAS 16 on 'Property Plant and Equipment’
in accounting for its owned assets which
are held for and use in the provision of the
services or for administration purpose and
are expected to be used for more than one
year.

2.3.1 Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is recognised
if it is probable that future economic benefit
associated with the assets will flow to the
Group and cost of the asset can be reliably
measured.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are
measured at cost/fair value, less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

If a significant part of an item of Property,
Plant and Equipment has different useful
lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of Property, Plant
and Equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal

of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment
is recognised in profit or loss.

(a) Cost Model

The Group applies the cost model to
Property, Plant and Equipment except for
freehold land and buildings.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self- constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labour, any
other costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to a working condition for its
intended use, and includes the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located,
and borrowing costs on qualifying assets.
Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as a part of that equipment.

When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives.

(b) Revaluation Model

Revaluation of Free hold land and building is
done with sufficient frequency to ensure that
the fair value of the land / Building does not
differ materially from its carrying amount,
and is undertaken by professionally qualified
valuers.

Any revaluation surplus is recorded in Other
Comprehensive Income and credited to the
asset revaluation reserve in equity. However,
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
deficit of the same asset previously
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
the increase is recognised in the Statement
of Profit or Loss. A revaluation deficit is
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
except to the extent that it offsets an existing
surplus on the same asset recognised in the
asset revaluation reserve. Upon disposal, any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular
asset being sold is transferred to retained
earnings

(c) Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a component of an
item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic
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benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised in accordance with the
derecognition policy given below.

The costs of the repair and maintenance

of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
as incurred.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost
of items of Property, Plant and Equipment
less their estimated residual values using the
straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised in
profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Over 38 to 50
years

Freehold Buildings

Motor Vehicles Over 5 to 7 years

Furniture and
Equipment

Over 10 years

Plant and Machinery

Over 10 years

EDP Equipment

Over 5 to 10 years

Improvement on

Over 4 to 10 years

Leasehold Premises

Shop Furniture and
Equipment

Over 7 years

EDP Equipment -
Computer Servers

Over 7 years

Depreciation of an asset commences when
the asset is available for use and ceases at
the earlier of the date the asset is classified
as held-for-sale and the date that the asset is
derecognised.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted if appropriate.

(e) Derecognition

The carrying amount of an item of property,
plant and equipment is derecognised on
disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. Any gains and
losses on derecognition are recognised
(calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) in the Statement of profit or
Loss. Gains are not classified as Revenue.
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2.3.2 Intangible Assets
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is recognised if it is
probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably in accordance with
LKAS 38 - on “Intangible Assets”.

The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.

The costs of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value as
at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Internally
generated intangibles, excluding capitalised
development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in the
Statement of Profit or Loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incurred.

(b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only
when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset

to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands are recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.

(c) Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is
an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset
with finite useful lives are reviewed at least

at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset is considered
to modify the amortisation period or method,
as appropriate, and are treated as changes

in accounting estimates. The amortization
expense on intangible assets with finite

lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit
or Loss in the expense category that is
consistent with the function of the intangible

assets. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are not amortised, but are tested
for impairment annually, either individually
or at the cash generating unit level. The
assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite
life continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets
with finite lives are as follows:

The Class of Intangible Assets  Useful
Life
Computer Software 10 years
Web site Development 10 years
Other Intangible Assets 5 years

Externally Acquired

(d) Derecognition

Intangible assets are de-recognised on
disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. Gains or losses
arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss
when the asset is derecognised.

(e) Research and development

Research costs are expensed as incurred.
Development expenditures on an individual
project are recognised as an intangible asset
when the Group can demonstrate:

*  The technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale

e Itsintention to complete and its ability
and intention to use or sell the asset

*  How the asset will generate future
economic benefits

*  The availability of resources to complete
the asset

e The ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the
development expenditure as an asset, the
asset is carried at cost less any accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of the asset begins
when development is complete and the
asset is available for use. It is amortised
over the period of expected future benefit.
Amortisation is recorded in cost of sales.
During the period of development, the asset
is tested for impairment annually.

(f) Trade mark

Trade marks purchased, being determined

to have an indefinite useful life, are reviewed
for impairment, annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired

(g) Brand name

Brands acquired as part of a business
combination, are capitalised if the Brand
meets the definition of an intangible asset
and the recognition criteria are satisfied.
Brand Names, being determined to have

an indefinite useful life, are reviewed for
impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired

(h) Other Intangible assets.

Other intangible assets which are acquired
by the Group, with finite useful lives, are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition ERP systems are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses

2.4 Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Assets
(i) Recognition and initial measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that
gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Receivables and debt securities issued are
initially recognized when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognized when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not
at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),



transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

(i) Classification and subsequent
measurement of financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost; fair
value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) - debt investment; fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) - equity
investment; or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets, in which case

all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised
cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

e itis held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

* its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group financial assets classified and
measured at amortized cost are limited to its
Non Current financial Assets - Investments
in debt instruments ,other receivables,

short term investments and cash and cash
equivalent.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

e itis held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

* its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group has not designated any debt
instruments as FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in OCI.
This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial
recognition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured

at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.

The Group has not designated any equity
investments as FVTPL.

e Financial assets - Business model
assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the
objective of the business model in which

a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information
considered includes:

* the stated policies and objectives for
the portfolio and the operation of
those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses
on earning contractual interest income,
maintaining a particular interest rate
profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any
related liabilities or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through
the sale of the assets;

*  how the performance of the portfolio is
evaluated and reported to the Group's
management;

*  the risks that affect the performance of
the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;
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e how managers of the business
are compensated - e.g. whether
compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual
cash flows collected; and

* the frequency, volume and timing
of sales of financial assets in prior
periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties
in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for
this purpose, consistent with the Group's
continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or
are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured
at FVTPL

Financial assets -Assessment whether
contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment,
‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’
is defined as consideration for the time value
of money and for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows
such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

e contingent events that would change the
amount or timing of cash flows;

e terms that may adjust the contractual
coupon rate, including variable-rate
features;

*  prepayment and extension features; and

e terms that limit the Group's claim to cash
flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features).
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A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion
if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation
for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount
or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at
an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment
feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net
gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are never
reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group has got trade and other receivables, loans due from related parties and amounts
due from related parties as financial assets at amortised cost.

(b) Financial Liabilities

Classification, subsequent measurement and gain and losses Financial liabilities are classified as
measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement
of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group
also derecognises a financial liability when its
terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different,

in which case a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognised at fair
value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid
(including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group has got trade and other payables,
Amounts due to related parties, other
financial liabilities and interest-bearing
borrowings as financial liabilities at amortised
cost.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously

2.4.1 Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities

The Group initially recognises debt securities
issued and subordinated liabilities on the
date that they are originated. All other
liabilities are recognised initially on the trade
date at which the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial
liabilities into other financial liabilities
category. Such financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise interest-
bearing borrowings, bank overdrafts, amount
due to related parties, security deposits,
trade and other payables and other financial
liabilities due to customers.



Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the Statement of Cash Flows.

2.4.2 Derecognition of Financial Liability

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. Financial
assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the Statement of
Financial Position when, and only when, the
Group has a legal right to offset the amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis

or to realise the asset or settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.4.3 Derivative financial instruments

The Group holds derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency
and interest rate risk exposures. Embedded
derivatives are separated from the host
contract and accounted for separately if
certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value;
any directly attributable transaction costs

are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are generally recognised in profit or
loss.

2.4.4 Stated Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

2.4.5 Impairment
(a) Financial Assets

The Group except for Singer (Finance) PLC
recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

¢ financial assets measured at amortised
cost;

e debtinvestments measured at amortized
cost

e equity investments measured at FVOCI

e The Group measures loss allowances at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except
for the following, which are measured at
12-month ECLs:

* debt securities that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date;
and

e other debt securities and bank balances
for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables is
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when:

*  the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date
(or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

. Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of

all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the entity
in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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ECLs are discounted at the effective
interest rate of the financial asset.

e Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether financial assets carried
at amortised cost and equity investments
at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or
more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following
observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as a default in
payments

e therestructuring of a loan or advance
by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

e itis probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

*  the disappearance of an active market
tor a security because of financial
difficulties.

e Presentation of allowance for ECL in the
statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss
allowance is charged to profit or loss and is
recognised in OCI.

As at the year end the Group did not have
assets categorised as FVOCI.

e Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. For individual customers, the Group
has a policy of writing off the gross carrying
amount based on historical experience of
recoveries of similar assets. For corporate
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customers, the Group individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and
amount of write-off based on whether there
is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order

to comply with the Group's procedures to
recovery of amounts due.

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECL
on the following financial instruments that are
not measured at FVTPL:

¢ financial assets that are debt
instruments;

e lease and loan receivables;
e financial guarantee contracts issued; and
e loan commitments issued.

No impairment loss is recognized on equity
investments.

The Group measures loss allowances at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following, for which they are measured as
12-month ECL:

e debtinvestment securities that are
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date; and

e other financial instruments (other than
lease receivables) on which credit risk
has not increased significantly since their
initial recognition.

Loss allowances for lease receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a debt investment
security to have low credit risk when its
credit risk rating is equivalent to the globally
understood definition of ‘investment grade’.
The Group does not apply the low credit risk
exemption to any other financial instruments.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that
result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. Financial
instruments for which a 12-month ECL

is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1
financial instruments’.

Life-time ECL are the ECL that result

from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments for which a lifetime
ECL is recognised but which are not credit-
impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 financial
instruments’.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. They are measured as follows:

e financial assets that are not credit-
impaired at the reporting date: as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows
due to the entity in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive);

» financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date: as the difference
between the gross carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future
cash flows;

e undrawn loan commitments: as the
present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group if the commitment is drawn
down and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive;

» -financial guarantee contracts: the
expected payments to reimburse the
holder less any amounts that the Group
expects to recover.

The key inputs used for measurement of
ECL is likely to be the term structures of the
following variables:

Probability of Default (PD)

PD estimates are estimates at a certain
date, which are calculated based on
statistical models, and assessed using
various categories based on homogeneous
characteristics of exposures. These statistical
models are based on internally compiled
data comprising both quantitative and
qualitative factors. The Group forecast PD
by incorporating forward looking economic
variables (unemployment, GDP growth,
inflation, interest rate and using lag effect of
these variables).

Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if
there is a default. The Group estimates
LGD parameters based on the history of
recovery rates of claims against defaulted
counterparties.

Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD represents the expected exposure in
the event of a default. The Group derives
the EAD from the current exposure to the
counterparty and potential changes to the
current amount allowed under the contract
including amortisation. The EAD of a financial
asset is its gross carrying amount.

The Group has used these parameters from
internally-developed statistical models using
historical data. All inputs were adjusted to
reflect forward-looking information and
future economic scenarios.

Impairment losses and releases are
accounted for and disclosed separately
from modification losses or gains that are
accounted for as an adjustment of the
financial asset's gross carrying value.

The mechanics of the ECL method are
summarized below:

e Stage 1:The 12 month ECL is calculated
as the portion of LTECLs that represent
the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date. The Group calculates
the12month ECL allowance based on
the expectation of a default occurring in
the 12 months following the reporting
date. These expected 12-month default
probabilities are applied to a forecast
EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD
and discounted by an approximation to
the original EIR.

e Stage 2:When aloan has shown a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Group records an
allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics
are similar to those explained above,
including the use of multiple scenarios,
but PDs and LGDs are estimated over
the lifetime of the instrument. The
expected cash shortfalls are discounted
by an approximation to the original EIR.



e Stage 3: For loans considered credit-
impaired the Group recognises the
lifetime expected credit losses. The
method is similar to that of Stage 2
assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Restructured Financial Assets

If the terms of a financial asset are
renegotiated or modified or an existing
financial asset is replaced with a new one
due to financial difficulties of the borrower,
then an assessment is made of whether the
financial asset should be derecognised and
ECL are measured as follows.

e Ifthe expected restructuring will not
result in derecognition of the existing
asset, then the expected cash flows
arising from the modified financial asset
are included in calculating the cash
shortfalls from the existing asset.

e Ifthe expected restructuring will result
in derecognition of the existing asset,
then the expected fair value of the new
asset is treated as the final cash flow
from the existing financial asset at the
time of its derecognition. This amount is
included in calculating the cash shortfalls
from the existing financial asset that are
discounted from the expected date of
derecognition to the reporting date using
the original effective interest rate of the
existing financial asset

Credit-Impaired Financial Assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost and debt financial assets carried at
FVOCI, and finance lease receivables are
credit-impaired (referred to as ‘Stage 3
financial assets’). A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired’ when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset

is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

e significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

e abreach of contract such as a default or
past due event;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance
by the Group on terms that the Group
would not consider otherwise;

e itis becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial re-organisation; or

* the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties.

Aloan that has been renegotiated due to

a deterioration in the borrower’s condition

is usually considered to be credit-impaired
unless there is evidence that the risk of not
receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators
of impairment. In addition, a retail loan that is
overdue for 180 days or more is considered
credit-impaired even when the regulatory
definition of default is different.

In making an assessment of whether an
investment in sovereign debt is credit-
impaired, the Group considers the following
factors.

¢ The market's assessment of
creditworthiness as reflected in the bond
yields.

* Therating agencies’ assessments of
creditworthiness.

*  The country's ability to access the capital
markets for new debt issuance.

*  The probability of debt being
restructured, resulting in holders
suffering losses through voluntary or
mandatory debt forgiveness .

e Theinternational support mechanisms in
place to provide the necessary support
as 'lender of last resort' to that country,
as well as the intention, reflected in
public statements, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This
includes an assessment of the depth of
those mechanisms and, irrespective of
the political intent, whether there is the
capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the
statement of financial position.

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the
statement of financial position as follows:

» financial assets measured at amortised
cost as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;
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¢ |oan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision;

e where a financial instrument includes
both a drawn and an undrawn
component, and the Group cannot
identify the ECL on the loan commitment
component separately from those
on the drawn component: the Group
presents a combined loss allowance
for both components. The combined
amount is presented as a deduction
from the gross carrying amount of the
drawn component. Any excess of the
loss allowance over the gross amount of
the drawn component is presented as a
provision; and

e debtinstruments measured at FVOCI.-
no loss allowance is recognised in the
statement of financial position because
the carrying amount of these assets
is their fair value. However, the loss
allowance is disclosed and is recognised
in the fair value reserve.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off
(either partially or in full) when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the borrower does
not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. This
assessment is carried out at the individual
asset level. Recoveries of amounts previously
written off are included in ‘impairment losses
on financial instruments’ in the statement of
profit or loss and OCI.

Financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Group's procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

2.4.5.1
Assets

Impairment of Non-Financial

The carrying amount of the Group's non-
financial assets other than inventories and
deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there
is an indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists or when annual impairment
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testing for an asset is required, then the
asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash flows
of other assets or other cash-generating

units (CGU). Goodwill arising from business
combination is allocated to CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value

in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining fair value, less
costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model
is used.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit and loss. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

2.4.6 Leases

2.4.6.1 Leases

(a) Group as a Lessee
Definition of a Lease

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease

if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group uses the definition of a lease in SLFRS
16 which is applicable to leases entered after
1st April 2019 onward

i. As a Lessee

At commencement or on modification of a
contract that contains a lease component,
the Group allocates the consideration in

the contract to each lease component on
the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the
Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group recognises a right-of-use

asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently
depreciated using the straight-line method
from the commencement date to the end

of the lease term, unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Group will exercise a purchase option. In that
case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated
over the useful life of the underlying asset,
which is determined on the same basis as
those of property and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at

the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate.

The Group determines its incremental
borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates
from Group's existing financing sources
and makes certain adjustments to reflect
the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the
measurement of the lease liability comprise
the following:

e Fixed payments, including in-substance
fixed payments;

e Variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e Amounts expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee; and

*  The exercise price under a purchase
option that the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early
termination of a lease unless the Group
is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. It

is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee,
if the Group changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option or if there is a revised
in-substance fixed lease payment

When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property and lease liabilities as a separate
caption in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases of low-value assets and short-term
leases, including IT equipment. The Group
recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term



ii. As a Lessor

At inception or on modification of a contract
that contains a lease component, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of their
relative stand-alone prices.

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

To classify each lease, the Group makes an
overall assessment of whether the lease
transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. If this is the case, then the
lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an
operating lease. As part of this assessment,
the Group considers certain indicators such
as whether the lease is for the major part of
the economic life of the asset.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,

it accounts for its interests in the head lease
and the sub-lease separately. It assesses
the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease, not with reference to
the underlying asset. If a head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease

If an arrangement contains lease and non-
lease components, then the Group applies
SLFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in the
contract

The Group applies the derecognition

and impairment requirements in SLFRS

9 to the net investment in the lease . The
Group further regularly reviews estimated
unguaranteed residual values used in
calculating the gross investment in the lease

The Group recognises lease payments
received under operating leases as income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term as
part of ‘other revenue’

Generally, the accounting policies applicable
to the Group as a lessor in the comparative
period were not different from SLFRS 16
except for the classification of the sub-lease
entered into during current reporting period
that resulted in a finance lease classification.

2.4.6.2 Finance Leases
(a) Finance Leases - Group as a Lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially all
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of
the leased item to the Group, are capitalised
at the commencement of the lease at the
fair value of the leased property or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and reduction of
the lease liability so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

A leased asset is depreciated over the
useful life of the asset. However, if there is
no reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the
asset and the lease term.

b) Finance Leases - Group as a Lessor

When the Group is the lessor under the
finance leases the amounts due under the
finance leases, after deduction of unearned
charges, are included in “lease rentals
receivables”, as appropriate. The finance
income receivable is recognised in “interest
income” over the periods of the leases so as
to give a constant rate of return on the net
investment in the leases

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value, after making
due allowances for obsolete and slow-
moving items. Net realisable value (NRV) is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated cost
of completion and selling expenses. Group
assess the NRV by giving consideration to
future demand and condition of inventory
and make adjustments to the value by making
required provisions.
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The cost of each category of inventory is
determined on the following basis:

At actual cost on first-in
first-out basis

Raw Materials

Finished Weighted average cost

Goods

(Excluding

Factory)

Finished At the cost of direct

Goods and materials, direct labour

Work-in- and an appropriate

Progress at proportion of fixed

Piliyandala production overheads,

Factory based on normal
operating capacity

Goods-in- At actual cost

Transit

Supplies and Weighted average cost

Parts

Repossessed 75% of its weighted

Goods average cost

2.6 Provisions

A provision is recognised in the Statement
of Financial Position when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount

of the provision can be measured reliably

in accordance with LKAS 37 - “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”. The amount recognised is the best
estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting
date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation at
the date. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is
determined based on the present value of
those cash flows.

2.6.1 Provisions for Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold.
The provision is based on historical warranty
data and a weighing of all possible outcomes
against their associated probabilities.
Provision is utilised to settle the actual claims
made by the customers.
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2.6.2 Loyalty points programme

The Group has loyalty point programmes
which allows customers to accumulate points
that can be redeemed against subsequent
purchases. The loyalty points give rise to a
separate performance obligation as they
provide a material right to the customer. A
portion of the transaction price is allocated
to the loyalty points awarded to customers
based on relative stand-alone selling price
and recognised as a contract liability until the
points are redeemed. Revenue is recognised
upon redemption of products by the
customer.

When estimating the stand-alone selling price
of the loyalty points, the Group considers

the likelihood that the customer will redeem
the points. The Group updates its estimates
of the points that will be redeemed on a
quarterly basis and any adjustments to the
contract liability balance are charged against
revenue

2.6.3 Dividend Payables

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised
as a liability and deducted from equity when
they are recommended and declared by the
Board of Directors

2.6.4 Deposits due to Customers

These include term deposits and certificates
of deposits of Singer Finance(Lanka ) PLC.

Subsequent to initial recognition, deposits
are measured at their amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except where
the Group designates liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Interest paid / payable
on these deposits recognised in profit or loss

2.6.5 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability recognised is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it
is measured at the higher of the amount
that would be recognised in accordance
with the requirements for provisions above
or the amount initially recognised less
(when appropriate) cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the
requirements for revenue recognition.

2.7 Employee Benefits
2.7.1 Defined Benefit Plan

The Group net obligation in respect of
defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefits that
employees have earned in current and prior
periods discounting that amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation
is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method.
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in OCI. The
Group determines the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability for the
period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then -
net defined liability, taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of contributions
and benefit payments. Net interest expense
and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group recognized the gains and losses on
the settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the settlement occurs. When the benefits

of the plan are changed or when a planis
curtailed the resulting change in benefit that
relates to post service or the gain or the loss
on curtailment is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

The liability is not externally funded.

2.7.2 Defined Contribution

Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund/Mercantile
Services Provident Society and Employees’
Trust Fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Employees
are eligible for contributions to Employees’
Provident Fund/Mercantile Services Provident
Society and Employees’ Trust Fund in line
with the respective statutes and regulations.
The Group contributes 12% and 3% of gross
emoluments of employees to the Employees’
Provident Fund, Mercantile Services Provident
Society and the Employees’ Trust Fund,
respectively and is recognised as an expense
in profit and loss in the periods during which
services are rendered by employees.

2.7.3 Short-Term Benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations
are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service

is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid under short-
term cash bonus if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past services provided
by the employee and the obligation can be
measured reliably.

2.8 Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income

2.8.1 Revenue Recognition

Performance obligations and revenue
recognition policies

The Group/Company recognises revenue
from contracts with customers when control
of the goods or services is transferred to

the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Group is to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.
Determining the timing of the transfer of
control of goods or services, at a point in time
or over time, requires judgements taking into
consideration the nature of goods or services
that Group/Company offers.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables.
Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on the stand-alone

selling prices. Where these are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on
expected cost-plus margin.

The Group/Company disaggregate its revenue
into following categories based on the nature,
amount, timing of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

e Sale of good (normal trading)

e Hire purchase sales

e Consignment arrangement

e Non-cash consideration

*  Extended warranties

e Right to return goods

*  Volume rebates

e AC project division

e Customer loyalty programme

e Principal versus agent evaluation

o Free services



2.8.2 Disaggregation of Revenue
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SLFRS 15 requires an entity to disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with customers into categories that depict how the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The Group's contracts with customers are in similar nature and
revenue from these contracts are not significantly affected by economic factors apart from the product and service categories. The Group believes

objective of this requirement will be met by using two type of category - timing of revenue and type of good and services (Note 3.b) .

Type of Product/
Service

Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations including significant payment terms

Revenue recognition under SLFRS 15 (applicable from
1st January 2018)

Sale of Goods (Normal
Trading Transactions)

Group sells goods to the customers on cash or credit
basis. At the time of delivery of the goods to the
customers, Group meets its performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when the goods are delivered to
the customers.

Sale of Goods (Hire
Purchase Transactions)

Group sells its products to its customers by entering
into Hire Purchase Agreements. At the time of delivery
of the goods to the customers, Group meets its
performance obligations.

Revenue is recognized when the goods are delivered

to the customers. Transaction price is estimated by
adjusting the consideration for the time value of money.
As the HP agreements are based on market interest
rates the cash price and the adjusted consideration has
no significant difference.

Sale of Goods
(Consignment
Arrangements)

The Group sells goods to the customers through
consignment arrangements with third parties. At the
time of delivering the goods to the end-customers, the
Group meets its performance obligations.

At the time of delivering the goods to the end-customers,
the revenue is recognized.

Extended Warranty
Income

The Group provides extended warranty for certain
products by charging additional consideration from the
client. The Group meets its performance obligations
over the period of extended warranty.

The extended warranty fee income (net of taxes) is
recognized over the period of Contract. Unrecognised
income is accounted for as deferred revenue.

Income on Suraksha
and Service Fees

When the Group sells goods under hire purchases, an
additional fee is charged as Suraksha and service fee.
This fee is calculated based on the value of the product.
The Group meets its performance obligations over the
period of the hire purchase contracts.

Revenue is recognized over the period of the hire
purchase contract using effective interest rate.
Unrecognised income is accounted for as unearned
income.

Revenue on Customer
Loyalty Program

The Group provides loyalty points where they could
redeem such points for future purchases.

Revenue is deferred at the time of earning the loyalty
points based on the expected redemption rate. Based on
the actual redemptions the revenue is recognized.

Installation fee charged
on AC products

The Group provides AC installation services to the
customers at the time of selling the AC products. The
Group meets its performance obligations over the
period of AC Installation contracts.

Based on the stage of completion, installation fee is
charged as revenue.

Sewing school Income

Providing sewing and fashion educational services

Based on the course payments of the students

2.8.2.1 Revenue Recognition Policy of Singer

Finance (Lanka) PLC

Revenue is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that control will pass to the
customer and the revenue and associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be
reliably measured. The following specific
criteria are used for the purpose of

recognition of revenue.

(a) Interest Income and Expense

Interest income and expense are recognised
in profit or loss using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments and receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability (or, where
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying

The calculation of the EIR includes
transaction costs and fees and points paid
or received that are an integral part of the
EIR. Transaction costs include incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or
financial liability. Interest income and expense
presented in the Income Statement include:

amount of the financial asset or liability. When
calculating the EIR, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, but not

future credit losses.
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. Interest on financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost
calculated using EIR method;

(b) Over Due Interest

Over Due Interest have been accounted for
on a cash received basis.

(c) Fees and Commission Income and
Expense

Fees and commission income and expense
that are integral to the EIR on a financial asset
or liability are included in the measurement
of the EIR. Other fees and commission
income are recognised as the related services
are performed.

(d) Net Gain / (Loss) from Trading

‘Net gain / (loss) from trading’ comprise
gains less losses related to trading assets
and liabilities, and include all realized and
unrealized fair value changes and dividends.

2.8.3 Other income
2.8.3.1Gains and losses

Gains and losses on disposal of an item

of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the net sales
proceeds with the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and are
recognised net within “other income / Other
expenses " in profit or loss respectively.

2.8.3.2 Dividend

Dividend income is recognised in profit or
loss on the date the entity's right to receive
payment is established, which in the case of
quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.

2.8.3.3 Other income

Other income is recognised on an accrual
basis.3,

2.8.4 Regulatory Provisions
(a) Deposit Insurance Scheme

In terms of the Finance Companies Direction
No 2 of 2010 “Insurance of Deposit
Liabilities” issued on 27th September 2010
all Registered Finance Companies are
required to insure their deposit liabilities in
the Deposit Insurance Scheme operated by
the Monetary Board in terms of Sri Lanka
Deposit Insurance Scheme Regulations No

1 of 2010 issued under Sections 32A to 32E
of the Monetary Law Act with effect from 1st
October 2010.

Deposits to be insured include demand, time
and savings deposit liabilities and exclude the
following.

Deposit liabilities to member institutions
Deposit liabilities to Government of Sri Lanka

Deposit liabilities to shareholders, directors,
key management personnel and other
related parties as defined in Finance
Companies Act Direction No 03 of 2008 on
Corporate Governance of Registered Finance
Companies

Deposit liabilities held as collateral against
any accommodation granted

Deposit liabilities falling within the meaning
of dormant deposits in terms of the Finance
Companies Act, funds of which have been
transferred to Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Registered Finance Companies are required
to pay a premium of 0.15% on eligible deposit
liabilities as at end of the month to be
payable within a period of 15 days from the
end of the respective month.

(b) Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated
Term Debts

These represent the funds borrowed

by the Company for long-term funding
requirements. Subsequent to initial
recognition debt securities issued are
measured at their amortised cost using the
effective interest method, except where the
Group designates debt securities issued at
fair value through profit or loss. Interest paid/
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

2.8.5 Reserve Fund

Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC is maintaining a
reserve fund in compliance with Direction
No. 01 of 2003 - Central Bank (Capital Funds)
issued to Finance Companies and it will

be used for only the purpose specified in

the said Direction above. The details of the
reserve fund are disclosed in Note 23.1.

2.8.6 Expenditure Recognition

(@) Expenses are recognised in Profit and
Loss on the basis of a direct association
between the cost incurred and the
earning of specific items of income. All
expenditure incurred in the running
of the business and in maintaining the
Property, Plant and Equipment in a state
of efficiency has been charged to income
in arriving at the profit for the year.

(b) For the purpose of presentation of the
Income Statement, the Directors are of
the opinion that “function of expenses
method” presents fairly the elements
of the Group's performance and hence
such presentation method is adopted.

2.8.7 Net Finance Cost

Finance income comprises interest income
on funds invested interest income from
related parties and which is recognised as it
accrues in profit or loss, using the effective
interest rate method.

Finance cost comprises interest payable on
borrowings, interest on security deposits.
Borrowing costs that are not directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are
recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis as either finance
income or finance cost depending on
whether foreign currency movements are in
net gain or net loss position.

2.8.8 Tax Expense

Tax expense comprises current and
deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognised
directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive
Income.

The Group has determined that interest
and penalties related to income taxes
including uncertain tax treatments do not
meet the definition of Income taxes and
there fore accounted for them under LKAS
37. Provision,Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets



(a) Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities
are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the countries where the
Group operates and generates taxable
income.

Current tax relating to items recognised
directly in Other Comprehensive Income is
recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
and not in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

(b) Deferred Taxation

Deferred tax is provided using the liability
method on temporary differences between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an

asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
equity accounted investee and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for

all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits

and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to

the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset

or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

In respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, equity accounted investee and
interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Temporary differences in relation to Right -of
-Use assets and a Lease liability are regarded
as net basis, for the purpose of recognizing
deferred Tax.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each reporting

date and are recognised to the extent that

it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised
outside the Statement of Profit or Loss is
recognised outside the Statement of Profit
or Loss. Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business
combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, would be
recognised subsequently if new information
about facts and circumstances changed.
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The adjustment would either be treated as a
reduction to goodwill (as long as it does not

exceed goodwill) if it was incurred during the
measurement period or in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a
legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Tax on dividend income from subsidiaries is
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss at the same time
as the liability to pay the related dividend is
recognised.

(c) Value Added Tax (VAT) on Financial
Services

The value base for the computation of value
added tax on financial services is calculated
by adjusting the depreciation computed on
rates prescribed by the Department of Inland
Revenue to the accounting profit before
Income Tax and emoluments payable.

Emoluments payable include benefits

in money and not in money including
contribution or provision relating to terminal
benefits.

With effect from January 01,2022 VAT on
financial services has been increased from
15% to 18% via an amendment to the VAT Act
No.14 of 2022

(d) Social Security Contribution Levy (SSCL)
The Social Security Contribution Levy (SSCL)
Act No. 25 of 2022, has been passed in

the parliament imposing a new levy on the
turnover of persons.
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The SSCL came into operations with effect
from 01st October 2022.

Registration threshold was,

e All persons with an aggregate total
turnover exceeding LKR 120,000,000
within 12 months prior to the date of the
operation of the Act

e All persons with an aggregate total
turnover exceeding LKR 30,000,000
within a quarter

e Therate of SSCL is be 2.5% on the “liable
turnover”. Liable turnover will vary as
follows.

e Importation of any article - 100% of the
turnover

e Manufacture of any article - 85% of the
turnover

e Service provider - 100% of the turnover
*  Wholesaler and retailer:

e Sale of any article by a registered
distributor, this includes all
manufacturers and producers of any
goods in Sri Lanka - 25% of the turnover

e Wholesale or retail sale, excluding
items mentioned under 1., including
importation and sale - 50% of the
turnover

(e) Crop Insurance Levy

As per the provisions of the Section 14 of

the Finance Act No. 12 of 2013, the CIL was
introduced with effect from April 01, 2013
and is payable to the National Insurance
Trust Fund. Currently, the CIL is payable at 1%
of the profit after tax.

2.9 Events After the Reporting Period

All material post reporting date events have
been considered and where appropriate
adjustments or disclosures have been made
in the respective notes to the Financial
Statements.

2.10 Earnings Per Share

The Group presents basic and diluted
earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS

is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

2.11 Segment Reporting

An operating segment is a component of the
Group that engages in business activities
from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses, including revenues and expenses
that relate to transactions with any of the
Group's other components. All operating
results are reviewed regularly by the Group
Chief Executive Officer to make decisions
regarding resources to be allocated to the
segments and to assess its performance
and for which discrete finance information is
available.

Segment results that are reported to the
Group CEO include items directly attributable
to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total

cost incurred during the period to acquire
Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets other than goodwill.

Segment information is presented in the
respective Notes to the Financial Statements.

2.12 Statement of Cash Flows

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared
using the indirect method.

2.13 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

Several other amendments and
interpretations apply for the first time in
2022/2023, but do not have a material impact
on the consolidated Financial statements

of the Group. The Group has not early
adopted any standards, interpretations or
amendments that have been issued but are
not yet effective.

2.14 Standards Issued but not yet Effective.

A number of new standards are effective for
annual report beginning after 1st April 2022
and earlier adoption is permitted. However

the group has not

Early adopted the new or amended standards
in these financial statements.

2.14.1 Amendments to LKAS 8 - Definition
of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors. Also, they clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amended standard clarifies that the effects
on an accounting estimate of a change in
an input or a change in a measurement
technique are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the
correction of prior period errors.

The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. Earlier application is permitted.

2.14.2 Amendments to LKAS 12 - Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify that where payments
that settle a liability are deductible for tax
purposes, it is a matter of judgement (having
considered the applicable tax law) whether
such deductions are attributable for tax
purposes to the liability recognised in the
financial statements (and interest expense) or
to the related asset component (and interest
expense). This judgement is important

in determining whether any temporary
differences exist on initial recognition of the
asset and liability

Also, under the amendments, the initial
recognition exception does not apply to
transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. It only applies if
the recognition of a lease asset and lease
liability (or decommissioning liability and
decommissioning asset component) give
rise to taxable and deductible temporary
differences that are not equal



The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2.14.3 Amendments to LKAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 - Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

Amendments to LKAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements,
provides guidance and examples to help
entities apply materiality judgements

to accounting policy disclosures. The
amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more
useful by:

e Replacing the requirement for entities
to disclose their 'significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies

e Adding guidance on how entities apply
the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy
disclosures

The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2.14.4 Amendments to LKAS 1 -
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non current

Amendments to LKAS 1 Presentation

of Financial Statements specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current. The amendments
clarify -

e Whatis meant by a right to defer
settlement

e Thata right to defer must exist at the
end of the reporting period

e That classification is unaffected by the
likelihood that an entity will exercise its
deferral right

e Thatonlyif an embedded derivative in
a convertible liability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability
not impact its classification

e Disclosures

Annual Report 2022/23

The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2.14.5 SLFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

SLFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting
standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition and measurement, presentation
and disclosure. Once effective, SLFRS 17 will
replace SLFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (SLFRS
4) that was issued in 2005. SLFRS 17 applies
to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life,
non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities that issue
them, as well as to certain guarantees and
financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions
will apply. The overall objective of SLFRS 17 is
to provide an accounting model for insurance
contracts that is more useful and consistent
for insurers. In contrast to the requirements
in SLFRS 4, which are largely based on
grandfathering previous local accounting
policies, SLFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all
relevant accounting aspects. The core of
SLFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented

by:

*  Aspecific adaptation for contracts with
direct participation features (the variable
fee approach)

* Asimplified approach (the premium
allocation approach) mainly for short-
duration contracts

SLFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025,
with comparative figures required. Early
application is permitted, provided the entity
also applies SLFRS 9 and SLFRS 15 on or
before the date it first applies SLFRS 17.

161




162 Singer (Sri Lanka) PLC

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Revenue

(a) Revenue Streams

Group Company

For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 3.1 54,767,233,822 | 76,847,841,969 | 47,950,386,172 | 68,652,289,991

Total Revenue 54,767,233,822 | 76,847,841,969 | 47,950,386,172 | 68,652,289,991
3.1) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of Goods 45,175,058,834 | 68,668,646,278 | 44,836,296,698 | 65,645,931,629

Rendering of Services 3.2 9,592,174,988 8,179,195,691 3,114,089,474 3,006,358,362

54,767,233,822 | 76,847,841,969 | 47,950,386,172 | 68,652,289,991

3.2) Rendering of Services

Interest Income on Hire Purchase

2,593,367,719

2,319,430,773

2,593,367,719

2,319,285,108

Interest Income on Leasing

2,068,593,694

2,796,654,827

Interest Income on Loans

3,504,292,357

1,648,697,800

Service Income

1,425,921,218

1,414,412,291

520,721,755

687,073,254

9,592,174,988

8,179,195,691

3,114,089,474

3,006,358,362

(b) Disaggregation of revenue from contract with customers

In the following table , revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major products , service lines and timing of revenue

recognition.
Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

i) Major Products / Service Lines

Consumer Electronics 4,357,666 8,056,214 4,357,666 8,056,214
Financial Services 9,653,108 8,164,251 3,204,682 2,991,414
Furniture 4,147,511 3,697,938 4,147,511 3,697,938
Home Appliances 18,225,925 27,266,277 18,783,398 27,244,947
Digital Products 12,728,128 20,546,893 11,768,846 17,575,982
Sewing 2,453,122 3,957,665 2,510,590 3,957,471
Others 3,201,774 5,158,604 3,177,693 5,128,324
Revenue from Contract with Customers 54,767,234 76,847,842 47,950,386 68,652,290

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

ii) Timing of Revenue Recognition

Products Transferred at a Point in Time 45,175,059 68,668,646 44,836,297 65,645,932
Products and Services Transferred Over Time 9,592,175 8,179,196 3,114,089 3,006,358
Revenue from Contract with Customers 54,767,234 76,847,842 47,950,386 68,652,290
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(c) Contract Balances
Following table provides information about Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers.

Group Company
As at 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Advances Received from Customers 29 243,088,319 574,529,407 247,812,582 574,529,407
Deferred Revenue 30 292,460,205 311,907,462 292,396,054 308,570,647
Warranty Provision 29.1 416,273,617 405,217,890 397,199,332 384,524,495
956,822,140 1,291,654,759 937,407,967 1,267,624,549

4. Operating Segments Information
4.1 Segments

The following strategic divisions are the Group's reportable Segments. These divisions offer different products and services, which are managed
separately as they require different technology and marketing strategies.

Segment \ Products and Services

Consumer Electronics Televisions, Audios, DVD and Other Electronic Products

Financial Services Leasing, Hire Purchase and Loans

Furniture Wood and Layered Furniture, Sofa Sets and Steel Furniture and Mattresses and Pantry Sets

Home Appliances Refrigerators, Washing Machines, Deep Freezers, Bottle Coolers, Air Conditioners, Fans, Small Appliances and Kitchen
Appliances

Digital Products Computers, Mobile Phones and Accessories

Sewing Domestic and Industrial Sewing Machines and General Merchandise

Other Water Pumps, Paddy Threshers, Tractors, Solar System and Security Surveillance

4.2 Segmental Analysis of Revenue is as follows:

Group Company

For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000

Consumer Electronics 4,357,666 8,056,214 4,357,666 8,056,214
Financial Services 9,653,108 8,164,251 3,204,682 2,991,414
Furniture 4,147,511 3,697,938 4,147,511 3,697,938
Home Appliances 18,225,925 27,266,277 18,783,398 27,244,947
Digital Products 12,728,128 20,546,893 11,768,846 17,575,982
Sewing 2,453,122 3,957,665 2,510,590 3,957,471
Other 3,201,773 5,158,604 3,177,693 5,128,324
54,767,234 76,847,842 47,950,386 68,652,290
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4.3 Segmental Analysis of Profit Before Tax is as follows:

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000 Rs. ‘000
Consumer Electronics 537,538 1,003,703 537,538 1,003,703
Financial Services 832,515 2,357,797 762,033 812,013
Furniture 373,744 431,043 373,744 431,043
Home Appliances 3,068,875 3,206,462 2,718,288 3,077,748
Digital Products 1,064,552 1,130,097 1,050,483 1,213,613
Sewing 260,847 456,692 212,662 417,686
Others 367,497 354,063 348,795 328,344
Dividend 240 240 129,210 129,210
Impairment (Loss )/ Reversal on Trade and Other Receivables 181,961 (702,745) 140,085 (281,362)
Operating Profit 6,687,769 8,237,352 6,272,838 7,131,998
Net Finance Cost (6,118,864) (2,320,222) (6,263,474) (1,994,123)
VAT/DRL/NBT on Financial Services (394,713) (381,570) (78,000) (94,000)
Profit /( Loss) Before Tax 174,192 5,535,560 (68,636) 5,043,875
4.4 There are no separately distinguishable assets and liabilities for the above segments.
5. Other Income
Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Dividend Income - Quoted - - 129,210,428 129,210,428
- Unquoted 240,000 240,000 - -
Gain on Disposal of Property Plant and Equipment 70,981 758,595 - 758,595
Miscellaneous Income 189,172,937 213,504,254 22,236,613 17,966,134
Income from Financial Services 58,542,591 47,693,930 58,542,591 47,693,930
248,026,509 262,196,779 209,989,632 195,629,087
6. Finance Income
Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Interest on Related Party Receivables = - 186,917,073 36,959,091
Interest Income on Short Term Investments 1,126,852,502 170,083,824 198,099,241 60,390,450
Foreign Exchange Gains 25,898,431 - = 37,294,105
1,152,750,933 170,083,824 385,016,314 134,643,646
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7. Finance Cost
Group Company

For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Interest on Overdrafts and Loans (5,696,695,976) | (1,377,220,691) | (5,257,962,672) | (1,225,935,264)
Interest on Lease Liabilities * (540,527,357) (586,866,709) (543,221,709) (591,393,061)
Interest on Security Deposits 28 (139,181,550) (132,330,174) (134,853,818) (125,704,178)
Foreign Exchange Losses (895,210,199) (393,887,556) (513,072,971) -
Interest on Related Party Payables - - (199,379,883) (185,733,671)
(7,271,615,082) | (2,490,305,130) | (6,648,491,053) | (2,128,766,174)
Net Finance Cost** (6,118,864,149) | (2,320,221,306) | (6,263,474,739) | (1,994,122,528)

*  Interest on Lease Liabilities - Singer Finance (Lanka) PLC has included Interest on Lease Liabilities under Direct Interest Cost in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

** Finance Cost (Note 7) Less Finance Income (Note 6)

8. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Stated After Charging all Expenses including the
Following:
Executive Directors' Emoluments 165,011,994 127,857,338 120,738,941 86,354,603
Non-Executive Directors' Fees 21,720,690 18,242,028 11,893,354 8,920,020
Auditors' Remuneration - Statutory Audit 7,554,600 6,868,000 2,851,000 2,992,000
- Audit Related Services 4,280,188 1,602,164 440,000 633,080
- Non-Audit Services 4,808,148 7,295,001 1,971,601 3,502,500
Provision / (Reversal) for Impairment on Trade and Other 8.1 (181,960,851) 702,745,382 (140,084,595) 281,361,700
Receivables
Provision for Inventories 16.1 374,183,974 51,653,410 284,734,989 39,681,956
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 12.8 55,547,619 46,869,927 36,164,041 29,306,263
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 11.9/11.16 762,709,301 737,804,421 535,245,915 548,853,749
Depreciation of Right of Use Asset 11.20.1 1,010,707,034 1,039,127,827 884,176,673 932,864,165
Personnel Costs 8.2 4,032,322,256 4,302,685,134 2,427,131,265 2,522,724,432
Loss on Disposal of Property,Plant and Equipment 2,291,561 758,595 2,291,561 758,595
Donations 836,571 763,904 = -
Royalty 565,725,930 677,615,210 491,618,076 613,151,056
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8.1 Provision / (Reversal) for Impairment on Trade and Other Receivables

Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March 2023 2022 2023 2022
Note Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Provision / (Reversal ) for impairment on Hire Purchase 183 (23,130,633) (80,774,790) (20,762,052) (80,919,588)
Receivables
Provision / (Reversal ) for impairment on Lease Receivables 18.3 (109,116,581) 223,068,404 = -
Provision for impairment on Loan Receivables 183 67,981,364 189,513,276 - -
Provision / (Reversal ) for impairment on Trade Receivables 18.3 (305,424,930) 221,370,912 (307,052,472) 211,980,932
Provision for impairment on Other Receivables 18.3 187,729,929 149,567,580 187,729,929 150,300,356
(181,960,851) 702,745,382 (140,084,595) 281,361,700
8.2 Personnel Costs
Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Salaries and Bonuses 3,197,537,935 3,548,753,835 1,800,683,185 1,903,237,908
Provision for Employee Benefit Obligations 27.4 224,960,605 115,964,310 151,372,661 79,782,830
Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF, ETF and MSPS 609,823,716 637,966,989 474,082,509 539,703,694
4,032,322,256 4,302,685,134 2,426,138,355 2,522,724,432
9. Tax Expenses / (Reversal)
Group Company
For the Year ended 31st March Note 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current Income Tax Expe